10of 147

Oneida Nation
Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 ‘ ON E I DA

Oneida-nsn.gov

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING AGENDA
Business Committee Conference Room-2" Floor Norbert Hill Center
September 5, 2018 9:00 a.m.

l. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda
. Minutes to be approved
1. August 15, 2018 LOC Meeting Minutes (pg. 2)

I11.  Current Business
1. Petition: G. Dallas - $5,000 Payment (pg. 4)
2. Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B premium payment (pg. 11)
3. General Tribal Council Meetings Law (pg. 15)
4. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions
Amendments (pg. 19)
5. Election Law Amendments (pg. 90)

V. New Submissions
V. Additions

VI.  Administrative Updates
1. LOC Memo regarding the August 27, 2018 GTC Action (pg. 145)

VIl. Executive Session

VIIl. Recess/Adjourn

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



2 of 147

Oneida Nation 7\
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, Wl 54155-0365
Oneida-nsn.gov

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Business Committee Conference Room-2" Floor Norbert Hill Center
August 15, 2018
9:00 a.m.

Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster

Excused: Daniel Guzman King, Ernest Stevens IlI

Others Present: Kristen Hooker, Brandon Wisneski, Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Lee
Cornelius, Leyne Orosco, Ed Delgado, Brooke Doxtator, Michelle Hill, Krystal John, Lucinda
Conway, Mary Graves, Racquel Hill

. Call to Order and Approval of the Agenda
David P. Jordan called the August 15, 2018 Legislative Operating Committee meeting to
order at 9:00 a.m.

Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the agenda with the addition of Harvest Law;
seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

1. Minutes to be Approved (:45 - 1:04)
August 18, 2018 LOC Minutes
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the August 15, 2018 Legislative Operating
Committee meeting minutes and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for
consideration; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

I1l.  Current Business
1. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions
Amendments (1:07-10:40)
Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the public meeting memo for the amendments
to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions and
defer the adoption packet until a fiscal impact statement is received from the Finance
Office; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

2. Sanctions & Penalties Law (10:42-12:19)
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the public meeting packet and forward the
Sanctions and Penalties Law to a public meeting to be held on September 20, 2018;
seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

Subsequent Motion by Jennifer Webster to forward the Sanctions & Penalties Law to
the Finance Office for a fiscal analysis to be completed; seconded by Kirby Metoxen.
Motion carried unanimously.

7\
LHHHEHE

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2018
Page 1 of 2



VI.

VII.

VIII.

3 of 147

3. Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures Emergency Amendments (12:21-
19:18)
Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the public meeting packet and forward the
Oneida Personnel, Policies, and Procedures amendments to a public meeting to be
held on September 20, 2018; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

Subsequent motion by Jennifer Webster to forward the Oneida Personnel, Policies,
and Procedures Amendments to the Finance Office for a fiscal analysis to be
completed; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

New Submissions

Additions

1. Harvest Law (19:20-20:31)
Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the notice packet and direct that a community
meeting potluck be held on September 27, 2018; Seconded by Kirby Metoxen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Administrative Items

1. Leasing Law Rule #1 — Residential Leasing (20:32-31:02)
Motion by Jennifer Webster to certify the Leasing Law Rule #1- Residential Leasing
Certification Request and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for
consideration: seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

Executive Session

Adjourn

Motion by Kirby Metoxen to adjourn the August 15, 2018 Legislative Operating
Committee meeting at 9:31 a.m.; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried
unanimously.

Legislative Operating Committee Meeting Minutes of August 15, 2018
Page 2 of 2



4 of 147

Oneida Nation 7~ \
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, WI 54155-0365 E I DA
Oneida-nsn.gov

Legislative Operating Committee
September 5, 2018

Petition: G. Dallas — $5,000 Payment

Submission Date: 8/1/18 Public Meeting: n/a

LOC Sponsor: David P. Jordan Emergéncy E'?aCtEd: n/a
Xpires: n/a

Summary: This petition asks the General Tribal Council to consider approving a $5,000
payment to all enrolled Oneida Tribal Members within 90 days from the date of the action
being approved by the GTC and within Fiscal Year 2019; for the Oneida Business Committee
to present any obstacles to the distribution and a minimum of three ways to make the
distribution possible; for GTC to take action to address any obstacles to the distribution, for
the GTC to review and approve or deny any budgetary items impacted in lieu of the $5,000
payment; for the GTC to address the individuals who are against the payment; and for the
GTC to be the final decision makers regarding each and all of these matters.

7/25/18 OBC: Motion by Lisa Summers to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference Office to
complete and submit the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and statement of effect
respectively, for the September 12, 2018 regular Business Committee meeting, seconded by
Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

8/1/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Petition: G. Dallas $5000 Payment to the active files
list as a high priority with David P. Jordan as the sponsor; seconded by Kirby Metoxen.
Motion carried unanimously.

Next Steps:
= Approve the Petition: G. Dallas — $5,000 Payment within 90 Days statement of effect and
forward to the Oneida Business Committee.

Page1ofa
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



5 of 147

Oneida Nation 7~ \
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, WI 54155-0365 E I DA
Oneida-nsn.gov

Statement of Effect
Petition: G. Dallas - $5,000 Payment within 90 Days

Summary
This petition requests the General Tribal Council to consider approving a payment of five
thousand dollars ($5,000) to all enrolled members of the Nation payable within ninety (90) days
of approval.

Submitted by: Clorissa N. Santiago, Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office
Date: September 5, 2018

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office
On July 2, 2018, the Petition: G. Dallas - $5,000 Payment within 90 Days (“the Petition™) was
submitted to the Business Committee Support Office by Gladys Dallas and has since been
verified by the Oneida Trust Enrollment Department. On July 25, 2018, the Oneida Business
Committee accepted the verified Petition and requested that the Legislative Reference Office
complete a statement of effect for the September 12, 2018 regular Oneida Business Committee
meeting.

The purpose of this Petition is for the General Tribal Council to “approve a $5,000 payment to
all enrolled Oneida Tribal Members within 90 days from the date of the action being approved
by the Oneida General Tribal Council (hereafter OGTC) and within Fiscal Year 2019; for the
Oneida Business Committee to present any obstacles to the distribution AND a minimum of 3
ways (i.e. sources, methods, etc.) to make the distribution possible; for the OGTC to take action
to address any obstacles (i.e. people, laws, etc.) to the distribution, for the GTC to review and
approve or deny any budgetary items impacted in lieu of the $5,000 payment; for the GTC to
address the individuals who are against the payment; and for the GTC to be the final decision
makers regarding each and all of these matters.”

All applicable laws and policies of the Nation were reviewed in developing this statement of
effect, including the Per Capita law and the Budget Management and Control law.

Per Capita Law

The Per Capita law specifies the procedures to be followed in the event that per capita payments
are distributed by the Nation. [1 O.C. 123.1-1]. Although the Petition does not specify that the
five thousand dollar ($5,000) payment is a per capita payment, the Per Capita law defines a per
capita payment as the amount authorized by the General Tribal Council to be distributed to
Tribal members. [1 O.C. 123.3-1(p)]. Since the Petition is requesting that the General Tribal
Council consider the approval of the five thousand dollar ($5,000) payment for all members of
the Nation, this payment would be considered a per capita payment and therefore governed by
the Per Capita law.

Page 10of 6
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



6 of 147

The Per Capita law delegates to the Oneida Business Committee the responsibility to identify
and allocate funds available for per capita payments. [1 O.C. 123.4-4(a)]. The Oneida Business
Committee is also responsible for any activities not specifically identified in the law, but
reasonably related to the responsibility to identify and allocate per capita funds. [1 O.C. 123.4-
4(d)]. Reviewing obstacles to the allocation of funds, or determining potential sources for funds
may be considered activities related to the responsibility to identify and allocate per capita funds.
In addition to the general responsibilities for the identification and allocation of funds delegated
to the Oneida Business Committee, the Per Capita law specifically delegates authority to the
Treasurer of the Nation for the identification of funds. [1 O.C. 123.4-8].

Per Capita payments may only be issued at the direction of the General Tribal Council through
adoption of a resolution. [1 O.C. 123.4-3]. The materials included for the Petition consist solely
of the petition form with signatures. No resolution addressing the adoption of a special per capita
payment was attached for consideration by the General Tribal Council.

The Per Capita law contains various timelines for the distribution of per capita payments, but
clarifies that the timelines contained in the law address annual per capita payments, and that for
any additional per capita payments, the Trust Enrollment Committee may establish dates and
deadlines associated with those payments as needed. [1 O.C. 123.5-2]. Deadlines included in the
law for distributing per capita payments address filing for and determining eligibility, various
distribution documents, distribution date, direct deposits of per capita payments, requests for a
prior per capita payment, and refusal of distributions. [1 O.C. 123.5-2(a)-(f)].

On June 13, 2016, the General Tribal Council adopted a per capita payment plan by way of
motion that “...$1,300 instead of $2,000...” is to be paid “...beginning Fiscal Year 2017 through
2021.” This General Tribal Council directive was implemented through the adoption of
resolution BC-01-12-17-A by the Oneida Business Committee and directs that a per capita
payment of one thousand and three hundred dollars ($1,300) for every member be included in the
budgets for Fiscal Years 2017, 2018, 2019, 2020, and 2021. Since the General Tribal Council has
already determined a regular per capita payment for the Fiscal Year 2019, it can be determined
that the five thousand dollar ($5,000) payment is a special per capita payment.

The Trust Enrollment Committee will have to establish dates and deadlines associated with this
request for a special per capita payment. The Petition directs that the special per capita payment
be payable within ninety (90) days of the approval of a resolution. It is unknown whether the
ninety (90) day deadline for payment would allow the Trust Enrollment Committee the
opportunity to establish the necessary dates and deadlines associated with this request as
afforded by the Per Capita law.

Additionally, all per capita payments, except distributions to or from a trust account for a
beneficiary, may be subject to attachment prior to distribution for child support arrears, debt
owed to an Oneida entity that is past due, and/or a federal tax levy. [1 O.C. 123.4-9(a)(1)-(3)].
An entity may seek to attach a per capita payment for child support arrears, past due debt owed
to an Oneida entity, and/or a federal tax levy, as long as the timelines identified in the Per Capita
law regarding the attachment process are followed. [1 O.C. 123.4-9].

7\
DRI

Page 2 of 6 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



7 of 147

In order to acquire an attachment to a per capita payment for child support arrears or a federal tax
levy an order of determination from the Oneida Judiciary must be obtained and provided to the
Trust Enrollment Department. [1 O.C. 123.4-9(c)(3) and 123.4-9(e)]. It is unknown whether an
order of determination can be obtained from the Judiciary and processed within the ninety (90)
day deadline.

In order to obtain an attachment for debt owed to an Oneida entity, an attachment order from the
Judiciary is not required prior to initiating a per capita payment. [1 O.C. 123.4-9(d)]. Instead,
there are notice requirements that must be met before an entity can initiate an attachment, such as
a notice for each month a debt is owed with each notice being sent a minimum of thirty (30)
calendar days apart, with at least two (2) consecutive monthly notices prior to the debt becoming
eligible for attachment, and a final notice with intent to attach sent thirty (30) calendar days after
the second consecutive notice, with a notice posted in the Nation’s newspaper. [1 O.C. 123.4-
9(d)(1)-(2)]. An individual is also able to request an attachment hearing with the Judiciary to
contest the validity of the debt owed to an Oneida entity. [1 O.C. 123.4-9(d)(5)]. In order for the
Trust Enrollment Department to process an attachment for a current per capita payment
distribution, Oneida entities have to send the Trust Enrollment Department a one-time final
accounting of all debts subject to attachment no later than July 31% of the year. [1 O.C. 123.4-
9(d)(2)(B)(1)]. The ninety (90) day deadline would not provide an opportunity for the notice
requirements or attachment hearing in the Judiciary for attachments to a per capita payment for
debts owed to an Oneida entity.

Budget Management and Control Law

The Budget Management and Control law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee
through resolution BC-02-08-17-C for the purpose of setting forth the requirements to be
followed by the Oneida Business Committee and Oneida fund units when preparing the Nation’s
budget for consideration by the General Tribal Council. [1 O.C. 121.1-1].

The Oneida Business Committee, executive managers and managers are required to follow the
processes provided in the Budget Management and Control law when creating the budget to
present to the General Tribal Council for consideration. [1 O.C. 121.5-1]. The Budget
Management and Control law contains processes and timelines for triennial strategic planning [1
0.C. 121.4], community input meetings [1 O.C. 121.5-2], the establishment of a priority list by
the Oneida Business Committee [1 O.C. 121.5-3], deadlines for the finalization of the final draft
budget [1 O.C. 121.5-7], presentation of the final draft budget in community meetings [1 O.C.
121.5-8], and consideration of the final draft budget by the General Tribal Council [1 O.C.
121.5-9]. The Oneida Business Committee is required to present the budget to the General Tribal
Council with a request for adoption by resolution no later than September 30th of each year. [1
0.C. 121.5-9].

In the event that the General Tribal Council does not adopt a budget by September 30th, the
Budget Management and Control law allows for a continuing budget resolution to be adopted by
the Oneida Business Committee until such time as a budget is adopted by the General Tribal
Council. [1 O.C. 121.5-9].

7\
DRI

Page 3 of 6 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



8 of 147

The Fiscal Year 2019 budget will not be adopted by the General Tribal Council by September
30, 2018. The adoption of the budget by the General Tribal Council is delayed due to the fact
that the Oneida Business Committee did not receive adequate input from the community budget
meetings and recommendations from the Chief Financial Officer and fund unit managers, and
therefore the Oneida Business Committee required more time to solicit input for the
establishment of the priority list required by section 121.5-3 of the Budget Management and
Control law.

The Oneida Business Committee found good cause to grant an extension of time for
implementation of the Budget Management and Control law through the adoption of resolution
BC-02-28-18-C. This resolution identified that due to the extension of the deadline for the
establishment and approval of the priority list required by section 121.5-3, all further deadlines
would be extended and the Oneida Business Committee would develop a continuing budget
resolution to be effective until all requirements of the Budget Management and Control law have
been met for fiscal year 2019.

The Oneida Business Committee adopted a continuing budget resolution through resolution BC-
08-08-18-A. This continuing budget resolution directs that the Oneida Nation shall operate at the
Fiscal Year 2018 levels, with a wage increase of eighty-five cents ($0.85) per hour per eligible
employee effective September 30, 2018. The General Tribal Council adopted the Fiscal Year
2018 budget through resolution GTC-10-08-17-A. This Fiscal Year 2018 budget will control
until a Fiscal Year 2019 budget can be adopted by the General Tribal Council. The Fiscal Year
2018 budget did not include a designation of funds for a special per capita payment of five
thousand dollars ($5,000).

Once a budget is adopted by the General Tribal Council, the Budget Management and Control
law prohibits amendments of the budget, as well as any transfer of funds within the budget,
unless the adjustment for the transfer of funds is necessary to accurately reflect the amount of
grant funding actually received. [1 O.C. 121.9-1 and 121.9-2].

Although the Budget Management and Control law states that once the annual budget is adopted
by the General Tribal Council the Oneida Business Committee’s authority is limited to budget
oversight [1 O.C. 121.8-3(a)], the law recognizes that these limitations do not prevent the
Oneida Business Committee, with input from the Chief Financial Officer, from taking necessary
action, on an emergency basis and within the scope of its authority, to protect and safeguard the
resources and general welfare of the Nation and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
regulations and requirements. [1 O.C. 121.8-3(a)].

Conclusion
After a review of all applicable laws and policies of the Nation, it has been determined that the
adoption of the Petition: G. Dallas - $5,000 Payment within 90 Days would have a legislative
impact.

1. The Per Capita law delegates the responsibility of identifying and allocating funds for per

capita payments to the Oneida Business Committee and the Nation’s Treasurer. [1 O.C.

7\
DRI

Page 4 of 6 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



9 of 147

123.4-4(a), 123.4-8 ]. The Petition’s request for the General Tribal Council to direct *“the
Oneida Business Committee to present any obstacles to the distribution AND a minimum
of 3 ways (i.e. sources, methods, etc.) to make the distribution possible; for the OGTC to
take action to address any obstacles (i.e. people, laws, etc.) to the distribution, for the
GTC to review and approve or deny any budgetary items impacted in lieu of the $5,000
payment; for the GTC to address the individuals who are against the payment; and for
the GTC to be the final decision makers regarding each and all of these matters” may
conflict with the requirements of the Per Capita law as it is re-delegating the
responsibility to conduct activities that are reasonably related to the identification and
allocation of per capita funds from the Oneida Business Committee to the General Tribal
Council.

. The Per Capita law only allows General Tribal Council to direct the issuance of per
capita payments through the adoption of a resolution. [1 O.C. 123.4-3]. No resolution
addressing the adoption of a five thousand dollar ($5,000) payment was attached to the
Petition materials for consideration by the General Tribal Council. Therefore. the
Petition’s request for the General Tribal Council to “approve a $5,000 payment to all
enrolled Oneida Tribal Members within 90 days from the date of the action being
approved by the Oneida General Tribal Council (hereafter OGTC) and within Fiscal
Year 2019 without the attachment of an adopting resolution conflicts with the Per
Capita law. In order to comply with the Per Capita law, approval of a motion supporting
the Petition would not suffice, the adoption of a resolution would be necessary.

. Additionally, the Petition’s request that the special per capita payment be made payable
“within 90 days from the date of the action being approved by the Oneida General Tribal
Council and within Fiscal Year 2019 may hinder or prohibit the opportunity provided
by the Per Capita law to the Trust Enroliment Committee to establish dates and deadlines
regarding the distribution of any special per capita payments as needed [1 O.C. 123.5-2],
and the opportunity to follow the process and timelines for attachments to per capita
payments for child support arrears, past due debt owed to an Oneida entity, and/or a
federal tax levy [1 O.C. 123.4-9(a)(1)-(3)].

Due to the fact that the Fiscal Year 2019 will not be adopted by the General Tribal
Council by September 30, 2018, the Oneida Business Committee adopted a continuing
budget resolution as permitted by the Budget Management and Control law through BC-
08-08-18-A. The continuing budget resolution directs that the Nation operate at the Fiscal
Year 2018 levels, with a wage increase of eighty-five cents ($0.85) per hour per eligible
employee effective September 30, 2018. [1 O.C. 121.5-9]. The Fiscal Year 2018 budget,
adopted by General Tribal Council through resolution GTC-10-08-17-A, did not include
any designation of a special per capita payment of five thousand dollars ($5,000). Any

7\
DRI

Page 5 of 6 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



10 of 147

amendment to the budget or transfer of funds within the budget for the purpose of this
special per capita payment while operating under the Fiscal Year 2018 budget guidelines
would be prohibited under the Budget Management and Control law. [1 O.C. 121.9-1 and
121.9-2]. The five thousand dollars ($5,000) payment would have to be addressed
through the budgeting process provided for in the Budget Management and Control law
and included in the Fiscal Year 2019 budget, which would then have to be adopted by the
General Tribal Council before the payment could be made to every member of the
Nation.

. Although the Petition directs that “GTC to be the final decision makers regarding each
and all of these matters,” the Budget Management and Control law does delegate the
authority to the Oneida Business Committee, with input from the Chief Financial Officer,
to take necessary action, on an emergency basis and within the scope of its authority, to
protect and safeguard the resources and general welfare of the Nation and ensure
compliance with applicable laws, regulations and requirements. [1 O.C. 121.8-3(a)].

Requested Action

Accept the statement of effect for the Petition: G. Dallas - $5,000 Payment within 90 Days.

Page 6 of 6 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.

7\
DRI

ONEIDA



11 of 147

Oneida Nation 7\
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 ON E I DA
Oneida-nsn.gov

Legislative Operating Committee
September 5, 2018

Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B
Premium Payment

Submission Date: 8/1/18 Public Meeting: n/a

LOC Sponsor: Jennifer Webster Emergency Er_lacted: n/a
Expires: n/a

Summary: This Petition, received on July 2, 2018, requests a GTC meeting to decide
whether the Oneida Nation shall pay the Medicare Part B monthly premium payments for all
enrolled members of the Nation eligible to receive Medicare Part B as follows: (a) that
enrolled members of the Nation eligible to have their Medicare Part B monthly premium
payment paid by way of a Medicare Savings Program, per the Medicare Savings Program
income limits, assets, etc. requirements, shall be required to apply for and maintain this
benefit as a condition of the Oneida Nation reimbursing the Medicare Part B monthly
premium payment for as long as they are income/asset eligible to receive the benefit from the
state or federal government; (b) that the Oneida Nation shall reimburse the enrolled member
of the Nation on a monthly basis the first week of each month following the Medicare Part B
monthly premium being deducted from their monthly social security payment; and (c) that
reimbursement shall begin to be budgeted for FY2018-19 and fully implemented over a one
(1) year period, with very low income Medicare Part B recipients having top priority.

7/25/18 OBC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the Law, Finance, and Legislative Reference
Office to complete and submit the legal review, fiscal impact statement, and
statement of effect respectively, for the September 12, 2018 regular Business
Committee meeting, seconded by David P. Jordan. Motion carried unanimously.

8/1/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add the Petition L. Dallas Medicare Part B Premium
Payment to the active Files list as a high priority with Jennifer Webster as the
sponsor; seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

Next Steps:
= Approve the Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B Premium Payment statement of effect
and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for consideration.

Page1ofa
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



12 of 147

Oneida Nation 7\
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 ON E I DA
Oneida-nsn.gov

Statement of Effect
Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B Premium Payment

Summary
This Petition requests a General Tribal Council meeting to decide whether the Oneida Nation
shall pay the Medicare Part B monthly premium payments for all enrolled members of the
Nation eligible to receive Medicare Part B.

Submitted by: Kristen M. Hooker, Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office
Date: September 5, 2018

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office
On July 2, 2018, the Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B Premium Payment was submitted to
the Business Committee Support Office by Linda S. Dallas and has since been verified by the
Oneida Trust Enrollment Department. On July 25, 2018, the Oneida Business Committee
(“OBC™) accepted the verified petition and requested that the Legislative Reference Office
complete a statement of effect within sixty (60) days.

The purpose of this Petition is for the General Tribal Council (“GTC”) to decide whether the
“Oneida Nation of Wisconsin shall pay for the Medicare Part B monthly premium payments for
all Oneida enrolled Tribal members eligible to receive Medicare Part B. Oneida enrolled
members eligible to have their Medicare Part B monthly premium payment paid by way of a
Medicare Savings Program, per the Medicare Savings Program income limits, assets, etc.
requirements, shall be required to apply for and maintain this benefit as a condition of the
Oneida Nation reimbursing the Medicare Part B monthly premium payment for as long as they
are income/asset eligible to receive the benefit from the state or federal government. The Oneida
Nation shall reimburse the Oneida enrolled member on a monthly basis the first week of each
month following the Medicare Part B monthly premium being deducted from their monthly social
security payment. This shall begin to be budgeted for FY2018-2019 and fully implemented over a
one (1) year period, with very low income Medicare Part B recipients having top priority, then
low income, etc.”

All applicable laws and policies of the Nation were reviewed in developing this statement of
effect, including the Oneida Nation Constitution (“Constitution”) and the Budget Management
and Control law (“Law”).

Article 1V, Section 1 of the Constitution grants the GTC power to “manage all economic affairs
and enterprises of the Oneida Nation” and to “promulgate and enforce ordinances . . . providing
for the . . . appropriation of available tribal funds for public purposes. . . .” [Oneida Nation
Constitution Article 1V Section 1(e) and (f)]. Subject to its review, the GTC has delegated the
authority set forth in Article IV of the Constitution to the OBC.

Page 10f3
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



13 of 147

The Law, adopted by the OBC through resolution BC-02-08-17-C, sets forth the processes that
the OBC, Oneida fund units, executive managers and managers must follow when preparing the
Nation’s budget for consideration by the GTC. [1 O.C. 121.1-1]. This includes that community
input budget meetings occur before a budget is developed so that community members are given
an opportunity to provide input as to what should be included in the upcoming fiscal year budget;
that the Chief Financial Officer (“CFQO”) and any other relevant managers provide responses
and/or recommendations to all comments and considerations presented at the meetings; and that
the Nation’s Treasurer work with the CFO to place a community budget input meeting packet on
the OBC agenda no later than the last OBC Meeting in January. [1 O.C. 121-5-2(c) and (d)].

The Law also requires that the Nation’s Treasurer hold, at a minimum, two (2) community
informational meetings to present the contents of the budget after the OBC has approved the
final draft budget, but before the final draft budget has been presented to the GTC. [1 O.C.
121.5-8]. After the informational meetings, the OBC is then required to present the budget to the
GTC with a request for adoption by resolution no later than September 30th of each year unless
good cause exists to extend the deadline. [1 O.C. 121.5-9 and 121.5-1].

Although the Law provides opportunities for members of the community to provide input at
various community budget meetings throughout the budgetary process, the Law does not address
how GTC petitions, such as the Petition at issue, or directives regarding budgetary concerns
affect the budgetary process provided for in the Law. Nor does the Petition identify where the
funding for the Nation’s proposed payment of an eligible enrolled member of the Nation’s
Medicare Part B monthly premium is to come from.

On February 28, 2018, the OBC determined that good cause existed under the Law to extend the
budgetary deadlines. The OBC took action through resolution BC-02-28-18-C entitled,
“Extension of Time for Implementation of Budget Management and Control Act”, to extend the
deadlines so that adequate input from community budget meetings and responses and/or
recommendations from the Chief Financial Officer and fund unit managers could be obtained. [1
0.C. 121.5-1].

In accordance with resolution BC-02-28-18-C, the OBC has scheduled a Special General Tribal
Council Meeting for September 24, 2018 to: (1) inform the GTC of Triennial Strategic Plans; (2)
seek approval of the Transparent and Participatory Budget Strategy; and (3) garner input from
Oneida membership to help set priorities for the Oneida Nation in accordance with Section
1231.5-3 of the Law. In accordance with resolution BC-02-28-18-C, the OBC also adopted
resolution 08-08-18-A entitled, “Continuing Budget Resolution — Fiscal Year 2019, to remain
in effect until all requirements of the Budget Management and Control law are met for fiscal year
2019. Itis not anticipated that the fiscal year 2019 budget would be adopted by October 1, 2018.

Conclusion
Adoption of the Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B Premium Payment would not result in a
legislative impact on any current laws of the Nation so long as the procedures contained in the
Budget Management and Control law are followed.

7\
DRI

Page 2 of 3 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



14 of 147

Requested Action
Accept the Petition: L. Dallas — Medicare Part B Premium Payment statement of effect.

N
LHHKHHE

Page 3 of 3 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ON EIDA



15 of 147

Oneida Nation 7~ \
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

- - - PO -Box 365 + Oneida, Vglnifﬁisfs:zii ONEID A
Legislative Operating Committee
September 5, 2018

General Tribal Council Meetings Law

Submission Date: 9/6/17 Public Meetings: n/a
LOC Sponsor: Daniel Guzman King Emergency El?acted: n/a
Expires: n/a

Summary: This item was carried over into the current term by the LOC. This proposal is for a
new law to govern the scheduling and conducting of GTC meetings, including: a standard agenda
format and a code of conduct for those in attendance; outlining the duties of those preparing and
assisting with GTC meetings, and establishing how petitions would be processed.

9/6/17 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add GTC Meetings Law to the active files with Daniel
Guzman King as the sponsor; seconded by Ernest Stevens I11. Motion carried unanimously.

9/6/17: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens Ill, Daniel
Guzman King, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Candice Skenandore, Maureen Perkins,
Tani Thurner, Cathy Bachhuber. Drafting attorney provided an update on the status of the
GTC meetings law. Next steps will be: 1) pull the current draft back, 2) conduct work
meetings with the LOC for policy determinations, 3) collaborate with the Oneida Nation
Secretary, and 4) conduct community outreach to garner input.

9/21/17: Work Meeting. Present: Daniel Guzman King, Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Maureen
Perkins, Chantre’ Smith. The purpose of this work meeting was to develop a plan for
outreach to the community regarding the GTC Meetings law.

9/22/17: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Melissa Nuthals, Jennifer Falck. The purpose of
this meeting was to discuss the development of survey questions for GTC Meetings law.

9/28/17: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Maureen Perkins, Jennifer
Webster, David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens, Daniel Guzman King, Lisa
Liggins, Melinda Danforth. Discussed the survey, and made revisions. Discussed the
upcoming community meeting and how the LOC envisioned it would be run. The survey
and community meeting notice will be updated based on today’s conversation.

10/16/17: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of
this work meeting was to review potential questions for discussion during the community
meeting, and formulate a plan for how the community meeting will be run. A memorandum
containing a schedule and discussion questions will be sent to the LOC for review.

10/23/17: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Candice Skenandore, Maureen
Perkins, David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens 11, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer
Webster. The purpose of this meeting is to prep for the GTC Meetings law community
meeting that will occur that evening from 5:00-7:00p.m. During this meeting we will review
the topics of conversation for the community meeting.

Community Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Candice Skenandore,
Maureen Perkins, David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens 11, Daniel Guzman King,

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
Page1of3



16 of 147

Jennifer Webster and various members of the community. The purpose of the community
meeting was to collect comments and ideas from the community regarding GTC Meetings
and a potential law.

11/1/17 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen approve the 60 day active files list update and continue
development of all the items on the active files list; seconded by Ernie Stevens Ill. Motion
carried unanimously.

11/15/17: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Maureen Perkins, David P.
Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens I, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Webster. The
LOC reviewed all comments collected from the survey and 10/23/17 community meeting
and began making policy determinations regarding what issues should be addressed in a
GTC Meetings law. The drafter will begin working on a draft that reflects decisions made
during the meeting.

12/6/17LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to approve the GTC Meeting Law status update for the January
28, 2018 GTC Annual Meeting with one addition; add a web link to the update so that
readers can access the full GTC Meetings Law Survey Report; including the Facebook,
Oneida Nation Page, LOC Page, and Oneida Register and forward to the Secretary’s Office

to be included in the meeting packet; seconded by Ernest Stevens IlIl. Motion carried
unanimously.
12/28/17: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Owen Somers, Katsitsiyo

Danforth, Dakota House, Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this meeting
was to go over the portions of the draft of the law that involved Internal Security and discuss
their impressions, concerns, and suggestions. Drafting attorney will review and incorporate
suggestions into draft, and bring all concerns and suggestions to the LOC.

1/4/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Jennifer Falck, Lisa Summers, Lisa Liggins,
Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this meeting was to go the law with the
Secretary and discuss her impressions, concerns, and suggestions. Drafting attorney will
review and incorporate suggestions into draft, and bring all concerns and suggestions to the
LOC.

1/26/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel Guzman,
Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins, Cathy Bachhuber.
The LOC reviewed and discussed the first draft of the GTC Meetings law. The drafting
attorney will make revisions to the law based on the LOC’s decisions.

2/21/18LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the LRO to complete a legislative analysis; seconded
by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

3/16/18: Work Meeting: Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman, Ernest Stevens
111, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Cathy Bachhuber, Rosa Laster. LOC reviewed the
GTC Meetings Law Update that is included in the March 19, 2018, GTC meeting agenda
materials, and are prepared to discussed the matter at the GTC meeting.

3/26/17: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Clorissa Santiago, Maureen Perkins. The purpose
of this meeting was to review the draft analysis. Analyst will make revisions to analysis.
4/25/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Maureen Perkins, Jennifer Falck. LRO staff met

to review and discuss the legislative analysis.

5/2/18 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to accept the legislative analysis and defer to a work meeting;
seconded by Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried unanimously.

5/4/18: Work Meeting: Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck,
Clorissa Santiago, Laura Laitinen-Warren, Cathy Bachhuber, Maureen Perkins, Brandon
Wisneski, Ed Delgado. The LOC reviewed the legislative analysis and made| poli

considerations. Drafting attorney will schedule a work meeting o review BRJIC Y.
ONEIDA

Page 2 of 3



5/11/18:

7/11/18:

7/12/18:

8/6/18:

8/15/18:

Next Steps:

17 of 147

Work Meeting: Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel Guzman,
Ernest Stevens I1l, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Maureen Perkins.
The purpose of this work meeting was to review and prepare for the update on the GTC
Meetings law that is included on the agenda for the May 12, 2018 GTC meeting.

Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago,
Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this work meeting was to review comments that were
received from Chairman Tehassi Hill, and to discuss decisions that still need to be made, and
potential areas in the law that need to be reviewed.

Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman, Ernie Stevens I11, Jennifer Falck,
Clorissa Santiago, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss
potential next steps to moving the law forward.

Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel Guzman,
Ernie Stevens 11, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Kristen Hooker, Maureen Perkins. The
purpose of this work meeting was for the LOC to decide how to move this legislative
forward.

Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Falck,
Clorissa Santiago, Kristen Hooker. The purpose of this work meeting was to review
decisions the Oneida Business Committee made regarding the GTC Meetings law in an
August 14, 2018, work session, and determine next steps moving forward.

= Remove the General Tribal Council Meetings law from the Active Files List.
= Forward the memorandum to the Oneida Business Committee.

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.

Page 3 of 3

7\
DRI

ONEIDA



18 of 147

Oneida Nation

Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 ¢ Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 | ONEIDA

Oneida-nsn.gov

TO: Oneida Business Committee Officers:
Tehassi Hill, Oneida Business Committee Chairman
Brandon Stevens, Oneida Business Committee Vice-Chairman
Lisa Summers, Oneida Business Committee Secretary

Patricia King, Oneida Business Committee Treasurer O(
FROM: David P. Jordan, Legislative Operating Committee Chairman
DATE: September 5, 2018
RE; General Tribal Council Meetings Law

On September 6, 2017, the Legislative Operating Committee added a proposal for a General
Tribal Council Meetings law to the Active Files List. This legislative item was carried over from
the past two Legislative Operating Committee terms. The intent of this law was to govern the
scheduling and conducting of General Tribal Council meetings, including a standard agenda
format and a code of conduct for those in attendance, outlining the duties of those preparing and
assisting with General Tribal Council meetings, and establishing how petitions would be
processed.

After consideration, the Legislative Operating Committee decided to take action to remove the
proposed General Tribal Council Meetings law from the Active Files List on September 5, 2018.
The General Tribal Council Meetings law has been removed from the Active Files List in an
effort to focus on other legislative priorities of the Nation. The Legislative Operating Committee
has determined that solutions to issues and concerns regarding General Tribal Council meetings
and procedures can be sought through non-legislative means.

Requested Action )
Accept this memorandum as an update.

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
Page 1 of 1



19 of 147

Oneida Nation 7~ \
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

- - - PO -Box 365 + Oneida, Vglnifﬁisfs:zii ONEID A
Legislative Operating Committee
September 5, 2018

Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees and Commissions
Amendments

Submission Date: 9/6/17 Public Meetings: 6/21/18

LOC Sponsor: Jennifer Webster Emergéncy Enacted: n/a
Xpires: n/a

Summary: This item was carried over from the last two terms. Amendments were originally
requested to: prohibit individuals from serving on multiple boards, committees and commissions at
one time; set term limits; and prohibit Tribal employees from serving on tribal boards, committees
and commissions.

9/6/17 LOC: Motion by Jennifer Webster to add Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees,
and Commissions Amendments to the active files list with Jennifer Webster as the sponsor;
seconded by Ernest Stevens I11. Motion carried unanimously.

9/6/17: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens IllI, Jennifer
Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Candice Skenandore, Maureen Perkins, Tani Thurner, Cathy
Bachhuber. Drafting attorney provided an update on the status of Comprehensive Policy
Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions amendments. Next steps will be: 1) pull
the current draft back, 2) have work meetings with LOC for policy determinations, 3)
conduct work meetings with boards, committees and commissions for input.

9/21/17: Work Meeting. Present: Jennifer Webster, Clorissa Santiago, Candice Skenandore, Jennifer
Falck, Daniel Guzman King, Chad Wilson, Carol Silva, Gene Danforth, Mary Ann
Krueheleg, Dakota Webster, Bonnie Pigman, Louis Powless, Lois Strong, Patricia Lassila,
Raquel Hill, Laura Manthe, Lee Cornelius, Chaz Wheelock, Carol EIm. The purpose of this
meeting was to collect input from members of boards, committees, and commissions on how
to improve the currently effective law. Written comments will be accepted until October 11,
2017, and then all information will be compiled and brought back to the LOC.

10/2/17: Work Meeting. Present: Jennifer Webster, Clorissa Santiago, Candice Skenandore, Lee
Cornelius, Stephen Webster, Brooke Doxtator. The purpose of this meeting was to collect
input from the Oneida Nation Secretary’s Office, and the Business Committee Support
Office on how to improve the currently effective law.

10/27/17: Work Meeting. Present: Kirby Metoxen, Jennifer Webster, Cathy Bachhuber, Jennifer
Falck, Daniel Guzman King, Candice Skenandore, Clorissa Santiago, Rosa Laster, Rae
Skenandore. The purpose of this meeting was to go through the comments/suggestions
collected from the boards, committees and commissions; BC Support Office and previous
drafts to make policy considerations for the new proposed draft.

Page1ofy4 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



20 of 147

11/1/17 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen approve the 60 day active files list update and continue
development of all the items on the active files list; seconded by Ernie Stevens Ill. Motion
carried unanimously.

Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens IlI, Clorissa
Santiago, Candice Skenandore, Jennifer Falck, Maureen Perkins, Rae Skenandore. The
purpose of this meeting was to continue going through the comments/suggestions collected
from the boards, committees and commissions; BC Support Office and previous drafts to
make policy considerations for the new proposed draft.

2/2/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Kirby
Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Rosa Laster, Cathy
Bachhuber. The LOC reviewed and discussed the first draft. Drafting attorney will update
law to reflect revisions discussed. A LOC work meeting to discuss stipends will be
scheduled, as well as a work meeting with all boards, committees, and commissions to
review first draft.

2/15/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens Ill, Daniel
Guzman King, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Rosa Laster, Cathy
Bachhuber. The purpose of this meeting was to go over the current reality of stipends, and
discuss how the LOC wants to proceed with stipends in the future, so that the resolution
containing stipend information can be drafted. The conversation on stipends in regards to
hearings will be continued at another work meeting, and the drafting attorney will begin
drafting the resolution.

2/22/18: Work Meeting. Present: Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King, Jennifer Falck , Clorissa
Santiago, Dale Webster, Lois Strong, John Breuninger, Floyd Hill, Bonnie Pigman, Matt W.
Denny, Vicki Cornelius, Raw Skenandore, Carol Silva, Brooke Doxtator, Carol L. Elm,
Mark Powless, Dylan Benton, Maureen Perkins. The purpose of this meeting was to go over
the members of the various boards, committees, and commissions opinion, comments,
concerns, and suggestions on the proposed drafted amendments. The drafting attorney will
take all comments and suggestions to the LOC for review and consideration.

3/2/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Kirby Metoxen, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon
Wisneski, Laura Laitinen-Warren, Lisa Summers. The LOC reviewed and considered all
comments received from the boards, committees, and commissions. The drafting attorney
will make all revisions the LOC determined were necessary.

3/16/18: Work Meeting: Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman, Ernest Stevens
111, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Cathy Bachhuber, Rosa Laster. LOC reviewed
revisions made based on the last LOC work session and directed changes be made, and that
the draft be e-polled on March 21, 2018, so that the LOC may direct that the legislative
analysis be completed.

3/21/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Brooke Doxtator, Tony
Doxtator, Victoria Krueger. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss the
requirement in the current draft that all BCC members have an official Oneida email, that is
different than their employee email address, if applicable. The goal was to obtain an IT
perspective on this issue from MIS, and to discuss the realities, challenges, and timelines
this requirement will result in. The group will meet again to discuss this issue in a couple
weeks, once the various MIS departments have an opportunity to meet further.

4/2/18 LOC: Motion by Daniel Guzman King to accept the draft of the Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees, and Commissions amendments and direct that a legislative analysis be
completed; seconded by Jennifer Webster Motion Carried unanimously.

7\
DRI

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
Page 2 of 4 ONEIDA



21 of 147

4/11/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Brooke Doxtator, Tony
Doxtator, Stephen Webster, James Sommerfeldt, Jesse Kujawa, Chad Mrotek. The purpose
of this work meeting was to discuss the questions and concerns regarding the provision of
the law that says an email address must be provided to every BCC member, and discussion
on how to implement this matter.

4/25/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer Falck. LRO staff met
to review and discuss the legislative analysis.

5/2/18 LOC: Motion by Ernest Stevens |11 to accept the legislative analysis and defer to a work meeting;
seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried.

5/2/18: Work Meeting. Present: Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer Falck, David P.
Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens I1l. The LOC reviewed the legislative analysis and
made policy considerations that the drafting attorney will now incorporate into the draft.

5/16/18 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the public meeting packet and forward the
Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions amendments to a
public meeting to be held on June 21, 2018; seconded by Daniel Guzman King. Motion
carried unanimously.

Subsequent motion by Kirby Metoxen to forward the Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees, and Commission amendments to the Finance Office for a fiscal
analysis; seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

6/6/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens Il1, Jennifer
Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was to have
the LOC review and discuss the drafted resolution determining stipend amounts for
members of boards, committees, and commissions, and to determine a definition for stipends
to be included in the law.

6/20/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens IlI, Kirby
Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work
meeting was to review and prepare for the upcoming public meeting.

6/21/18: Public Meeting was held.
6/28/18: Public Comment Period Closed.

7/18/18 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to accept the public meeting comments and the public meeting
comment review memorandum and defer the item to a work meeting; seconded by Ernest
Stevens I11. Motion carried unanimously.

7/18/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Ernest Stevens Ill, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel
Guzman, Brandon Stevens, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The
purpose of this work meeting was to review and consider all public meeting comments, and
determine what revisions are necessary to the draft.

8/13/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Clorissa
Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Kristen Hooker, Laura Laitinen-Warren, Maureen Perkins. The
purpose of this work meeting was to address a recent request for an amendment to the Law,
and determine if this change should be made before adoption is considered.

8/15/18 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to approve the public meeting memo for the amendments to the
Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions and defer the
adoption packet until a fiscal impact statement is received from the Finance Office;
seconded by Jennifer Webster. Motion carried unanimously.

7\
DRI

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
Page 3 of 4 ONElDA



22 of 147

Next Steps:
= Approve the adoption packet for the amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees, and Commissions and forward to the Oneida Business Committee for
consideration.

7\
LOOHHE

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
Page 4 of 4 ONEIDA



23 of 147

‘Oneida Nation

Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 ¢ Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 l ONEIDA

Oneida-nsn.gov

TO: Oneida Business Committee

FROM: David P. Jordan, LOC Chairperson PJ

DATE: September 12, 2018

RE: Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and
Commissions

Please find the following attached backup documentation for your consideration of the
amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions:

1. Resolution: Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing, Boards, Committees,
and Commission

2. Statement of Effect: Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing, Boards,
Committees, and Commission

3. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions Amendments

Legislative Analysis

4. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions Amendments
(Redline)

5. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions Amendments
(Clean)

6. Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions Amendments
Fiscal Impact Statement

Overview

This resolution adopts proposed amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees, and Commissions. The amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees, and Commissions will:

» Amend the name of this law from “Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees,A and Commissions” to “Boards, Committees, and Commissions law;”

» Provide guidelines for the creation of a board, committee, or commission [/ O.C. 105.4];

= Update the information required to be included on an application and the process for
submitting an application /7 O.C. 105.5];

= Revise how vacancies on a board, committee, and commission are handled, and allow for
an individual to remain in office until the member’s successor has been sworn in by the
Oneida Business Committee in an effort to prevent a discontinuation of business or a loss
of quorum for the entity /7 O.C. 105.6];

= Update the appointment selection process to provide for more efficient and effective
selections /1 O.C. 105.7],

Page 1 of 3
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



24 of 147

= Require that oaths of office be taken at Oneida Business Committee meeting and update
the oath of office /1 O.C. 105.9],

= Expand the information that boards, committees, and commissions are required to include
in their bylaws /1 O.C. 105.10],

= Provide a process for electronic polling, if a board, committee, or commission decides to
use electronic polling /1 O.C. 105.11],

=  Expand the reporting requirements of boards, committees, and commissions to include
requirements regarding standard operating procedures, quarterly reports to the Oneida
Business Committee, and annual and semi-annual reports to the General Tribal Council
[10.C. 105.12],

»  Provide detailed information on what stipends or compensation is available for members
of boards, committees, and commissions, and state that Oneida Business Committee shall
set specific stipend amounts by resolution /1 O.C. 105.13];

=  Address how confidential information is handled by boards, committees, and
commissions, including the addition of a requirement for board, committee, and
commission members to be provided an official Oneida e-mail address to conduct
business of the board, committee, and commission on /7 O.C. 105.14];

= Simplify the information provided in the law regarding conflicts of interest clarify that
due to the potential for a real or perceived conflict of interest to exist, political appointees
shall not serve on an appointed or elected board, committee, or commission [/ O.C.
105.15];

= Require that the dissolution of a board, committee, or commission be noticed to the
board, committee, or commission /7 O.C. 105.17]; and

= Provide greater detail on how violations of this law may be enforced /7 O.C. 105.18].

Additional minor changes are made to the draft to update the language and ensure compliance
with drafting style and formatting requirements.

Throughout the development of the amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees, and Commissions the Legislative Operating Committee has focused on
improving collaboration and public outreach.

The Legislative Operating Committee held two (2) work meetings specifically for all boards,
committees, and commissions of the Nation to attend for the purpose of sharing ideas and
concerns regarding the law. Twelve (12) of the eighteen (18) boards, committees, and
commissions of the Nation participated during the legislative process and provided valuable
input that was used in the development of the amendments. The boards, committees, and
commissions that participated in the legislative process included: Environmental Resource
Board, Oneida Police Commission, Oneida Nation Commission on Aging, Oneida Nation School
Board, Oneida Election Board, Oneida Land Claims Commission, Oneida Trust Enrollment
Committee, Oneida Veterans Affairs Committee, Oneida Gaming Commission, Oneida Pow-
wow Committee, Oneida Land Commission, Oneida Library Board.

o\
THHHHHE-

Page 2 of 3 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



25 of 147

The Legislative Operating Committee held additional work meetings with the Business
Committee Support Office, Records Management Department, and the Management Information
System Department.

In accordance with the Legislative Procedures Act, a public meeting on the proposed
amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions
was held on June 21, 2018. Thirteen (13) people attended the public meeting with eight (8)
people providing oral comments. The public comment period closed on June 28, 2018. The
Legislative Operating Committee received two (2) submissions of written comments during the
public comment period. All comments public comments received were accepted, reviewed, and
considered by the Legislative Operating Committee on July 18, 2018. Any changes made based
on those comments have been incorporated into this draft.

Overall, two hundred and eighty one (281) comments were collected from those individuals
directly impacted by the amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees, through various work meetings, the public meeting, and the public comment period.

Requested Action
Approve the Resolution: Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing, Boards,
Committees, and Commission.

oS
{HHHKHE

Page 3 of 3 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



e
RPOOWONOUTRWNE

Phone: (920)869-2214

26 of 147

Oneida Nation

Post Office Box 365

i

Oneida, W1 54155

BC Resolution #

Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe
recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and

the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and

the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1,
of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and

the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions (“the Law”)
was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee through resolution BC-05-14-97-F and
amended by resolutions BC-09-27-06-E, and BC-09-22-10-C; and

the purpose of the Law is to govern boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation,
including the procedures regarding the appointment and election of persons to boards,
committees and commissions, creation of bylaws, maintenance of official records,
compensation, and other items related to boards, committees and commissions; and

the amendments to this Law change the name from “Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees, and Commissions” to “Boards, Committees, and Commissions law”;
and

the amendments to this Law provide guidelines for the creation of a board, committee, or
commission; and

the amendments to this Law update the information required to be included on an
application and the process for submitting an application; and

the amendments to this Law revise how vacancies on a board, committee, and
commission are handled, and allow for an individual to remain in office until the member’s
successor has been sworn in by the Oneida Business Committee in an effort to prevent a
discontinuation of business or a loss of quorum for the entity; and

the amendments to this Law update the appointment selection process to provide for
more efficient and effective selections; and

the amendments to this Law require that oaths of office be taken at Oneida Business
Committee meeting, and provide for an updated oath of office; and

the amendments to this Law expand the information that boards, committees, and
commissions are required to include in their bylaws; and



WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

27 of 147

BC Resolution #
Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions
Page 2 of 3

the amendments to this Law provide a process for electronic polling, if a board,
committee, or commission decides to use electronic polling; and

the amendments to this Law expand the reporting requirements of boards, committees,
and commissions to include requirements regarding standard operating procedures,
quarterly reports to the Oneida Business Committee, and annual and semi-annual reports
to the General Tribal Council; and

the amendments to this Law provide detailed information on what stipends or
compensation is available for members of boards, committees, and commissions, and
state that Oneida Business Committee shall set specific stipend amounts by resolution;
and

the amendments to this Law address how confidential information is handled by boards,
committees, and commissions, including the addition of a requirement for board,
committee, and commission members to be provided an official Oneida e-mail address to
conduct business of the board, committee, and commission on; and

the amendments to this Law simplify the information provided in the law regarding
conflicts of interest and clarify that due to the potential for a real or perceived conflict of
interest to exist, political appointees shall not serve on an appointed or elected board,
committee, or commission; and

the amendments to this Law provide additional notice requirements for the dissolution of
a board, committee, or commission; and

the amendments to this Law provide greater detail on how violations of this Law may be
enforced; and

the amendments to this Law make other minor drafting revisions and updates; and
a public meeting on the proposed amendments to this Law was held on June 21, 2018, in

accordance with the Legislative Procedures Act, and the public comments were reviewed
and accepted by the Legislative Operating Committee on July 18, 2018 ; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oneida Business Committee sets forth the following in
regards to the implementation of this resolution:

1.

Informational Bylaws Meetings. Section 105.10-1(a) of the Law requires that all existing boards,
committees, and commissions of the Nation comply with the bylaw format prescribed in the Law
and present bylaws for adoption within a reasonable time after adoption of this Law. Within thirty
(30) days, the Legislative Reference Office shall provide at least two (2) informational bylaw
meetings with the various boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation. The purpose of
the informational bylaws meetings will be for the Legislative Reference Office to:

a.

b.
c.

provide an update on the revised bylaw requirements as a result of the amendments to
the Law;

provide a template for the development of revised bylaws; and

offer assistance to boards, committees, and commissions in the development and
drafting of updated bylaws.

Official Oneida Nation E-Mail Addresses. Section 105.14-3 of the Law requires that each
member of a board, committee, or commission be provided an official Oneida e-mail address
upon election or appointment for the purpose of conducting business of the entity electronically.



28 of 147

BC Resolution #
Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions

Page 3 of 3

96 The Management Information System Department shall have six (6) months from the adoption of

97 the Fiscal Year 2019 budget to provide an official email address to all members of a board,

98 committee, or commission of the Nation.

99 3. Oneida Business Committee’s Political Appointees. Due to the potential for a real or perceived
100 conflict of interest to exist, section 105.15-3 of this Law requires that an individual who serves as
101 a political appointee to an Oneida Business Committee member shall not simultaneously serve
102 on an appointed or elected board, committee, or commission.

103 a. Current Political Appointees on Elected Boards, Committees, and Commissions. All
104 political appointees of the Oneida Business Committee that are currently simultaneously
105 serving on an elected board, committee, or commission of the Nation shall be allowed to
106 complete his or her term.

107 b. Political Appointee Job Descriptions. The Nation’s Human Resources Department shall
108 update the job descriptions for Oneida Business Committee political appointee positions
109 to include a reference to the requirement that a political appointee of an Oneida Business
110 Committee member shall forgo serving on an elected or appointed board, committee, or
111 commission of the Nation.

112

113 BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that the amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
114  Committees, and Commissions are hereby adopted and shall be effective September 26, 2018.

115

116



29 of 147

Oneida Nation 7~ \
Oneida Business Committee m

Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, WI 54155-0365 E I DA
Oneida-nsn.gov

Statement of Effect
Amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions

Summary
This resolution adopts amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees, and Commissions.

Submitted by: Clorissa N. Santiago, Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office
Date: September 5, 2018

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office

The Legislative Procedures Act (“the LPA”) was adopted by the General Tribal Council through
resolution GTC-01-07-13-A for the purpose of providing a process for the adoption of laws of
the Nation. [1 O.C. 109.1-1]. This resolution adopts amendments to the Comprehensive Policy
Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions, which comply with all processes and
procedures required by the LPA, including the development of a legislative analysis, a fiscal
analysis, and the opportunity for public review during a public meeting and public comment
period. [1 O.C. 109.6, 109.7, 109.8].

The Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions was adopted by
the Oneida Business Committee for the purpose of governing boards, committees, and
commissions of the Nation, including the procedures regarding the appointment and election of
persons to boards, committees and commissions, creation of bylaws, maintenance of official
records, compensation, and other items related to boards, committees and commissions. [1 O.C.
105.1-1].

The amendments to the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and
Commissions will:
= Amend the name of this law from “Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,

Committees, and Commissions” to “Boards, Committees, and Commissions law;”

= Provide guidelines for the creation of a board, committee, or commission [1 O.C. 105.4];

= Update the information required to be included on an application and the process for
submitting an application [1 O.C. 105.5];

= Revise how vacancies on a board, committee, and commission are handled, and allow for
an individual to remain in office until the member’s successor has been sworn in by the
Oneida Business Committee in an effort to prevent a discontinuation of business or a loss
of quorum for the entity [1 O.C. 105.6];

= Update the appointment selection process to provide for more efficient and effective
selections [1 O.C. 105.7];

= Require that oaths of office be taken at Oneida Business Committee meeting and update
the oath of office [1 O.C. 105.9];

Page 10f2
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



30 of 147

= Expand the information that boards, committees, and commissions are required to include
in their bylaws [1 O.C. 105.10];

= Provide a process for electronic polling, if a board, committee, or commission decides to
use electronic polling [1 O.C. 105.11];

= Expand the reporting requirements of boards, committees, and commissions to include
requirements regarding standard operating procedures, quarterly reports to the Oneida
Business Committee, and annual and semi-annual reports to the General Tribal Council
[1O.C. 105.12];

= Provide detailed information on what stipends or compensation is available for members
of boards, committees, and commissions, and state that Oneida Business Committee shall
set specific stipend amounts by resolution [1 O.C. 105.13];

= Address how confidential information is handled by boards, committees, and
commissions, including the addition of a requirement for board, committee, and
commission members to be provided an official Oneida e-mail address to conduct
business of the board, committee, and commission on [1 O.C. 105.14];

= Simplify the information provided in the law regarding conflicts of interest clarify that
due to the potential for a real or perceived conflict of interest to exist, political appointees
shall not serve on an appointed or elected board, committee, or commission [1 O.C.
105.15];

= Require that the dissolution of a board, committee, or commission be noticed to the
board, committee, or commission [1 O.C. 105.17]; and

= Provide greater detail on how violations of this law may be enforced [1 O.C. 105.18].

Additional minor changes are made to the draft to update the language and ensure compliance
with drafting style and formatting requirements.

In accordance with the LPA, a public meeting on the proposed amendments to the
Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions was held on June 21,
2018. Thirteen (13) people attended the public meeting with eight (8) people providing oral
comments. The public comment period closed on June 28, 2018. The Legislative Operating
Committee received two (2) submissions of written comments during the public comment
period. All comments public comments received were accepted, reviewed, and considered by the
Legislative Operating Committee on July 18, 2018. Any changes made based on those comments
have been incorporated into this draft.

Conclusion
Adoption of this resolution would not conflict with any of the Nation’s laws.

7\
DRI

Page 2 of 2 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire. ONEIDA



H W N -

31 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)

2018 09 12

Amendments to Comprehensive Policy on
Boards, Committees and Commissions
Legislative Analysis

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

REQUESTER:

LOC

Intent of the
Amendments

SPONSOR: DRAFTER: ANALYST:
Jennifer Webster Clorissa Santiago Brandon Wisneski

When added to the Active Files list in 2013, the original intent of the amendments
was to prohibit individuals from serving on multiple boards, committees and
commissions at one time; set term limits; and prohibit Tribal employees from
serving on tribal boards, committees and commissions. Over time, the intent has
changed. The current intent of the amendments is set new standards for entity
bylaws, update reporting requirements, update the appointment process to
increase feedback from entities and BC members, set a procedure for the creation
of new entities, create a standard e-poll process, require official email addresses
for members of entities, prohibit the BC’s political appointees from serving on
entities, set new limitations and requirements for stipends, and allow the Business
Committee to set stipend amounts by resolution, among other changes.

Purpose

To govern the procedures regarding boards, committees and commissions of the
Nation, including appointment and election, creation of bylaws, maintenance of
official records, and compensation. [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1
0.C. 105.1-1]

Affected Entities

Anyone serving on a Board, Committee or Commission of the Nation. Anyone
applying to serve on a Board, Committee, or Commission of the Nation. Political
appointees, such as legislative assistants. This law references the duties of the
Business Committee Support Office, the Nation’s Secretary, the Nation’s
Chairperson, the Oneida Election Board, Management Information Service (MIS)
Department, and Records Management Department. This law does not apply to
the Oneida Business Committee, Standing Committees or Tribal corporations.

Affected
Legislation

Election law, Removal law, Conflict of Interest law, Code of Ethics, Computer
Resources Ordinance, Social Media Policy, Travel and Expense Policy, Oneida
Nation Gaming Ordinance, and bylaws of all boards, committees and
commissions of the Nation.

Enforcement/Due
Process

A member of an entity that violates this law may be subject to sanctions and
penalties in accordance with any laws and policies of the Nation governing
sanctions and penalties. A member of an elected entity may be subject to removal
pursuant to the Removal Law. A member of an appointed entity may be subject to
termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee. [see Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.17]

Public Meeting

A public meeting was held on June 21, 2018.

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT

A. The Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions was first adopted by
the Oneida Business Committee on August 2, 1995, and was most recently amended by the Business
Committee on September 27, 2006.

Page 1 of 15




O 0 N O U

10
11
12
13
14

15
16
17
18

19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36

32 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

B. These amendments set new standards for entity bylaws, update reporting requirements, update the

appointment process to increase feedback from entities and BC members, set a procedure for the
creation of new entities, create a standard e-poll process, require official email addresses for members
of entities, prohibit the BC’s political appointees from serving on entities, set new limitations and
requirements for stipends, and allow the Business Committee to set stipend amounts by resolution,
among other changes.

. The following chart lists the Boards, Committees and Commissions of the Nation that are governed

by this law. This law does not apply to the Oneida Business Committee, Standing Committees of the
Nation, or Tribal Corporations.

ELECTED APPOINTED

= Oneida Election Board = Anna John Resident Centered Care Community

= Oneida Gaming Commission Board (AJRCC)

= Oneida Land Claims Commission Environmental Resource Board (ERB)

= Oneida Land Commission Oneida Community Library Board

= Oneida Nation Commission on Oneida Nation Arts Board
Aging (ONCOA) Oneida Police Commission

= Oneida Nation School Board Oneida Pow Wow Committee

= Trust Enrollment Committee Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee
(ONVAC)

= Pardon and Screening Forgiveness Committee

= Personnel Selection Committee*

= Southeastern WI Oneida Tribal Services
Advisory Board (SEOTS)

*Note: On August 27, 2018, GTC rescinded the dissolution of the Personnel Commission. It is

expected that the re-established Personnel Commission will be subject to this law.

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH

A. The Business Committee Support Office, Records Management, Management Information Services

(MIS) Department and representatives from the following Boards, Committees and Commissions
were consulted in the development of this law: Environmental Resource Board, Police Commission,
Oneida Nation Commission on Aging, Oneida Nation School Board, Oneida Election Board, Oneida
Land Claims Commission, Trust Enrollment Committee, Oneida Veterans Affairs Committee,
Gaming Commission, Pow-wow Committee, Land Commission, Oneida Library Board. All boards,
committees and commissions were invited to participate in two work meetings scheduled outside of
normal business hours to meet their needs.

. The Election Law, Removal Law, Conflict of Interest Law, Code of Ethics, Computer Resources

Ordinance, Social Media Policy, Travel and Expense Policy, and Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance
were reviewed in drafting this analysis. In addition, the following bylaws were reviewed: Oneida
Election Board, Oneida Land Claims Commission, Oneida Land Commission, ONCOA, Oneida
Nation School Board, Trust Enrollment Committee, Anna John Resident Centered Care Community
Board, Finance Committee, Arts Board, Audit Committee, Environmental Resource Board, Oneida
Community Library Board, ONVAC, Pardon and Forgiveness Screening Committee, Police
Commission, Pow-wow Committee and Southeastern WI Oneida Tribal Services Advisory Board
(SEQTS).

Page 2 of 15



37

38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65

66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

33 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

SECTION 4. PROCESS
A. Thus far, this law has followed the process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA).

B.

The law was originally added to the Active Files List on April 3, 2013 and has been carried over from

the previous two terms. The law was re-added to the Active Files List on September 17, 2014 and

again on September 6, 2017.

At the time this legislative analysis was developed, the following work meetings were held/scheduled

regarding the most recent efforts to develop this law and legislative analysis:

= September 6, 2017: LOC work meeting.

= September 21, 2017: LOC, BC Support Office, and representatives from the following Boards,
Committees and Commissions: Election Board, Environmental Resource Board, Land Claims
Commission, Police Commission, ONCOA, and Trust Enrollment. In addition, the Oneida Nation
School Board submitted written comments.

= Qctober 2, 2017: BC Support Office

= QOctober 27, 2017: LOC work meeting.

=  February 2, 2018: LOC work meeting.

= February 22, 2018: LOC, BC Support Office, and representatives from the following Boards,
Committees and Commissions: Election Board, Gaming Commission, Land Commission, Library
Board, ONCOA, ONVAC, Police Commission, Pow-wow Committee, and Trust Enrollment. In
addition, Environmental Resource Board submitted written comments.

= March 2, 2018: LOC work meeting.

= March 21, 2018: BC Support Office and Oneida Management Information Services (MIS)

= April 11, 2018: BC Support Office and MIS

= May 2, 2018: LOC work meeting.

= June 6, 2018: LOC work meeting.

= June 20, 2018: LOC work meeting.

= July 18, 2018: LOC work meeting.

= August 13, 2018: LOC work meeting.

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION

A. Title. The title of the law has been changed from “Comprehensive Policy on Boards, Committees and

B.

C.

Commissions” to “Boards, Committees and Commissions.”

Creation of an Entity. This new provision outlines a standard procedure for the creation a new
board, committee or commission. Boards, committees or commissions must be created by adoption of
a law or resolution by the Oneida Business Committee (OBC) or General Tribal Council (GTC). The
law or resolution must include the purpose, powers and responsibilities of the entity. The Oneida
Business Committee is responsible for drafting the initial bylaws when a new entity is created. This is
because a newly created board will not have any members. Once board members are appointed, they
may revise their bylaws in accordance with this law [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1
O.C. 105.4].

Applications. The application form to serve on a board, committee or commission must be approved
by the Oneida Business Committee. The application form must include a conflict of interest
disclosure. A statement has been added to the application form explaining attendance requirements.
The intent is to ensure applicants are aware of these requirements when they apply. Application
materials will be made available in the Business Committee (BC) Support Office.

Page 3 of 15



81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124

34 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

Background Investigation Application. For entities that require a background check, an additional
application form will now be required. This background application form will include social
security number and any other information required to conduct a background investigation. The
background investigation application will not be shared with the Oneida Business Committee,
entity or Election Board. The intent is to keep this personal information separate from the main
application materials. Currently, only Oneida Gaming Commission and Oneida Police
Commission require background checks [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C.
105.5-1(b)].

Completed applications must be submitted by 4:30 p.m. on the deadline date. Applications may
be mailed as long as they are postmarked by the deadline date and received by the Business
Committee Support Office within 5 business days of the deadline [see Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.5-2].

D. Vacancies. This section describes the process for filling vacancies.

Appointments to Fill Vacancies on Elected Entities. Individuals appointed to fill a vacancy on an
elected entity will be considered an appointed official for the purposes of this law. This means
that the appointed official may have their appointment terminated by the OBC, regardless of
whether they serve on an elected board. [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C.
105.6-1].

Serve until Successor Appointed. A new provision was added to allow members to remain in
office until their successor has been sworn in. This provision was added to ensure that entities can
still maintain a quorum while they wait for new appointments to be processed [see Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.6-2(a)(1)].

Resignations. Previously, officials could resign by delivering a resignation letter to the entity’s
chairperson or by verbally resigning during a meeting. The process for resignation letters has
been changed to require officials to submit their letter to both the entity’s chairperson and to the
BC Support Office. This is to ensure that the BC Support Office is aware of resignations as soon
as they occur, so that vacancies can be posted and filled in a timely manner [see Boards,
Committees and Commissions 1 O.C. 105.6-2(d)]

Entities must notify the BC Support Office of vacancies as soon as they learn the position will
become vacant [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.6-3]. This section also
specifies when the BC Support Office must post notice of vacancies [see Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.6-4]. Notice of vacancies will be posted by the BC Support Office in all
official media outlets of the Nation, as determined by the Oneida Business Committee. This
currently includes the Kalihwisaks and the Nation’s website [see Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.6-5].

E. Appointment to an Entity. This section describes the process for appointment to an entity.

Current Process. Under current law, all applications are delivered to the Nation’s chairperson.
The chairperson selects an applicant “within a reasonable time” and the appointment is voted on
by the Oneida Business Committee. Currently, the chairperson is under no obligation to consult
with OBC members prior to making an appointment, and there is no timetable for when the
appointment must be made.

Proposed Process. In this proposed law, the appointment process has been modified to provide
individual OBC members and the entity’s chairperson an opportunity to review applications and
offer recommendations. In addition, this law requires the BC Support Office to place

Page 4 of 15



125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168

35 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

appointments on the executive session portion of the agenda for the next BC meeting, to ensure a
speedier appointment process. During executive session of the next BC meeting, all OBC
members will have an opportunity to discuss the applicants and select an appointee by consensus
[see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.7-1].

= Notification of an Appointment. After an appointment Chart 2. Appointment Comparison
is approved by the Business Committee, the Nation’s
Chairperson will notify the Secretary of the appointment. CURRENT PROPOSED
. . . APPOINTMENT APPOINTMENT
The Secretary will then notify the applicant [see Boards, PROCESS PROCESS

Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.7-2].
= Declining an Appointment. This new provision

describes how an individual can decline their polcatt Applications
. . . . pplications .
appointment before taking the oath of office. Individuals |gejivered to Nation’s delivered to all OBC

members and

can decline their appointment by delivering a letter to the chairperson entity’s chair
BC Support Office. In addition, failure to take the oath
of office within thirty (30) days of appointment will also * *
be considered declining the appointment. Oaths of office _ _
L. i . . Chairperson places BC Support Office
are administered during OBC meetings, which are held appointment on places appointment
twice monthly. Therefore, appointees will have at least | 2gendawithina on agenda of next
. . reasonable time OBC meeting
two opportunities to take the oath. In addition, a new
provision has been added later in this law to allow for v v
oaths of office by video conference. If an individual Chairperson not OBC members and
f f f . required to seek entity’s chair may
decll_nes their appomtr_ne_nt, the QBC will select another | oaC el
applicant from the original posting rather than re-post |membersor entity’s recommendations
the vacancy [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, chair prior to prior to OBC
meeting meeting
10.C. 105.7-3]. ¥ ¥

= Termination of Appointment. Appointed members,
including individuals appointed to fill vacancies on | Chairperson selects
elected entities, may have their appointment terminated | 220" 0.
by a 2/3 majority vote of the BC. Termination of at OBC meeting
appointment is final and cannot be appealed [see
Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.7-4]. 4’ 4’
F. Election to an Entity. Candidates for an elected entity must
be nominated at a caucus or petition to be placed on the
ballot. Vacancies may be filled by appointment, per each
entity’s bylaws. The election process is governed by the
Election Law [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.8].
G. Oath of Office. This section lists the oath of office and the procedure for changing the oath.
= Revised Oath. Minor revisions have been made to the wording of the oath to reflect the change
from Oneida Tribe to Oneida Nation and to make it easier to recite. Specifically, “and with the
strictest confidentiality” has been changed to “and will strictly maintain confidential
information.”
= Video Conference. A provision has been added that allows members to take their oath by video
conference with permission of the Secretary. Members of the SEOTS Board, who reside in the
Milwaukee area, are an example of members who may benefit from this provision.

In executive session,
full OBC selects
applicant together
after discussing
recommendations

OBC votes on OBC votes on
appointment appointment

Page 5 of 15



169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212

36 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

Electronic Copies. The BC Support Office may now store electronic copies of the signed oath,
rather than keep original paper copies [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.9]

H. Bylaws. Bylaws are the documents that provide a framework for the operation and management of an
entity. This law outlines the format that entities must follow for developing their bylaws. These are
the minimum requirements for what must be included. Entities may add additional information to
their bylaws if they choose. Bylaws must be organized in the following manner:

Article I: Authority. This section includes the following new provisions: Establishment, which
cites the law or resolution that established the entity. Authority, which will state the purpose of
the entity and the authority delegated to the entity. Termination or Removal, which identifies
causes for termination or removal from the entity. Trainings and Conferences, which describes
trainings and/or conferences the entity deems necessary to serve on the entity [See Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(a)].

Article 1I: Officers. This section lists the duties and responsibilities of the entity’s chairperson,
vice chairperson, and any additional officers. It also describes the procedure for selecting officers
and whether the entity has the authority to hire personnel. A new provision on budgetary and
travel sign-off authority has been added to identify which members of the entity have sign-off
authority on behalf of the entity. All travel requests must be approved by majority vote during a
meeting of the entity [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(b)].

Article I11: Meetings. This section identifies when and where regular, emergency and joint
meetings will be held and how meetings will be noticed [See Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(c)].

o Justification for Emergency Meetings. Within 72 hours of an emergency meeting, the
entity must provide the Nation’s Secretary with notice of the meeting, the reason for the
meeting, and an explanation for why the matter could not wait for a regular meeting. This
is a new provision.

o0 Joint Meetings. A new provision has been added regarding whether joint meetings will be
held between the entity and the Oneida Business Committee.

o0 Voting and E-Poll. The Voting section has been revised to include whether the entity will
allow e-polls and under what circumstances the entity’s chairperson is allowed to vote.

Article IV: Expectations. This is a new section which sets expectations for behavior of members
of an entity. Entities must prohibit violence and the use of alcohol and illegal drugs when acting
in an official capacity. Entities must also list expectations regarding how official business of the
entity may be posted on social media. A conflict of interest section has also been added, which
lists any additional conflict of interests that may be unique to that entity. This section will also
describe how conflicts of interest will be handled and mitigated [See Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(d)].

Article V: Stipends and Compensation. This new section will list all of the stipends members are
eligible to receive and the requirements for collecting each stipend [See Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(e)].

Article VI: Records and Reporting. This section describes the procedure and format for agenda
items, meeting minutes, attachments and the entity’s relationship with the OBC Liaison. New
revisions to this section include identifying a reasonable timeframe that the entity will submit
minutes to the BC Support Office, and identifying how records of meeting attachments will be
kept [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(f)].

Page 6 of 15



213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254

37 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

0 Audio Recording Requirement. All entities will now be required to audio record their
meetings.
Article VII: Amendments. This section describes how entities may revise their bylaws, with the
approval of the Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council [See Boards, Committees
and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10-3(g)].

Electronic Polling (E-Poll). This new provision outlines the process for conducting an electronic
poll, or “e-poll.” Entities may use e-polls if approval of an action is needed before their next meeting.

E-Poll Process. E-polls must be sent from an official email address of the entity by the chair or
designee, include a deadline for response of no greater than 24 hours, and follow the formatting
requirements described in this section. Members will vote by responding to the e-poll from an
official address of the entity. Responses from personal email addresses will not be accepted. In
order for an e-poll to be valid, a majority of the members of the entity must respond to the e-poll.
This is similar to requiring a quorum for an in-person meeting. If a majority vote in support of
the e-poll, then the action will be approved. Copies of all e-poll results must be placed on the
entity’s next meeting agenda to be entered into the record [see Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.11].

Reporting Requirements. This law describes reporting requirements for minutes, standard operating
procedures and reports to the Oneida Business Committee and General Tribal Council. Several new
provisions have been added:

Minutes. Actions taken by an entity are valid once the action has been approved by a vote. For
example, if an entity passes a motion, that motion is valid immediately. Entities have the option
of adding a requirement to their bylaws that minutes must be approved before the actions become
valid [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.12-1].

Standard Operating Procedures. Entities will now be required to submit all standard operating
procedures to the BC Support Office to be kept on file.

Quarterly Reports to Oneida Business Committee. Entities must submit quarterly reports to the
Oneida Business Committee. At least one member of each entity must attend the BC Meeting
where their quarterly report is being presented. Quarterly reports will contain the following
information: Contact information, number and type of meetings, the topics of any emergency or
special meetings, accomplishments, goals, budget status, requests to the Business Committee and
any other information deemed appropriate by the entity [See Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.12-3].

Annual and Semi-Annual Reports to GTC. Entities must submit annual and semi-annual reports
to the General Tribal Council. The Business Committee will set the format for these reports.

o Complaints. New provisions were added that require entities to include the number of
substantiated complaints against members of the entity in their annual and semi-annual
reports. A substantiated complaint is a complaint that has been found valid by the BC or
Judiciary. The proposed Sanctions and Penalties law will set a standard procedure for
complaints.

Failure to Submit Reports. A new provision was added specifying that if an entity does not
submit reports on time, OBC may place a hold on all stipends for that entity until the reports are
received [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.12-5].

Page 7 of 15



255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297

38 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

K. Stipends, Reimbursement and Compensation. This law describes the procedures for how stipends
will be paid for meetings, hearings, and other expenses [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1
0.C. 105.13].

Stipend Amount Set by Resolution. Rather than put the stipend amounts within the law, the
Oneida Business Committee will now set stipend amounts in a separate resolution. The BC may
adjust those amounts by amending the resolution. The purpose of this change is to allow for
greater flexibility in adjusting stipends. It also ensures that stipend amounts for all of the Nation’s
boards, committees and commissions are accurately documented in one place. At the time this
analysis was written, the LOC plans to draft a resolution setting stipend amounts and include the
resolution in the adoption packet for this law.

Gift Card Option. Entities will now have the option of paying stipends in the form of cash or gift
cards, such as Oneida Retail cards.

Requirements for Regular and Emergency Meeting Stipends. In order to receive a stipend,
meetings must have an established quorum and last at least one hour. In addition, there is a new
requirement that members must be physically present for the entire meeting to earn the stipend. If
members arrive late or leave early, they will not earn a stipend.

0 Appointed Members: Appointed members may only receive one meeting stipend per
month, regardless of the number of meetings held. This is consistent with current law
[See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-3(a)].

0 Elected Members: Elected members may receive two meeting stipends per month,
regardless of the number of meetings held. This is a change from current law, which
previously allowed elected boards to receive stipends for any number of meetings per
month. [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-3(b)].

Requirements for Joint Meeting Stipends. Members of entities can receive a stipend for attending
a duly called joint meeting with the Oneida Business Committee. The joint meeting must have an
established quorum, last at least one hour, and members must be physically present for the entire
meeting. Business Committee members are full-time employees and do not receive meeting
stipends [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-4].

0 Examples: Trust Enrollment Committee, Land Commission and Land Claims
Commission are examples of entities that hold joint meetings with the Business
Committee.

Stipends for Oneida Judiciary Hearings. A member of an entity will receive a stipend for
attending an Oneida Judiciary hearing if that member is required to attend by subpoena [See
Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-5].

Hearings of an Entity: Members may receive stipends for conducting hearings administered by
the entity. Entities may only receive one stipend for each hearing, regardless of the length of the
hearing. Members may not receive additional stipends for continuations of a hearing or to draft
decisions [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-6].

0 Boards with Hearing Authority: The following entities currently exercise hearing
authority: Election Board, Police Commission, School Board, Trust Enroliment
Committee, Pardon and Forgiveness Screening Committee, and Gaming Commission.
Environmental Resource Board and Land Commission have transferred hearing body
authority to the Judiciary.

Page 8 of 15



298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340

39 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

= Other Stipends: Stipends for any other activity will be set by the OBC in the resolution setting
stipend amounts. Examples of such activities include Pow-wow Committee working at Pow-
wows and Election Board conducting elections or conducting hand counts at GTC meetings [See
Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-7].

= Conferences and Training: Members will receive stipends for attending conferences and training.
Members will receive stipends for each full day of training required by law, bylaw or resolution.
Members will not receive stipends for travel days. In addition, members are eligible for per diem
per the Nation’s Travel and Expense policy. This is consistent with current law. This section
removes the $100 amount for the travel stipend. Instead, the amount of the stipend will be set by
the OBC by resolution [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-8].

L. Confidential Information. This law requires members to maintain confidentiality in all information

obtained through their position on the entity. Members cannot disclose confidential information

without the written authorization of the Oneida Business Committee. After leaving an entity, a

member must return all records. Members of an entity cannot use confidential information for

personal gain [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.14-1].

= Official Email Address. Members will now be provided an official email address for conducting
business of the entity. Members cannot use personal or work email to conduct the entity’s
business. Employees of the Nation will receive a separate email address. Members must follow
the Nation’s computer and media related policies and sign an acknowledgment form provided by
the Secretary. When a member leaves office, the Nation’s Secretary will direct MIS to disable the
email address [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.14-3].

. Conflicts of Interest. This law requires members to adhere to the Nation’s policies regarding

conflicts of interest. It also requires members to disclose conflicts of interest as soon as they arise and

submit an updated conflict of interest disclosure form to the Nation’s Secretary on an annual basis

[See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.15-2].

= Political Appointees. Political appointees are no longer allowed to serve on boards, committees or
commissions. There are currently ten political appointees in the organization: Chairperson’s
Assistant, Chairperson’s Policy Advisor, Vice Chair’s Assistant, Treasurer’s Assistant,
Secretary’s Assistant, and five Legislative Assistants [See Boards, Committees and Commissions,
10.C. 105.15-3].

= Deleted Sections. The current Comprehensive Policy includes a list of specifically prohibited
activities covered under “conflicts of interest.” This draft deletes this list of prohibited activities,
and instead, directs entities to follow the Nation’s laws and policies governing conflicts of
interest [see Comprehensive Policy on Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13].
These laws include the Conflict of Interest Law and the Code of Ethics, which both apply to
members of boards, committees and commissions. Members must also follow any conflict of
interest provisions in their entity’s bylaws. The Conflict of Interest Law and Code of Ethics
provide broad guidelines, while the deleted Conflict of Interest sections in this law provided more
specific examples that fell within those guidelines.

. Use of the Nation’s Assets. This law describes how entities will maintain bank accounts, execute and

record transactions, and use Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for the Nation’s funds. Any
evidence of noncompliance will be reported to the Internal Audit department [See Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.16].

Page 9 of 15



341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352

353

354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382

383
384

40 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

O. Dissolution of an Entity. Entities can only be dissolved by GTC or OBC motion. A new requirement

was added that within 5 business days of dissolving an entity, OBC will provide the entity with a
written notice of the dissolution [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.17-2]. This
law specifies that chairpersons and secretaries of dissolved entities are responsible for closing out
business and forwarding records to the BC Support Office. The BC Support Office may use the
assistance of Records Management or any other appropriate department [See Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.17-3].

Enforcement. Members who violate this law are subject to sanctions and penalties, removal pursuant
to the Removal law, or termination of appointment to an appointed entity. A provision regarding
disqualifying candidates for election was removed, because disqualification is addressed in the
Election law [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.18].

SECTION 6. EFFECT ON EXISTING LEGISLATION

A.

Bylaws. The bylaws of every Board, Committee and Commission will need to be updated to conform

with the new bylaw requirements in this law [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C.

105.10-3].

References to the Other Laws of the Nation: The following laws of the Nation are referenced in this

law. This law does not conflict with any of the referenced laws.

= Election Law. The process for election of a member to an elected entity will be governed by the
Election Law [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.8-2].

= Removal Law. Removal of an official elected to an entity is governed by the Removal Law [See
Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.6-2(b)]. Members who violate this law may be
subject to Removal pursuant to the Removal Law [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1
0.C.105.17-1].

= Conflict of Interest Law. All members of an entity are required to follow the Nation’s laws
governing conflicts of interest [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C.105.15-1].

= Code of Ethics. All members of an entity are required to follow the Nation’s laws governing
conflicts of interest. The Code of Ethics also includes conflict of interest provisions [See Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.15-1].

=  Computer Resources Ordinance. Members of an entity must sign an acknowledgment form
indicating notice of the Nation’s applicable computer and media related laws [See Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.14-3(b)].

= Social Media Policy. The bylaws of each entity must identify expectations for the use of social
media in regards to official business of the entity [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1
0.C. 105.10-3(d)(4)].

= Travel and Expense Policy. Members of an entity are eligible to be reimbursed for travel and per
diem to attend a conference or training in accordance with the Nation’s travel policies [See
Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.13-8].

= Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance. Compensation of Gaming Commissioners is not subject to
the this law [see Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance, 5 O.C. 501.6-1].

SECTION 7. EFFECTS ON EXISTING RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES, OR OBLIGATIONS
A. Right to Appeal Termination of Appointment. After the OBC terminates an appointment, the

termination is final and not subject to appeal. While appointed members have always served at the

Page 10 of 15



385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394

395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404

405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427

41 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

discretion of the Business Committee, for clarity, the law now specifically states that appeals are not
allowed. Note that this does not impact members who were elected to their positions, which is
governed by the Removal Law.

Political Appointees. This law bans political appointees, such as legislative assistants, from serving
on boards, committees and commissions. By accepting the position, political appointees will be
knowingly giving up the right to serve on an entity as a condition of their employment. Any
appointees currently serving on an entity will be allowed to finish their terms. [See Boards,
Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.15-3].

SECTION 8. ENFORCEMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A

Elected officials may be removed pursuant to the Removal Law and appointed officials may have
their appointments terminated by the Oneida Business Committee [See Boards, Committees and
Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.18-1(b-c)].

. Any member of an entity who violates this law may be subject to sanctions and penalties. The LOC is

currently developing a Sanctions and Penalties law [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1
O.C. 105.18-1(a)].

Entities that fail to comply with reporting requirements in this law may have their stipends withheld
until reports are submitted [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.12-5].

SECTION 9. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

The LOC may want to consider the following regarding implementation of this law:

A

Bylaws. Boards, Committees and Commissions have been unable to update their bylaws for the last
several years while this law has been on the LOC’s Active Files List. Upon adoption of this law, all
entities will need to update their bylaws to conform with the new standards [See Boards, Committees
and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.10]. Entities will be expected to update their bylaws within a
reasonable time after adoption of this law, rather than a specific deadline. All bylaws must be
approved by the Oneida Business Committee. Entities, LOC and the BC should expect to begin
processing a large number of bylaws after passage. The LOC plans to assist entities with updating
their bylaws by offering training sessions, bylaw templates, and additional assistance from LRO staff.
Stipend Processing. This law places several new requirements and limitations on how and when
members may receive stipends. These new requirements will require enforcement. Enforcing these
new provisions will require reviewing bylaws, entity and OBC meeting minutes, Judiciary subpoenas
and other actions. Currently, stipend requests are sent directly to Accounting. The BC Support Office
is in the process of taking over this responsibility and is well suited to this role given their familiarity
with each of the boards. If possible, the BC Support Office should take over this role to coincide with
the implementation of this law.

Current Political Appointees. This law bans political appointees from serving on boards, committees
and commissions [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.15-3]. At the time this
analysis was drafted, two political appointees currently serve on an entity. Both serve on elected
entities. These two individuals, and any other political appointees who may be serving at the time this
law is adopted, will be permitted to serve out the remainder of their terms. This decision will be
included in the adopting resolution for this law. The OBC should also consider working with Oneida
Human Resources Dept. to update job descriptions for political appointees to include this ban.

Page 11 of 15



428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471

42 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
201809 12

D. Audio Recording Requirement. This law adds a new requirement for all entities to audio record their

meetings. According to the BC Support Office, three entities currently audio record their meetings on

a regular basis. The BC Support Office has recording equipment available to assist entities. It may be

necessary for the BC Support Office to acquire additional audio recording equipment to implement

this provision. The LOC may want to consider delaying the implementation date of this requirement

in the adopting resolution to allow for any necessary planning, training or purchases.

Email Addresses for BCC Members. MIS, BC Support Office and Records Management have begun

work to develop a process to provide and manage email addresses for member entities. Based on MIS

research, the email address requirement will impact approximately 130 members. To allow for

necessary planning to implement protocols, set budgets, and secure licenses to set up new email

addresses, the LOC intends to delay implementation of the email requirement in the adopting

resolution.

Changes to Application Form. The following changes must be made to the application form for

boards, committees and commissions. The revised application forms must be approved by the

Business Committee [see Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C. 105.5-1].

= Add a statement to the application form explaining the attendance requirements of section
105.11-3

= Create an additional Background Investigation Application Form, to include social security
number and any other information needed to conduct a background investigation. This form will
only be provided to applicants applying to entities that require a background check. This includes
the Gaming Commission and Police Commission.

G. New Forms and Standard Operating Procedures:

=  Computer Resource Acknowledgment Form. The Secretary must provide an acknowledgment
form to be signed by each member upon receiving an email address. The Nation’s Secretary and
BC Support Office may want to consult with MIS regarding existing standard forms that could be
used [see Boards, Committees and Commissions 1 O.C. 105.14-3(b)].

= Disabling Email Addresses. The Secretary must direct MIS to disable the email address for
members that leave office. The Nation’s Secretary and BC Support Office may want to develop
an SOP for this process [see Boards, Committees and Commissions 1 O.C. 105.14-3(d)].

=  SOP for Background Check Application Forms. Given the sensitive information on the new
background check application forms, the Nation’s Secretary and BC Support Office may want to
create an SOP for how these forms will be securely stored and processed, if such an SOP does not
already exist.

The following is provided for information:
H. Current Stipends. Under this law, stipend amounts will be set by Business Committee resolution

[see Boards, Committees and Commissions 1 O.C. 105.13-2]. The OBC will periodically review and
adjust these stipend amounts. Below is a depiction of current stipend amounts at the time this
analysis was drafted. Whether to maintain or adjust the current stipend amounts a policy decision.

Page 12 of 15



43 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)
2018 09 12

472 Chart 4. Current Meeting Stipends for Appointed Boards.
NO STIPEND

= Oneida Nation Arts Board

$50 PER MEETING

= Anna John Resident Centered Care Community Board (AJRCC)
= Environmental Resource Board (ERB)

= Oneida Community Library Board

= Oneida Police Commission

= Oneida Pow-wow Committee

= Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee (ONVAC)

= Pardon and Screening Forgiveness Committee

= Personnel Selection Committee*

$75 PER MEETING
= Southeastern WI Oneida Tribal Services Advisory Board (SEOTS)

473 Source: 2018 Semi-Annual Report to General Tribal Council

474 *Note — On August 27, 2018, GTC rescinded the dissolution of the Personnel Commission.
475

476 Chart 5. Current Meeting Stipends for Elected Boards.

$50 PER MEETING

= Land Commission

= Land Claims Commission
= Oneida Nation Commission on Aging (ONCOA)

= Oneida Nation School Board

$100 PER MEETING FOR CHAIR, $75 PER MEETING FOR MEMBERS

= Trust Enrollment Committee

$100 PER MEETING
FULL TIME SALARY - NO MEETING STIPENDS
= Oneida Gaming Commission*
0 Gaming Commissioners are full-time officials. Compensation of Gaming
Commissioners is not subject to the Comprehensive Policy on Boards,
Committees and Commissions [see Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance 5 O.C.
501.6-11].
0  “Pro-Tem” Commissioners, appointed as needed to participate in hearings when
full-time commissioners recuse themselves, receive $150 per hearing.

477 Source: 2018 Semi-Annual Report to General Tribal Council.

478

479 = Summary of Current Meeting Stipends. Currently, there are variations in stipends from board to
480 board based on BC and entity actions over the years.

481 o Appointed. Members of appointed entities receive $50 per meeting, with the exception of
482 SEOTS, which reports that it receives $75 per meeting, and Oneida Arts Board, which is a
483 volunteer board that does not accept stipends.

Page 13 of 15



44 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)

2018 09 12

484 o0 Elected. Members of elected entities receive between $50 to $100 per meeting. An exception
485 is the Oneida Gaming Commission, whose members receive a full-time salary.
486 = Hearing Stipends. Entities with hearing body authority receive stipends for conducting hearings.
487 Hearing stipend amounts are typically the same as meeting stipends.
488 = Conferences and Training Stipends. Members currently receive a $100 stipend for each full day
489 spent attending a conference or training, not including travel days.
490 = QOther Stipends. In addition, certain entities receive stipends for other activities:
491 0 Oneida Election Board members receive $10 per hour for conducting elections and caucuses.
492 They also receive a $100 stipend for conducting hand counts at General Tribal Council
493 meetings.
494 0 Oneida Pow-wow Committee members receive $25 per hour, not to exceed $200 per day, for
495 planning, preparation and working Oneida Pow-wows.
496 |. Proposed Stipend Amounts. At the time this analysis was drafted, the LOC intends to propose an
497 increase in stipend amounts for boards, committees and commissions. Below are the stipend amounts
498 that the LOC proposes to set by resolution upon adoption of this law. For additional information, see
499 the proposed stipend resolution included in the adoption materials for this law.
500
501 Chart 6. Proposed Meeting Stipends for Appointed Boards.

Appointed Entity Current Stipend Amount | Proposed Stipend Amount

Oneida Nation Arts Board None $75 per meeting

Anna John Resident Centered | $50 per meeting $75 per meeting

Care Community Board

(AJRCC)

Oneida Community Library | $50 per meeting $75 per meeting

Board

Environmental Resource Board | $50 per meeting $75 per meeting

Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs

Committee (ONVAC) $50 per meeting $75 per meeting
Personnel Selection | $50 per meeting $75 per meeting
Committee*
Oneida Police Commission $50 per meeting $75 per meeting
Oneida Pow-wow Committee $50 per meeting $75 per meeting
Pardon and Forgiveness | $50 per meeting $75 per meeting
Screening Committee
Southeastern  Oneida  Tribal | $75 per meeting $75 per meeting
Services  Advisory  Board
(SEOTS)
502 = The LOC proposes to increase stipend amounts for appointed boards to $75 per meeting.
503 Appointed boards are limited to one meeting stipend per month.
504 = For more information regarding proposed stipends, see proposed stipend resolution in the
505 adoption materials for this law.
506
507
508
509

Page 14 of 15



45 of 147
Analysis to OBC Consideration Draft (Draft 3)

2018 09 12

510 Chart 7. Proposed Meeting Stipends for Elected Boards.

Elected Entity Current Stipend Amount Proposed Stipend Amount

Land Commission $50 per meeting $100 per meeting

Land Claims Commission $50 per meeting $100 per meeting

Oneida Nation Commission on | $75 per meeting $100 per meeting

Aging (ONCOA)

Oneida Nation School Board $75 per meeting $100 per meeting

Trust Enrollment Committee $100 per meeting for | $100 per meeting (all members)

chairperson, $75 per meeting
for members

Oneida Election Board $100 per meeting $100 per meeting
511 = The LOC proposes to increase stipend amounts for elected boards to $100 per meeting.
512 = Upon adoption of this law, elected boards will be limited to two meeting stipends per month,
513 regardless of the number of meetings held.
514 = Compensation of Oneida Gaming Commissioners is not subject to the Comprehensive Policy
515 on Boards Committees and Commissions [see Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance, 5 O.C.
516 501.6-11].
517 = For more information regarding proposed stipends, see proposed stipend resolution in the
518 adoption materials for this law.
519
520 J. Sanctions and Penalties. This law references sanctions and penalties. The Legislative Operating
521 Committee (LOC) is currently drafting a Sanctions and Penalties Law to increase accountability
522 among elected and appointed officials of the Nation. Currently, the only reprimand available for a
523 violation of this law is termination of appointment for appointed members, removal of elected
524 members, and in certain instances, withholding stipends. However, there may be instances of
525 misconduct that do not rise to the level of removal. In these cases, other sanctions such as verbal
526 warnings, written warnings, suspension or fines may be more appropriate. The proposed Sanctions
527 and Penalties law will create a formal complaint process and allow for corrective actions against
528 officials who violate laws, bylaws and SOPs of the Nation. At the time this analysis was drafted, the
529 LOC intends to present a Sanctions and Penalties Law to GTC for consideration once the draft is
530 complete and all legislative requirements are met. [See Boards, Committees and Commissions, 1 O.C.
531 105.18-1(a)].
532
533 K. Please refer to the fiscal impact statement for any fiscal impacts.

534

Page 15 of 15



46 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
_Title 1. Government and Finances — Chapter 105
COMPREHENSIVEPOHICY- GOVERNING-BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND
COMMISSIONS
Laotiyanl<hsla>sh&ha k<tyohkway<-t&=se>

Their laws—— of the groups we have
105.1. Purpose and Policy 105.9. MinutesOath of Office
105.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 105.10. Bisselution-ofEntitiesBylaws
105.3. Definitions 105.11_ Electronic Polling
105.4. Creation of an EntityAppheatiens 105.12. Reporting Requirements
105.5. Applications 105.13. Stipends, Reimbursement and Compensation-fer-Services
105.6. Vacancies 105.24214. Confidential Information
105.6—Appeinted-Positions 105.143-15. Conflicts of Interest
105-7. Elected-PesitionsAppointment to an Entity 105.16. Use of the Nation’s Assets
105.8. By-Laws-of Boards-Committees-and-CommissionsElection 105.17. Dissolution of an Entity
to an Entity 105.18. Enforcement

105.1. Purpose and Policy
105.1-1. It is the purpose of this pelieylaw to govern boards, committees, and commissions of
the standard-Nation, including the procedures regarding the appointment and election of persons
to boards, committees and commissions, creation of by-lawsbylaws, maintenance of official
records, compensation, and other items related to boards, committees and commissions. Fhis
poliey
(a) This law shall not apply to the Oneida Business Committee, or Standing Committees
of the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) This law does not apply to Tribal corporations due to the corporate structure and
autonomy of those entities.
105.1-2. It is the policy of the Nation to have consistent and standard procedures for choosing
and appointing or electing the most qualified persons to boards, committees and commissions,
for creation of by-fawsbylaws governing boards committees and commissions, and for the
maintenance of information created by and for boards, committees and commissions.

105.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal
105.2-1. This peheylaw was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution #BC-
505-14-97-F and amended by resolutions #BC-09-27-06-E-anre—+#, BC-09-22-10-C-, and BC-

105 2- 2 ThIS polieylaw may be amended pursuantto-theprocedures—setoutin-the Oneida
AdministrativeProcedures—Actor repealed by the Oneida Business Committee or the Oneida

General Tribal Council—regardless—of-wheretheoriginal-adoptionteok-place pursuant to the

procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act.

105.2-3. Should a provision of this pelieylaw or the application thereof to any person or
circumstances be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this
pehieylaw which are con5|dered to have Iegal force W|thout the |nvaI|d portions.

1 0.C. 105 — Page 1



47 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912

105.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another
law, the provisions of this law shall control.
105.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.

105.3. Definitions

105.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases as-used heretawithin

this law. All words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense.
(a(a) "Application™ means the form by which a person seeks to be appointed to fill a
vacancy on an entity.
(b) "Appointment” means the process by which a person is chosen to fill a vacancy on
an entity by the Oneida Business Committee.
(c)  “Business day” means Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.,
excluding holidays recognized by the Nation.
(d) “Bylaws” means a document which provides a framework for the operation and
management of a board, committee, or commission of the Nation chiefly for the
government of its members and the requlation of its affairs.
(e) “Conference” means any training, seminar, meeting, or other assembly of persons
which is not an assembly of the entity.
() “Confidential information” means all information or data, whether printed, written,
or oral, concerning business or customers of the Nation, disclosed to, acquired by, or
generated by a member of an entity in confidence at any time during their elected or
appointed term or during their employment.
(q) “Conflict of interest” means any interest, real or apparent, whether it be personal,
financial, political, or otherwise, in which an elected official, officer, political appointee,
employee, contractor, or appointed or elected member, or their immediate family
members, friends or associates, or any other person with whom they have contact, have
that conflicts with any right of the Nation to property, information, or any other right to
own and operate activities free from undisclosed competition or other violation of such
rights of the Nation. In addition, conflict of interest also means any financial or familial
interest an elected official, officer, political appointee, employee, contractor, or
appointed or elected member or their immediate family members may have in any
transaction between the Nation and an outside party.
(h) "Entity" means a board, committee or commission created by the General Tribal
Council or the Oneida Business Committee whose members are appointed by the Oneida
Business Committee or elected by the GeneralFribal CeuneNation’s membership.
(by—"acaney™i) “E-poll” means any—pesitionan electronic poll, which is the act of
delivering an e-mail to all members of an entity, in order to seek a response which
identifies a vote in favor of, opposing, or abstaining to an issue requiring approval by the
entity.
() _“Joint meeting” means a meeting with the Oneida Business Committee.
(k) “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.

10.C. 105 - Page 2



48 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
() _“Per Diem” means the payment made by the Nation to offset the costs of being on
anytravel on behalf of the Oneida Nation.
(m) “Political appointee” means a person appointed by a member of the Oneida
Business Committee to provide assistance with the Oneida Business Committee
member’s daily activities and operations.
(n) “Prohibited drugs” means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine
(PCP), hallucinogens, methagualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substance
included in Schedules | through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the United
States Code. This also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter medicine
used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner.
(0) “Stipend” means the amount paid by the Oneida Nation to a person serving on a

board, committee, or commission ecaused—by—resighation,—end—of—term,—removal;
termination—er—~creation—of a—new position-of the Nation in order to compensate the

individual for his or her contribution of time, effort, and work for his or her board,
commlttee or comm|33|on for the betterment ofthe Nation.

(e(p) “Subcommittee” means a subqroup of an entltv, which is comprlsed of fewer than

all members of the entity; which is designated one (1) or more specific responsibilities
on behalf of the entity.

(q) “Substantiated complaint” means a complaint or allegation in a complaint that was
found to be valid by clear and convincing evidence.

(r) "Task Force or Ad Hoc" means a group of persons gathered to pursue a single goal,
the accomplishment of which means the disbanding of the group. The goal is generally
accomplished in a short time period, i.e. less than one year, but the goal itself may be
long-term.

(h——=Conference’s) "Vacancy" means any training—seminar—meeting;,—or—other
assemblyposition on any board, committee or commission caused by resignation, end of
persens-which-s-noet-term, removal, termination, or creation of a new position.

105.4. Creation of an assemblyEntity
105.4-1. An entity of the entity-Nation shall be created by a resolution or law adopted by the

Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council.

{g)—“PerDiem”means-the payment-made by-105.4-2. The law or resolution establishing
the Fribe—to—offsetentity shall state the ecests—efbeing—out-of-town—orto—travel-on
behalfpurpose of the OneidaTribe-oftndians-of\Wisconsin—
h)—“Stipend”means-that-ameuntpaid-by-entity and all powers and responsibilities delegated to
the entity.
105.4-3. The Oneida Business Committee shall be responsible for drafting the initial bylaws of

the entity.

105.5. Applications
105.5-1. The Oneida Fribe—oftndians—of Wisconsin—to—persens—serving—on—boards;

10.C. 105 - Page 3




49 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 09 12

105-4Nation.—Applications
105-4-1— All apphieationsapplication materials shall be generated—byavailable in the Fribal

SeeretaryrsBusiness Committee Support Office and apprevedany other location specified by the
Oneida-Business Committee_Support Office
%Qé%lheeententef( ) appllcatlons shaII beasienewsmclude

(1) astatement explaining the attendance requirements of section 105.12-3; and
(2) a section regarding disclosures of conflicts of interest.
(b) An additional application form shall be required for those entities that require a
background investigation. This background investigation application shall include the
applicant’s social security number and any other information required for a background
investigation. The background investigation application shall be solely used for the
background investigation and not included in the application materials that are then
shared with the Oneida Business Committee, entity, and/or the Election Board.
105.5-2. 19543 Applications shall be filed with the Fribal-Seeretary's—officeBusiness
Committee Support Office by 4:30 p.m. of the deadline date. Postmarked envelopes are
accepted as flled if postmarked by the deadlme date and recelved by the Inbacl%eeuﬂetarye

that—m—thHte—l—Busmess Commlttee Support Offlce within five (5) busmess davs of the

deadline.

o wolcelion s s o1 |

1 0.C. 105 — Page 4



50 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912

inf ion_call ibal s Offi
2214

105.105.5-3. Eight (8) days after the posted deadline for filing applications the Business
Committee Support Office shall notify all persons who have filed an application of the date his
or her application was received and if his or her application met the deadline to be considered
for the election or appointment.
105.5-4-4. Applications for elected positions shall be verified according to the OneidaElection
Ordinanee-Nation’s laws and/or policies governing elections.  Applications for appointed
positions shall be verified by the Fribal-Seeretary’sBusiness Committee Support Office as
needed or as required in the by-lawsbylaws of the entity.
105.4-5-5. Insufficient Applicants. In the event that there are an insufficient number of
applicants after the deadline date has passed for appointed positions, the TFribal
ChairpersenOneida Business Committee may elect to:

(a) treludeinclude within the pool of appointed persons late applications, or

(b) Repestrepost for an additional time period. In the event of reposting, prior

applicants will be considered to have filed applications within the deadline period.

105.56. Vacancies

105.6-1. The manner by which an individual fills a vacancy, either through election or
appointment, shall determine that member’s status as an appointed or elected official, despite
the entity’s classification as an appointed or elected entity pursuant to the entity’s bylaws.
105.6-2. A position on an entity shall be considered vacant in the following situations:
(a) End of Term. A vacancy is effective as of 4:30 p.m. of the last day of the month in
which the term ends-as-efthe-by-laws-of the-entity.
(1) Although a position is considered vacant once the term ends, the member of
the entity may remain in office until the member’s successor has been sworn in
by the Oneida Business Committee in an effort to prevent a discontinuation of
business or a loss of quorum for the entity.

(b) Removal Removal IS effectlve Hndehadeptedpursuant to any law andﬂ&aapeved

(c) Termination of Appointment. A termination is effective upon a two-thirds (2/3)

10.C. 105 -Page 5



51 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
majority vote of the Oneida Business Committee in favor of a member’s termination of
appointment.
(d) Resignation. A resignation is effective upon:
(1) Deliverance of a letter to the entityy—erBusiness Committee Support Office
and to the Chairperson of the entity, or designee; or
(2) Acceptance by motion of the entity of a verbal resignation.
(de) New Positions. Vacancies on new entities are effective upon adoption of by-
fawsbylaws.
I e e B e
ereation—ofinterimpositions—byAn entity shall notify the Oneida-Business Committee
Support Office as soon as the entity learns that a position has or General Fribal Counc-
105.5-3.will become vacant. All notices of vacancy shall be sent to the entities for clarification

or conflrmatlon prlor to notlflcatlon to the Oneida Business Committee. Fhefollowing

{e)—Minutes-ef the- Oneida-Business Committee;-and
R

105.5-5—TFheTFribal-Seeretary’s Support Office shall forward the notice of vacancy to the
Oneida-Secretary. The Secretary shall request and receive approval from the Oneida Business

Committee to post the notice of vacancy. The Business Committee forappreval-and-direction
to-post-notice—as-set-out-in-this—section—FheTribal-Secretary-shall-Support Office shall post

notice of vacancies at the following times:

@ —End-of Ferm—(a) End of Term. Automatically thirtysixty (60) days prior to

completion of the term.

(b) Removal. Upen-netice-by-Secretary—or-otherperson-authorized-byNo later than the
by-lawsnext Oneida Business Committee meeting following the effective date of the
entity,-to-the Tribal Seeretary's Offiee-removal.

(c) Resignation. Ypen-neticebyNo later than the Seeretary—er-otherpersen-autherized

bynext Oneida Business Committee meeting following the by-lawsBusiness Committee
Support Office’s receipt of notice of an effective resignation from the entity,—te—the
(d) New Positions. Upon one of the following conditions:

(1) if not specified, immediately upon creation of entity or adoption of by-

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 6



52 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
fawsbylaws, whichever is later, or
(2) upon date specified when creating the entity.

(e) %mHmMembem—ueeneF\eenhe#eHewmgL

H-Termination of appointment. AtNo later than the next Oneida Business Committee
meeting following the effective date of the termination-efappeintment—.

105.6-1—AH-appointments-5.  Notice of vacancies shall be madeposted by the Business

Committee Support Office in all official media outlets of the Nation, as determined by the

Onelda Busmess Commlttee—a{—FegHJaPel;speeHJ—@wda—Be&ﬂess—Gem#HHee—meeﬂﬂge

. as well as any other location

deemed approprlate bv the mmmments—se%eut—m%heenﬂ%ys%y—lawe ecretary.

105.7. Appointment to an Entity
105.6-2-7-1. Appointment Selection. The following procedures shall be used to determine whe

shatl-behow the applicant for an appointed: position is selected:
(a) Five{(5Eight (8) business days after elose—ef-notice;the posted deadline for
submitting an application, or within twenty-one (21) days of the posted deadline if the
entity requires a background investigation to be completed as part of the application
process, the Business Committee Support Office shall:
(1) deliver all applications-shal-be-delvered-to-the Fribal-Chairpersen, along
with a summary of qualifications to hold office-, and the results of the
background investigation if required, to each member of the Oneida Business
Committee as well as the entity’s Chairperson; and

(2) place the appointment for the entity on the next executive session portion of
the agenda of a reqular or special Oneida Business Committee meeting in which
the appointment is intended to be made.
(b) Each member of the Oneida Business Committee shall review the application
materials prior to executive session and be prepared to discuss and select an applicant
for appointment.
(1) The entity’s Chairperson may have until the executive session to review the
application materials and provide the Oneida Business Committee a
recommendation of an applicant for appointment.
(c) The Oneida Business Committee shall have a full and complete discussion of the
merits and qualifications of the potential applicants, and any recommendation made by
the Chairperson of the entity, during executive session. After completing a thorough
discussion, the Oneida Business Committee shall:
(1) choose an applicant for appointment, or

(2) ask the Fribal-Secretary's-Office-Oneida Nation’s Secretary to re-notice the

vacancy because of |neI|g|bIe unquallfled or under quallfled appllcants

10.C. 105 - Page 7



53 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 09 12

€29—Rejeet—an—a|e|eheant— (d) AII appomtments shall be made by majemy—ve%e—the
Oneida Business Committee during the open session of a guerum—atany-regular or

special Oneida Business Committee meeting. The Oneida Business Committee shall not
appoint an applicant who fails to meet the requirements set out in the entity's bylaws.

(e) During the open session of the 395-6-3—AH-appeintments-are-official upentakingan

ea%h—a{—a—regular or specral Onerda Busrness Commlttee meetrng—and—au—rrghes—eed

ea%lﬂr a member of the Onerda Busmess Commrttee may make a motion to appomt an
individual. Oneida Business Committee members may:
(a)Originals(1) accept the selected applicant and vote to appoint the individual
to the vacant position, or
(2) reject the selected applicant and vote to oppose the appointment of the
sighed-oath-shal-be-maintainedindividual.
(f) _If the Oneida Business Committee rejects the selected applicant, the matter will be
deferred to the next Oneida Business Committee meeting where another applicant may
be recommended by the Fribal Seeretary's-Office-Oneida Business Committee, or the
Oneida Business Committee may direct the vacancy to be re-posted. When a vacancy is
re-posted under this section, all applications from the first posting shall be considered to
have been filed within the deadline period.
{b)}Copiesl05.7-2. Notification of the-oath-shal-beforwarded-to-the-newmemberand

b
ey —Woerding—of-eaths—shall-beapproved-by-theAppointment. Once an individual is
selected for appomtment at an Oneida Business Committee and-kept-on-file-by-the Tribal

105.6-4—The Fribalmeeting, the Nation’s Secretary shall notify all applicants of the final status
of their application.

(a) The FribalNation’s Chairperson shall forward a list of all applicants to the
FribalNation’s Secretary and the final decision regarding the selection after the
procedures in—sec—6-2for selection of an applicant described in section 105.7-1 are
completed. Previded-that,-the Tribal

(b) The Nation’s Secretary shall include on the notice to the applicant selected for appointment

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 8



54 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912

T e

“The Oneida T i i inNation reports all income paid by the TribeOneida

Nation in whatever form. The Internal Revenue Service of the United States considers
stipends paid to members of boards, committees, and commissions to be income which
may be offset by expenses related to that income. You will receive an income report
which is also forwarded to the Internal Revenue Service, it is also your responsibility to
keep documentation of expenses related to this income.”
105.7-2—AH-otherprocesses-shall-be-as-directed-in-the OnetdaElectionLaw3. Declination of
Appointment. An individual who has been selected for appointment to an entity by the Oneida
Business Committee may decline the appointment.
(a) An individual may decline an appointment to an entity in the following ways:
(1) Delivery of an letter stating that the individual wishes to decline the
appointment to the Business Committee Support Office; or
(2) The failure to take the oath of office within thirty (30) days of being selected
for appointment by the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) The Business Committee Support Office shall notify the Oneida Business
Committee if an individual declines an appointment to an entity. The Oneida Business
Committee shall then use the original pool of applications for the vacancy posting and
the process outlined in section 105.7-31 to select another applicant for appointment.
105.7-4. Termination of Appointment. An appointed member of an entity serves at the
discretion of the Oneida Business Committee. Upon the recommendation of a member of the
Oneida Business Committee or the entity, a member of an appointed entity may have his or her
appointment terminated by the Oneida Business Committee.
(a) A two-thirds majority vote of the Oneida Business Committee shall be required in
order to terminate the appointment of an individual.
(b) The Oneida Business Committee’s decision to terminate an appointment is final and
not subject to appeal.

1 0.C. 105 -Page 9



55 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
105.8 Election to an Entity
105.8-1. All elected positions shall be nominated at a caucus called by the Oneida Election
Board, or petition for ballot placement, in accordance with the Nation’s laws and/or policies
governing elections, except where an entity’s bylaws allow for a vacancy to be filled by
appointment.
(a) When the Election Board notifies a petitioner or nominee that he or she is eligible to
be placed on the ballot, the following paragraph shall be included: “The Oneida Nation
reports all income paid by the Nation in whatever form. The Internal Revenue Service
of the United States considers stipends paid to members of boards, committees, and
commissions to be income which may be offset by expenses related to that income. You
will receive an income report which is also forwarded to the Internal Revenue Service, it
is also your responsibility to keep documentation of expenses related to this income.”
105.8-2. All other processes for the election of a member of an entity shall be as directed by the
Nation’s laws and/or policies governing elections.

105.9. Oath of Office
105.9-1. All appointed and elected positions are official upon taking an oath atduring a regular
or special Oneida Business Committee meeting-and-aH. All rights and delegated authorities of
membership in the entity shall vest upon taking the oath. The Nation’s Secretary shall notify the
chosen persons when they shall appear for taking the oath.
(a) The appointed or elected member shall appear in person at the Oneida Business
Committee meeting to take his or her oath, except if granted permission by the Secretary
to appear by video conferencing equipment.
105.9-2. The Oneida Business Committee shall approve wording of oaths. Any revisions of
oaths shall be approved by the Oneida Business Committee prior to usage. Oaths shall be kept
on file by the Business Committee Support Office.
105.9-3.€a)— Originals of the signed oath, or electronic copies of the originals of the
signed oath, shall be maintained by the Fribal-Seeretary'sBusiness Committee Support

Office.
{b)- Copies of the oath shaII be forwarded to the new member of the entrty and the entrty
105.9-4.©

kep%eniile—bﬁhelnbaléeeretary%@#ﬁee The foIIowrng oath is the standard oath to

be used unless a specific oath for the entity is pre-approved by the Oneida Business

Committee:
I, «[name«—dg], hereby promise to uphold the laws and regulations of the Oneida Fribe—of
Indians-of WiscensinNation, the General Tribal Council, and the FribalOneida Nation Constitution.
I will perform my duties to the best of my ability and on behalf of the Oneida people with
honor, respect, dignity, and sincerity and withwill strictly maintain confidential information. |
will carry out the strictestconfidentialityduties and responsibilities as a member of the [entity
name], and all recommendations shall be made in the best interest of the Oneida Nation as a
whole.

1 O.C. 105 - Page 10



56 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)

2018 0912

£)105.9-5. All oaths shall be sufficient to make the appetntee-appointed or elected member of
an entity aware of their duty to the FribeNation and as members of the entity.

105.810. Bylaws
105.10-1. By-LawsAll entities of al-Beoards—Committees—and-Coemmissionsthe Nation shall

have bylaws that conform to the requirements of this euthine-law. Bylaws shall become effective
upon approval of the Oneida Business Committee, unless where General Tribal Council
approval is additionally required.
(a) All existing entities must comply with this format and present by-tawsbylaws for
adoption within a reasonable time after creation of the entity, or within a reasonable time
after adoption of this pehliey—By-lawslaw.
(b) Bylaws must contain thisat least the minimum information_required by law,
although more information is not prohibited.
105-8-2—Specifically-excepted-from-this-seetionare-(c) Exception. Task Forces and Ad
Hoc Committees_are excepted from the requirement to have bylaws. However, these
entities must have, at minimum, mission or goal statements for completion of the task.
105.8-3—Fherel0-2. Articles. Bylaws shall becontain, at a minimum, the following Articles:
(a) Article I. Authority.
(b) Article 11. Officers.
(c) Article I1l. Meetings.
(d) Article 1V. -RepertingExpectations.
(e) Article V. Stipends and Compensation.
(f)_Article VI. Records and Reporting.
(g) Article VII. Amendments.
105.8-410-3. Sections. Articles shall be divided into "Seetionssections™ as set out.
(a) "Article 1. Authority" eensistsshall consist of the following-irfermation:
(1) Name. Al-entities-should-tist-the-The full name of the entity—tn-addition;
there—sheuldbetisted shall be stated, along with any short name that will be
officially used.
(2) AwuthertyEstablishment. This section shewldshall state the citation and
name, if any, of the creation document.
3(3) Authority. This section shall state the purpose for which the entity was
created and what, if any, authority the entity is delegated.
(4) Office. There shewdshall be listed the official office or post box of the
entity.
(45) Membership. The following information shewdshall be in this section:
(A) Number of members_ on the entity;
(B) Hew-If members on the entity are elected or appointed:, and how a
member is elected or appointed;
(C) How vacancies are filled; and
(D) Fhe-gualiticationsQualifications for membership on the entity.
(1) In order to qualify for membership on an entity, a person shall
meet the minimum age requirements set forth for status as a

10.C. 105 -Page 11



57 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
gualified voter of the Nation, unless a law, policy, or directive sets
forth a minimum age requirement.
(6) Termination or Removal. This section shall identify causes for termination
or removal, if any, in addition to those already identified in laws and/or policies
of the Nation.
(7) Trainings and Conferences. This section shall describe any trainings and/or
conferences that the entity deems necessary for members_to responsibly serve the
entity, if any.
(b) "Article 11. Officers" eensistsshall consist of the following-irfermation:
(1) ©ShairChairperson and Vice-ShaiChairperson. This section creates the
chairperson and vice-chairperson positions of the entity. Other officer positions
may also be created here.
(2) Chairduties-Responsibilities of the Chairperson. Because of the importance
of this position, theseall duties and responsibilities of the chairperson, as well as
limitations shewldof the chairperson shall be specifically listed _here.
(3) Responsibilities of the Vice-Chat—dutiesChairperson. Because of the
importance of this position, theseall duties and responsibilities of the vice-
chairperson, as well as limitations sheuldof the vice-chairperson shall be
specifically listed here.
(4) Responsibilities of Additional Offices-and-Buties-Officers. There shetHdmay
be additional sections as needed for every effice—officer position created in
subsection one (1) above. These sections shall state all duties and responsibilities
of the officer, as well as any limitations of the officer.
(5) Hew-chosen—TFhere-should-bespeeifically-set-eutSelection of Officers. This
section shall identify how a member of the entity will-eceupyshall be selected for
an official officer position as-set-eut-in this-sectionthe entity.
{6)-(6) Budgetary Sign-Off Authority and Travel. This section shall identify the
entity’s varying levels of budgetary sign-off authority, the members that are
authorized to sign-off at each level, and how the entity shall handle approving
travel on behalf of the entity.
(A) An entity shall follow the Nation’s policies and procedures regarding
purchasing and sign-off authority.
(B) An entity shall approve a member’s request to travel on behalf of the
entity by majority vote at a regular or emergency meeting of the entity.
(7) Personnel. State—entitiesThis section shall state the entity’s authority for
hiring personnel,_if any, and the duties of such personnel.
(c) "Article 111. Meetings" eensistsshall consist of the following-trfermation:
(1) Regular meetings. FhereThis section shall be-hstedidentify when and where
regular meetings shall be held, and; how the entity shall provide notice of the
meeting agenda, documents, and minutes-wit-be-disbursed-to-the-members.
(2) Emergency meetings. FhereThis section shall be—tistedidentify what
constitutes an emergency meeting, how Emergeneyemergency meetings shall be
called-and-—neticed:, and how the entity shall provide notice of the emergency

meeting.

1 0.C. 105 - Page 12



58 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
3)>—(A) All bylaws shall include a provision requiring that within
seventy-two (72) hours after an emergency meeting, the entity shall
provide the Nation’s Secretary with notice of the meeting, the reason for
the emergency meeting, and an explanation of why the matter could not
wait for a reqular meeting.
(3) Joint Meetings. This section shall identify if joint meetings shall be held, the
frequency and location of joint meetings, and how the entity shall provide notice
of the meeting agenda, documents, and minutes.
(4) Quorum. This section shall hstidentify how many members of an entity
create a quorum.
(45) Order of Business. This section sets out how the agenda will be set up.
(56) Voting. This section sheuld-list-hew-shall identify voting shal-be-taken;
what-requirements, such as, but not limited to:
(A) the percentages that shall be needed to pass different items-;_
(B) if, and when, the chairperson is allowed to vote;
(C) if the use of an e-poll is permissible; and
(D) if the use of and e-poll is permissible, who will serve as the
Chairperson’s designee for the responsibility of conducting an e-poll, if a
designee is utilized.
““Article IV. Reperting™—~coensistsExpectations” shall consist of the following

information:

(1) Behavior of Members. This section shall identify the behavioral
expectations and requirements of a member of the entity, and identify how the
entity shall enforce these behavioral expectations.

(2) Prohibition of Violence. This section shall prohibit any violent intentional
act committed by a member of the entity that inflicts, attempts to inflict, or
threatens to inflict emotional or bodily harm on another person, or damage to
property, and set forth any further expectations regarding the prohibition of
violence.

(3) Drug and Alcohol Use. This section shall prohibit the use of alcohol and
prohibited drugs for a member of an entity when acting in their official capacity,
and set forth any further expectations regarding the use of prohibited drugs and
alcohol.

(4) Social Media. This section shall identify expectations for the use of social
media in regards to official business of the entity.

(5) Conflict of Interest. This section shall state any standards and expectations
additional to those required by law of the Nation in regards to conflicts of
interest and how they are handled, as well as requirements related to prohibited
activities resulting from disclosed conflicts of interest, and means by which a
party can alleviate or mitigate the conflict of interest.

(e) “Article V. Stipends and Compensation” shall consist of the following information:

(1) Stipends. This section shall include a comprehensive list of all stipends
members are eligible to receive and the requirements for collecting each stipend,
if any in addition to those contained in this law.

10.C. 105 - Page 13



59 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
(2) Compensation. This section shall include details regarding all other forms of
compensation members are eligible to receive and the requirements for collecting
such compensation, if any in addition to those contained in this law.
(f) "Article VI. Records and Reporting" shall consist of the following information:

(1) Agenda Items. Agenda items shall be maintained in an-dentifieda consistent
format_as identified by this section.
(2) _Minutes. Minutes shall be typed and in a consistent format designed to
generate the most informative record of the meetings of the entity. This may
include a summary of action taken by the entity. This section shall identify the
format for minutes, and a reasonable timeframe by which minutes shall be
submitted to the Business Committee Support Office.
(3)_Attachments. Handouts, reports, memoranda, and the like may be attached
to the minutes and agenda, or may be kept separately, provided that all materials
can be identified to the meeting in which they were presented. This section shall
identify how records of attachments shall be kept.
(4) Oneida Business Committee Liaison. Entities wilreperttoshall regularly
communicate with the Oneida Business Committee member who is their
designated liaison. This repertingsection shall identify a format_and frequency
for communication which may be as the liaison and entity agree to, but not less
than that required in any law or policy on reporting developed by the Oneida
Busmess Commlttee or Onelda General Trlbal Councn Repeﬁssh&l#b&made

purpose of the liaison relatlonshlp IS to uphold the ablllty of the liaison to act as a

support to that entity._
{e(5) Audio Recordings. An entity shall audio record all meetings. This section
shall state how the entity shall audio record meetings, and how the entity shall
maintain the audio records.
(A) Exception. Audio recordings of executive session portions of a
meeting shall not be required.
(g) "Article MVII. Amendments" consists of:

(1) Amendments to By-taws—TFheresheuld-be-deseribedBylaws. This section
shall describe how amendments to the by-taws—shall-takeplace—Provided

thatbylaws are made. Any amendments to bylaws shall conform to the
requirements of this and any other policy—Previded-furtherthat amendments-are
of the Nation. Amendments to bylaws shall be approved by the Oneida Business
Committee, in addition to the General Tribal Council when applicable, prior to
implementation.

105.11, Electronic Polling

105.11-1. An entity may utilize an e-poll when approval of an action may be required before
the next available meeting agenda of the entity.

105.11-2. Conducting an E-Poll. The Chairperson of the entity, or designee, shall e-mail the e-
poll to all members of the entity. Requests for an e-poll shall be sent only from an official e-

1 0.C. 105 - Page 14



60 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
mail address of the entity. The e-poll’s message shall include the following information:
(a) The e-mail subject line shall begin with “E-poll Request:” and include a short title
describing the purpose of the request.
(b) The body of the e-poll shall contain the following elements:
(1) An executive summary of the reason for the request and why the request
cannot be presented at the next available meeting of the entity;
(2) A proposed motion which shall be in bold and identified in a separate
paragraph by the words “Requested Action;”
(3) All attachments in *.pdf format, which are necessary to understand the
request being made; and
(4) A deadline date for a response to be returned regarding the results of the
electronic poll which shall be in bold and identified in a separate paragraph by
the words “Deadline for Response.”
(A) E-poll requests shall be open for response not less than one (1) hour
and no more than twenty-four (24) hours.
(B) The time frame for responses shall be determined by the Secretary of
the entity, or designee, based on urgency, scheduling, and any other
pertinent factors.

105.11-3.
105.9Response to an E-Poll. A response from a member of an entity shall be valid if received
from an official e-mail address of the entity. No responses from unknown e-mails or personal e-
mails shall be accepted. An e-poll request shall receive responses from a majority of members
of the entity in order to be an official vote.
(a) E-polls that receive at least a majority of supporting votes by the deadline are
considered to be approved.
(b) E-polls for which insufficient responses were received by the deadline are
considered to have failed to receive support, and result in a denied request.
(c) E-polls that result in a denied request may be reconsidered by the entity at the next
available meeting.
(d) The Chairperson, or designee, shall monitor all responses and deadline dates for
responses.
105.11-4. Entering an E-Poll in the Record. Both approved and denied e-poll requests shall be
placed on the next meeting agenda of the entity to be entered into the record. The agenda item
shall contain the following information:
(a) Original e-poll request and all supporting documentation;
(b) A summary of the e-poll results identifying each member of the entity and his or her
response; and
(c) A copy of any comment by a member of the entity if comments are made beyond a
vote.

105.12. Reporting Requirements

105.12-1. Minutes

20501 All minutes shall be submitted to the Fribal-Seeretary'sBusiness Committee Support
Office within a reasonable time after approval by the entity-, as identified in the entity’s bylaws.

10.C. 105 - Page 15



61 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
105.9-2.(a) Actions taken by an entity are valid when-upon approval of the action by
vote, unless the bylaws of the entity otherwise require minutes are-appreved,—provided
that,-minutes-areto be approved by the entity before the actions are valid.
(b) Minutes shall be filed according to this section, and any specific directions within
approved by-lawsbylaws.
(c)265:9-3: No action or approval of minutes is required by the Oneida Business
Committee on minutes submitted by an entity unless specifically required by the by-
fawsbylaws of that entity.
105.12-2. Standard Operating Procedures. All standard operating procedures established by
an entity shall be submitted to the Business Committee Support Office, where they shall be kept
on file.
105.12-3. Quarterly Reports to the Oneida Business Committee. Entities shall provide
guarterly reports to the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the quarterly reporting
schedule approved by the Oneida Business Committee. All quarterly reports shall be approved
by official entity action before they are submitted. The quarterly reports shall not contain any
information that conflicts with any law, resolution, or policy of the Nation. At least one (1)
member of the entity shall attend the Oneida Business Committee meeting where the quarterly
report is an agenda item. Quarterly reports shall follow a format prescribed by the Oneida
Business Committee and contain the following information:
(a) Contact Information. The name of the entity, the member submitting the report, the
Oneida Business Committee liaison; and a list of the members and their titles, term
expiration dates and contact information.
(b) Meetings. When and how often the entity is holding meetings and whether any
emergency meetings have been held.
(1) If emergency meetings were held, the report shall indicate the basis of the
emergency for each meeting.
(c) Accomplishments. Details of what the entity has accomplished that entityquarter,
including any special events held during the reporting period and any travel by the
members and/or staff.
(d) Goals. Details of both485-9-4-—1In the event-of-dissolutionentity’s long term goals,
the entity’s goals for the next quarter, and projected quarterly activities.
(e) Budget. The amount of an-the entity’s budget, the status of the budget at that
guarter, the amount of each stipend a member may be eligible to receive, how the budget
is being utilized by the entity, al-filesand-decuments—areand projected budgetary uses
for the next quarter.
() Requests. Details of any requests to the Oneida Business Committee.
(q) Other. And any other information deemed appropriate by the entity, as well as any

other information required to-beforwarded-to-the Tribal Seeretary's Officeforproper
storage-and-dispesalby a law or policy of the Nation.

105.10—DBisselutionof-12-4. Annual and Semi-Annual Reports to the General Tribal Council.
Entities

e e e shall e e e P
I e direoti be included within by_laws.

10.C. 105 - Page 16




62 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 09 12

e;:_)orts to the Onelda General Tribal CounC|I erbased on their act|V|t|es during the previous
fiscal year, and semi-annual reports based on their activities during the current fiscal year. All
annual and semi-annual reports shaII follow a format prescrlbed by the Onelda Business

4:954:9—4—A+I—Gh&ut|eersens(a) Annua and Seeretaﬁe&o#ehsselvedentlttesseml annual
reports shall be—respensiblefor—elosing—out-openbusinesscontain information on the

number of substantiated complaints against all members of the entity.
(b) Each entity with oversight of a department shall also submit annual and feraarding
materialssemi-annual reports for each department the entity oversees.

40544 105.12-5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements may result in the
Oneida Business Committee placing a hold on the release of a stipend payment.

105.13. Stipends, Reimbursement and Compensation for-Service
105.13-1. Stipends 395311 —Compensation-and reimbursement for expenses shall be-follow

the procedures as set out in this section and according to procedures for pavment as set out in

ef—Wlseensmby the Natlon,-

$595Hpend—peementh4mmtaﬂenend—sh&l#eeewea¢$5&105 13 2 The Onelda Busmess

Committee shall set stipend fer—each—meeting—held—in—-accordance—with—amounts by
resolutmn%@%

105.11-5- The Oneida Business Committee shall periodically review the amounts provided for

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 17



63 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
meeting stipends and, based on the availability of funds, shall adjust those amounts accordingly
by amending this-Pelieythe resolution. Stipends are paid in the form of cash or cash equivalent,
which may include, but is not limited to, gift cards.
105.13-3. Meeting Stipends. A member of an entity shall only receive a meeting stipend for a
reqular or emergency meeting where a quorum has been established in accordance with the duly
adopted bylaws of that entity, that lasts for at least one (1) hour, and the member collecting the
stipend is physically present for the entire meeting.
(a) Meeting Stipends for an Appointed Entity. An individual serving on an appointed
entity shall be paid no more than one (1) meeting stipend per month.
(b) Meeting Stipends for an Elected Entity. An individual serving on an elected entity
shall be paid no more than two (2) meeting stipends per month.
105.13-4. Joint Meeting Stipends. A member of an entity shall only receive a stipend for a
joint meeting where a quorum has been established in accordance with the duly adopted bylaws
of that entity, that lasts for at least one (1) hour, and the member collecting the stipend is
physically present for the entire meeting.
(a) An individual shall receive a stipend for his or her attendance at a duly called joint
meeting.
(1) A joint meeting stipend does not count towards the limitation on meeting
stipends as provided for in section 105.13-3(a)-(b).
105.13-5. 105:11-6.0Oneida Judiciary Hearings. A member of an entity shall receive a Judiciary
hearing stipend if the member’s attendance at the Judiciary hearing is required by official
subpoena.
105.13-6. Hearings of an Entity. A member of an entity that maintains hearing authority may
obtain a hearing stipend for conducting hearings administered by the entity. A hearing consists
of all functions related to the resolution of the matter notwithstanding the amount of time it
takes to resolve the matter, including, but not limited to, any continuations of the hearing and
decision drafting.
105.13-7. Other Stipends. The Oneida Business Committee shall determine if, and when, any
other stipends are appropriate to compensate members of entities for their official actions. All
possible stipends shall be included in the Oneida Business Committee resolution which sets
stipend amounts.
105.13-8. Conferences and Training. A member of any entity, elected or appointed, shall be
reimbursed in accordance with the FribalNation’s policy for travel and per diem, for attending a
conference or training. Provided that:
(@) A member shall be eligible for a-$100 stipend for each full day the member is present
at the conference or training, when attendance at the conference or training is required
by law, bylaw or resolution.
(b) A member shall not be eligible for a conference and training stipend if that training is
not required by law, bylaw or resolution.
(c) No stipend payments shall be made for those days spent traveling to and from the
conference or training.
105.42-#13-9. Business Expenses. All members of entities shall be eligible for reimbursement
for normal business expenses naturally related to membership in the entity.
105.11-813-10. Task Force members-and -membersAd Hoc Subcommittees. Members of task

10.C. 105 - Page 18



64 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)

2018 0912

force, ad hoc committees and subcommittees shall not be eligible for stipends unless specific
exception is made by the Oneida Business Committee or the Oneida General Tribal Council.

105.2214. Confldentlal Informatlon

assu#e%&eenﬂn&ed%ueees&&nd—mm#&reAll members of the—'Fnbe—H—&HHhe—best—mterespef
the—Oneida—TFribe—thatallofficialsan entity shall maintain in a confidential manner all

information,.—whether—ef-historical—mmediate,—orfuture—use—orneed. obtained through their
position on the entity. The Oneida-Tribe-desiresNation requires that all efficialsmembers of an
entity who have access to the Oneida—Tribe'sNation’s confidential information be subject to
specific limitations in order to protect the interest of the OneldaTFribe—H-isthe-intention-ofthe
Oneida—TribeNation and ensure that no persons engaged in by the FribeNation, nor their

relatives or assouates beneflt from the use of confldentlal information.

(a)38542-3. Confidential information shall be considered and kept as the private and
privileged records of the Onetda—TribeNation and will not be divulged to any person,
firm, corporation, or other entity except by direct written authorization of the Oneida
Business Committee.
105-12-4—An-official(b) A member of an entity will continue to treat as private and
privileged any confidential information, and will not release any such information to any
person, firm, corporation, or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness,
except upon direct written authority of Oneida Business Committee, and the Oneida
FribeNation shall be entitled to an injunction by any competent court to enjoin and
restrain the unauthorized disclosure of such information. Such restriction continues after
termination of the relationship with the Onetda—FribeNation and the entity.
(c)265-42-5. Upon completion or termination of hisf or her elected or appointed term of
membership in an entity, for any cause whatsoever, the efficialmember of the entity will
surrender to the Oneida—TFribeNation, in good condition, all records kept by the
employeemember of the entity.
105-12-6:(d) No efficialmember of an entity shall disclose confidential information
acquired by reason of histher other relationship or status with the Oneida—TribeNation
for hisf or her personal advantage, gain, or profit, or for the advantage, gain, or profit of
a relative or associate.
105.14-2. Any records created or obtained while as an official of an entity are the property of
the Nation and can only be removed or destroyed by approval from a majority vote of the entity
at a duly called meeting. All removal or destruction of documents must be made in accordance
with the Nation’s laws and policies regarding open records and open meetings.
105.14-3. Official Oneida Nation E-mail Address. Each member of an entity shall be provided
an official Oneida e-mail address upon election or appointment for the purpose of conducting
business of the entity electronically.

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 19



65 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912

(a) If a member is also an employee of the Nation, he or she shall receive a separate e-
mail address from his or her regular work e-mail address.
(b) A member of an entity shall sign an acknowledgment form provided by the Nation’s
Secretary indicating notice of the Nation’s applicable computer and media related laws,
policies and rules. The Nation’s Secretary shall maintain a record of all such
acknowledgment forms.
(c) A member of an entity shall not use any personal or work e-mail address to
electronically conduct any business of the entity.
(d) Immediately upon receipt of notice of an entity vacancy, the Nation’s Secretary
shall instruct the Management Information Systems department to disable the e-mail
address for the member having vacated the position.

105.15. Conflicts of Interest
105.15-1. All members of an entity are required to adhere to the Nation’s laws and policies
governing conflicts of interest.
105.15-2. A member of an entity shall disclose a conflict of interest to the Nation’s Secretary as
soon as the conflict arises, and update a conflict of interest disclosure form with the Nation’s
Secretary on an annual basis.
(a) Upon receiving information of a potential conflict of interest, the Nation’s Secretary
shall request a determination from the Oneida Law Office whether further action must
be taken by the Nation regarding the status of the official.
105.15-3. Due to the potential for a real or perceived conflict of interest to exist, political
appointees shall not serve on an appointed or elected entity.

105.16. Use of the Nation’s Assets

1 O.C. 105 - Page 20



O©COoO~NOUILE, WN P

66 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912

10.C. 105 - Page 21



14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58

67 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 09 12

4:95—1%—4;9—Aurmamtam all bank accounts for tribalthe Nation’s funds shat-be-maintained-in the
name of the Oneida Fribe—andNation. Bank accounts will be reflected on the Oneida
Fribe'sNation's books in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting ProeeduresPrinciples.
105.43-2016-2. Each effieialmember of an entity shall comply with the system of internal
accounting controls sufficient to provide assurances that:

(a) all transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization; and

(b) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authorization;

and

(c)— all transactions are recorded to permit preparation of financial statements in

conformity with generalhy-aceepted-aceeuntingprineiplesGenerally Accepted Accounting
rlncu:_)le or other appllcable crlterla




59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103

68 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912

4:95—13—24105 16-3. Any evidence of noncompliance with any policy regarding the use of tribal
assets shall be immediately reported to the internral-audit-staffInternal Audit department. If the
nternalauditstaffinternal Audit department finds evidence of noncompliance they shall notify
the Oneida Law Office-efthe-Oneida—Tribe, who will then make a determination of further action
to be taken, if any.

105.17. Dissolution of an Entity
105.17-1. Dissolution of a Task Force or Ad Hoc Committee. A task force or ad hoc committee
dissolves upon a set date or acceptance of a final report. Unless otherwise indicated, the
materials generated by a task force or ad hoc committee shall be forwarded to the Subpart-H-
Business Committee Support Office for proper disposal within two (2) weeks of the dissolution.
105.17-2. Dissolution of an Entity. All other entities of the Nation shall be dissolved only by
motion of the Oneida General Tribal Council or the Oneida Business Committee.
105.17-3. Notice of Dissolution. Within five (5) business days of the Oneida General Tribal
Council or the Oneida Business Committee taking official action to dissolve an entity, the
Oneida Business Committee shall provide the entity written notice of the dissolution.
105.17-4. Management of Records and Materials. All chairpersons and secretaries of dissolved
entities shall be responsible for closing out open business of the entity and forwarding all
materials and records to the Business Committee Support Office for proper storage and disposal
within two (2) weeks of dissolution. The entity shall not alter or destroy any records. The
Business Committee Support Office may utilize the assistance of the Records Management
Department and/or any other appropriate department for the storage and disposal of the records
and materials.
(a) The entity may request the Oneida Business Committee to grant a one (1) week
extension of the time allowed to close out open business of the entity and forward all
materials and records to the Business Committee Support Office.

105.18. Enforcement-And-Penalties
105.13-25—Officials105.18-1.  Any member of an entity found to be in violation of this
polieylaw may be remevedsubject to:
(a) sanctions and penalties in accordance with any laws or policies of the Nation
governing sanctions and/or penalties;
(b) removal pursuant to the Remeval-tawany laws or policies of the Nation’s governing
removal, if the individual is a member of an elected entity; or-have-their
(c) termination of appointment terminatedby the Oneida Business Committee, if the

|nd|V|duaI isa member of an appomted entlty

1 O.C. 105 - Page 23



69 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration (Redline to Current)
2018 0912
104 |
105  End.

106
108

109 ‘ Adopted - BC-8-208-02-95-A

110 | Amended - BC-505-14-97-F

111  Emergency Amendments - BC-04-12-06-JJ

112 | Amended - BC-909-27-06-E (permanent adoption of emergency amendments)
113  Amended - BC-09-22-10-C

114 | Amended - BC-

115

116

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 24



O©Ooo~NOoO Ol WN -

70 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration

2018 0912
Title 1. Government and Finances — Chapter 105
BOARDS, COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS
Laotiyanl<hsla>sh&ha k<tyohkway<-t&=se>
Their laws of the groups we have
105.1. Purpose and Policy 105.10. Bylaws
105.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 105.11 Electronic Polling
105.3. Definitions 105.12. Reporting Requirements
105.4. Creation of an Entity 105.13. Stipends, Reimbursement and Compensation
105.5. Applications 105.14. Confidential Information
105.6. Vacancies 105.15. Conflicts of Interest
105.7. Appointment to an Entity 105.16. Use of the Nation’s Assets
105.8. Election to an Entity 105.17. Dissolution of an Entity
105.9. Oath of Office 105.18. Enforcement

105.1. Purpose and Policy
105.1-1. It is the purpose of this law to govern boards, committees, and commissions of the
Nation, including the procedures regarding the appointment and election of persons to boards,
committees and commissions, creation of bylaws, maintenance of official records, compensation,
and other items related to boards, committees and commissions.
(a) This law shall not apply to the Oneida Business Committee, or Standing Committees
of the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) This law does not apply to Tribal corporations due to the corporate structure and
autonomy of those entities.
105.1-2. It is the policy of the Nation to have consistent and standard procedures for choosing
and appointing or electing the most qualified persons to boards, committees and commissions,
for creation of bylaws governing boards committees and commissions, and for the maintenance
of information created by and for boards, committees and commissions.

105.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal

105.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida Business Committee by resolution BC-05-14-97-F
and amended by resolutions BC-09-27-06-E, BC-09-22-10-C, and BC-__- - -

105.2-2. This law may be amended or repealed by the Oneida Business Commlttee or the
General Tribal Council pursuant to the procedures set out in the Legislative Procedures Act.
105.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are
considered to have legal force without the invalid portions.

105.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of this law and a provision of another
law, the provisions of this law shall control.

105.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.

105.3. Definitions
105.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law. All
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense.
(a) "Application” means the form by which a person seeks to be appointed to fill a
vacancy on an entity.

10.C. 105 — Page 1



33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77

71 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912

(b) "Appointment™” means the process by which a person is chosen to fill a vacancy on an
entity by the Oneida Business Committee.
(c) “Business day” means Monday through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.,
excluding holidays recognized by the Nation.
(d) “Bylaws” means a document which provides a framework for the operation and
management of a board, committee, or commission of the Nation chiefly for the
government of its members and the regulation of its affairs.
(e) “Conference” means any training, seminar, meeting, or other assembly of persons
which is not an assembly of the entity.
(fH “Confidential information” means all information or data, whether printed, written, or
oral, concerning business or customers of the Nation, disclosed to, acquired by, or
generated by a member of an entity in confidence at any time during their elected or
appointed term or during their employment.
(g) “Conflict of interest” means any interest, real or apparent, whether it be personal,
financial, political, or otherwise, in which an elected official, officer, political appointee,
employee, contractor, or appointed or elected member, or their immediate family
members, friends or associates, or any other person with whom they have contact, have
that conflicts with any right of the Nation to property, information, or any other right to
own and operate activities free from undisclosed competition or other violation of such
rights of the Nation. In addition, conflict of interest also means any financial or familial
interest an elected official, officer, political appointee, employee, contractor, or appointed
or elected member or their immediate family members may have in any transaction
between the Nation and an outside party.
(h) "Entity" means a board, committee or commission created by the General Tribal
Council or the Oneida Business Committee whose members are appointed by the Oneida
Business Committee or elected by the Nation’s membership.
(1) “E-poll” means an electronic poll, which is the act of delivering an e-mail to all
members of an entity, in order to seek a response which identifies a vote in favor of,
opposing, or abstaining to an issue requiring approval by the entity.
(J) “Joint meeting” means a meeting with the Oneida Business Committee.
(k) “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.
() “Per Diem” means the payment made by the Nation to offset the costs of being on
travel on behalf of the Oneida Nation.
(m) “Political appointee” means a person appointed by a member of the Oneida Business
Committee to provide assistance with the Oneida Business Committee member’s daily
activities and operations.
(n) “Prohibited drugs” means marijuana, cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, phencyclidine
(PCP), hallucinogens, methaqualone, barbiturates, narcotics, and any other substance
included in Schedules I through V, as defined by Section 812 of Title 21 of the United
States Code. This also includes prescription medication or over-the-counter medicine
used in an unauthorized or unlawful manner.
(o) “Stipend” means the amount paid by the Oneida Nation to a person serving on a
board, committee, or commission of the Nation in order to compensate the individual for
his or her contribution of time, effort, and work for his or her board, committee, or
commission for the betterment of the Nation.

1 O.C. 105 - Page 2



78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122

72 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912

(p) “Subcommittee” means a subgroup of an entity; which is comprised of fewer than all
members of the entity; which is designated one (1) or more specific responsibilities on
behalf of the entity.
(q) “Substantiated complaint” means a complaint or allegation in a complaint that was
found to be valid by clear and convincing evidence.
(r) "Task Force or Ad Hoc" means a group of persons gathered to pursue a single goal,
the accomplishment of which means the disbanding of the group. The goal is generally
accomplished in a short time period, i.e. less than one year, but the goal itself may be
long-term.
(s) "Vacancy" means any position on any board, committee or commission caused by
resignation, end of term, removal, termination, or creation of a new position.

105.4. Creation of an Entity

105.4-1. An entity of the Nation shall be created by a resolution or law adopted by the Oneida
Business Committee or General Tribal Council.

105.4-2. The law or resolution establishing the entity shall state the purpose of the entity and all
powers and responsibilities delegated to the entity.

105.4-3. The Oneida Business Committee shall be responsible for drafting the initial bylaws of
the entity.

105.5. Applications
105.5-1. The Oneida Business Committee shall approve all applications to serve on an entity of
the Nation. All application materials shall be available in the Business Committee Support Office
and any other location specified by the Business Committee Support Office.
(a) All applications shall include:
(1) astatement explaining the attendance requirements of section 105.12-3; and
(2) asection regarding disclosures of conflicts of interest.
(b) An additional application form shall be required for those entities that require a
background investigation. This background investigation application shall include the
applicant’s social security number and any other information required for a background
investigation. The background investigation application shall be solely used for the
background investigation and not included in the application materials that are then
shared with the Oneida Business Committee, entity, and/or the Election Board.
105.5-2. Applications shall be filed with the Business Committee Support Office by 4:30 p.m. of
the deadline date. Postmarked envelopes are accepted as filed if postmarked by the deadline date
and received by the Business Committee Support Office within five (5) business days of the
deadline.
105.5-3. Eight (8) days after the posted deadline for filing applications the Business Committee
Support Office shall notify all persons who have filed an application of the date his or her
application was received and if his or her application met the deadline to be considered for the
election or appointment.
105.5-4. Applications for elected positions shall be verified according to the Nation’s laws
and/or policies governing elections. Applications for appointed positions shall be verified by the
Business Committee Support Office as needed or as required in the bylaws of the entity.
105.5-5. Insufficient Applicants. In the event that there are an insufficient number of applicants

1 0.C. 105 - Page 3



123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167

73 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
after the deadline date has passed for appointed positions, the Oneida Business Committee may
elect to:
(a) include within the pool of appointed persons late applications, or
(b) repost for an additional time period. In the event of reposting, prior applicants will
be considered to have filed applications within the deadline period.

105.6. Vacancies

105.6-1. The manner by which an individual fills a vacancy, either through election or
appointment, shall determine that member’s status as an appointed or elected official, despite the
entity’s classification as an appointed or elected entity pursuant to the entity’s bylaws.

105.6-2. A position on an entity shall be considered vacant in the following situations:

(a) End of Term. A vacancy is effective as of 4:30 p.m. of the last day of the month in

which the term ends.

(1) Although a position is considered vacant once the term ends, the member of
the entity may remain in office until the member’s successor has been sworn in by
the Oneida Business Committee in an effort to prevent a discontinuation of
business or a loss of quorum for the entity.

(b) Removal. Removal is effective, pursuant to any law and/or policy of the Nation

regarding removal.

(c) Termination of Appointment. A termination is effective upon a two-thirds (2/3)

majority vote of the Oneida Business Committee in favor of a member’s termination of

appointment.

(d) Resignation. A resignation is effective upon:

(1) Deliverance of a letter to the Business Committee Support Office and to the
Chairperson of the entity, or designee; or
(2) Acceptance by motion of the entity of a verbal resignation.

(e) New Positions. Vacancies on new entities are effective upon adoption of bylaws.
105.6-3. An entity shall notify the Business Committee Support Office as soon as the entity
learns that a position has or will become vacant. All notices of vacancy shall be sent to the
entities for clarification or confirmation prior to notification to the Oneida Business Committee.
105.6-4. The Business Committee Support Office shall forward the notice of vacancy to the
Secretary. The Secretary shall request and receive approval from the Oneida Business
Committee to post the notice of vacancy. The Business Committee Support Office shall post
notice of vacancies at the following times:

(a) End of Term. Automatically sixty (60) days prior to completion of the term.

(b) Removal. No later than the next Oneida Business Committee meeting following the

effective date of the removal.

(c) Resignation. No later than the next Oneida Business Committee meeting following

the Business Committee Support Office’s receipt of notice of an effective resignation

from the entity.
(d) New Positions. Upon one of the following conditions:
(1) if not specified, immediately upon creation of entity or adoption of bylaws,
whichever is later, or
(2) upon date specified when creating the entity.

(e) Termination of appointment. No later than the next Oneida Business Committee

1 0.C. 105 — Page 4



168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212

74 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
meeting following the effective date of the termination.
105.6-5. Notice of vacancies shall be posted by the Business Committee Support Office in all
official media outlets of the Nation, as determined by the Oneida Business Committee, as well as
any other location deemed appropriate by the Secretary.

105.7. Appointment to an Entity
105.7-1. Appointment Selection. The following procedures shall be used to determine how the
applicant for an appointed position is selected:
(a) Eight (8) business days after the posted deadline for submitting an application, or
within twenty-one (21) days of the posted deadline if the entity requires a background
investigation to be completed as part of the application process, the Business Committee
Support Office shall:
(1) deliver all applications, along with a summary of qualifications to hold office,
and the results of the background investigation if required, to each member of the
Oneida Business Committee as well as the entity’s Chairperson; and
(2) place the appointment for the entity on the next executive session portion of
the agenda of a regular or special Oneida Business Committee meeting in which
the appointment is intended to be made.
(b) Each member of the Oneida Business Committee shall review the application
materials prior to executive session and be prepared to discuss and select an applicant for
appointment.
(1) The entity’s Chairperson may have until the executive session to review the
application materials and provide the Oneida Business Committee a
recommendation of an applicant for appointment.
(c) The Oneida Business Committee shall have a full and complete discussion of the
merits and qualifications of the potential applicants, and any recommendation made by
the Chairperson of the entity, during executive session. After completing a thorough
discussion, the Oneida Business Committee shall:
(1) choose an applicant for appointment, or
(2) ask the Oneida Nation’s Secretary to re-notice the vacancy because of
ineligible, unqualified, or under qualified applicants.
(d) All appointments shall be made by the Oneida Business Committee during the open
session of a regular or special Oneida Business Committee meeting. The Oneida Business
Committee shall not appoint an applicant who fails to meet the requirements set out in the
entity's bylaws.
(e) During the open session of the regular or special Oneida Business Committee
meeting, a member of the Oneida Business Committee may make a motion to appoint an
individual. Oneida Business Committee members may:
(1) accept the selected applicant and vote to appoint the individual to the vacant
position, or
(2) reject the selected applicant and vote to oppose the appointment of the
individual.
(f) If the Oneida Business Committee rejects the selected applicant, the matter will be
deferred to the next Oneida Business Committee meeting where another applicant may be
recommended by the Oneida Business Committee, or the Oneida Business Committee

10.C. 105 -Page 5



213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248

75 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
may direct the vacancy to be re-posted. When a vacancy is re-posted under this section,
all applications from the first posting shall be considered to have been filed within the
deadline period.
105.7-2. Notification of Appointment. Once an individual is selected for appointment at an
Oneida Business Committee meeting, the Nation’s Secretary shall notify all applicants of the
final status of their application.
(@) The Nation’s Chairperson shall forward a list of all applicants to the Nation’s
Secretary and the final decision regarding the selection after the procedures for selection
of an applicant described in section 105.7-1 are completed.
(b) The Nation’s Secretary shall include on the notice to the applicant selected for
appointment the following paragraph: “The Oneida Nation reports all income paid by the
Oneida Nation in whatever form. The Internal Revenue Service of the United States
considers stipends paid to members of boards, committees, and commissions to be
income which may be offset by expenses related to that income. You will receive an
income report which is also forwarded to the Internal Revenue Service, it is also your
responsibility to keep documentation of expenses related to this income.”
105.7-3. Declination of Appointment. An individual who has been selected for appointment to
an entity by the Oneida Business Committee may decline the appointment.
(&) An individual may decline an appointment to an entity in the following ways:
(1) Delivery of an letter stating that the individual wishes to decline the
appointment to the Business Committee Support Office; or
(2) The failure to take the oath of office within thirty (30) days of being selected
for appointment by the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) The Business Committee Support Office shall notify the Oneida Business Committee
if an individual declines an appointment to an entity. The Oneida Business Committee
shall then use the original pool of applications for the vacancy posting and the process
outlined in section 105.7-1 to select another applicant for appointment.
105.7-4. Termination of Appointment. An appointed member of an entity serves at the
discretion of the Oneida Business Committee. Upon the recommendation of a member of the
Oneida Business Committee or the entity, a member of an appointed entity may have his or her
appointment terminated by the Oneida Business Committee.
(a) A two-thirds majority vote of the Oneida Business Committee shall be required in
order to terminate the appointment of an individual.
(b) The Oneida Business Committee’s decision to terminate an appointment is final and
not subject to appeal.

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 6



249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293

76 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
105.8 Election to an Entity
105.8-1. All elected positions shall be nominated at a caucus called by the Oneida Election
Board, or petition for ballot placement, in accordance with the Nation’s laws and/or policies
governing elections, except where an entity’s bylaws allow for a vacancy to be filled by
appointment.
(a) When the Election Board notifies a petitioner or nominee that he or she is eligible to
be placed on the ballot, the following paragraph shall be included: “The Oneida Nation
reports all income paid by the Nation in whatever form. The Internal Revenue Service of
the United States considers stipends paid to members of boards, committees, and
commissions to be income which may be offset by expenses related to that income. You
will receive an income report which is also forwarded to the Internal Revenue Service, it
is also your responsibility to keep documentation of expenses related to this income.”
105.8-2. All other processes for the election of a member of an entity shall be as directed by the
Nation’s laws and/or policies governing elections.

105.9. Oath of Office
105.9-1. All appointed and elected positions are official upon taking an oath during a regular or
special Oneida Business Committee meeting. All rights and delegated authorities of membership
in the entity shall vest upon taking the oath. The Nation’s Secretary shall notify the chosen
persons when they shall appear for taking the oath.
(@) The appointed or elected member shall appear in person at the Oneida Business
Committee meeting to take his or her oath, except if granted permission by the Secretary
to appear by video conferencing equipment.
105.9-2. The Oneida Business Committee shall approve wording of oaths. Any revisions of
oaths shall be approved by the Oneida Business Committee prior to usage. Oaths shall be kept on
file by the Business Committee Support Office.
105.9-3. Originals of the signed oath, or electronic copies of the originals of the signed oath,
shall be maintained by the Business Committee Support Office. Copies of the oath shall be
forwarded to the new member of the entity and the entity.
105.9-4. The following oath is the standard oath to be used unless a specific oath for the entity is
pre-approved by the Oneida Business Committee: I, [name], hereby promise to uphold the laws
and regulations of the Oneida Nation, the General Tribal Council, and the Oneida Nation
Constitution. | will perform my duties to the best of my ability and on behalf of the Oneida
people with honor, respect, dignity, and sincerity and will strictly maintain confidential
information. I will carry out the duties and responsibilities as a member of the [entity name], and
all recommendations shall be made in the best interest of the Oneida Nation as a whole.
105.9-5. All oaths shall be sufficient to make the appointed or elected member of an entity
aware of their duty to the Nation and as members of the entity.

105.10. Bylaws
105.10-1. All entities of the Nation shall have bylaws that conform to the requirements of this
law. Bylaws shall become effective upon approval of the Oneida Business Committee, unless
where General Tribal Council approval is additionally required.
(@) All existing entities must comply with this format and present bylaws for adoption
within a reasonable time after creation of the entity, or within a reasonable time after

10.C. 105 - Page 7



294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338

77 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912

adoption of this law.
(b) Bylaws must contain at least the minimum information required by law, although
more information is not prohibited.
(c) Exception. Task Forces and Ad Hoc Committees are excepted from the requirement
to have bylaws. However, these entities must have, at minimum, mission or goal
statements for completion of the task.

105.10-2. Articles. Bylaws shall contain, at a minimum, the following Articles:

(a) Article I. Authority.

(b) Article 1. Officers.

(c) Article Ill. Meetings.

(d) Article V. Expectations.

(e) Article V. Stipends and Compensation.
(f) Article VI. Records and Reporting.
(g) Article VII. Amendments.

105.10-3. Sections. Articles shall be divided into "sections" as set out.

(@) "Article 1. Authority" shall consist of the following:
(1) Name. The full name of the entity shall be stated, along with any short name
that will be officially used.
(2) Establishment. This section shall state the citation and name, if any, of the
creation document.
(3) Authority. This section shall state the purpose for which the entity was
created and what, if any, authority the entity is delegated.
(4) Office. There shall be listed the official office or post box of the entity.
(5) Membership. The following information shall be in this section:
(A) Number of members on the entity;
(B) If members on the entity are elected or appointed, and how a member
is elected or appointed;
(C) How vacancies are filled; and
(D) Qualifications for membership on the entity.
(1) In order to qualify for membership on an entity, a person shall
meet the minimum age requirements set forth for status as a
qualified voter of the Nation, unless a law, policy, or directive sets
forth a minimum age requirement.
(6) Termination or Removal. This section shall identify causes for termination or
removal, if any, in addition to those already identified in laws and/or policies of
the Nation.
(7) Trainings and Conferences. This section shall describe any trainings and/or
conferences that the entity deems necessary for members to responsibly serve the
entity, if any.
(b) "Article Il. Officers" shall consist of the following:
(1) Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. This section creates the chairperson and
vice-chairperson positions of the entity. Other officer positions may also be
created here.
(2) Responsibilities of the Chairperson. Because of the importance of this
position, all duties and responsibilities of the chairperson, as well as limitations of

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 8



339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383

78 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
the chairperson shall be specifically listed here.
(3) Responsibilities of the Vice-Chairperson. Because of the importance of this
position, all duties and responsibilities of the vice-chairperson, as well as
limitations of the vice-chairperson shall be specifically listed here.
(4) Responsibilities of Additional Officers. There may be additional sections as
needed for every officer position created in subsection one (1) above. These
sections shall state all duties and responsibilities of the officer, as well as any
limitations of the officer.
(5) Selection of Officers. This section shall identify how a member of the entity
shall be selected for an official officer position in the entity.
(6) Budgetary Sign-Off Authority and Travel. This section shall identify the
entity’s varying levels of budgetary sign-off authority, the members that are
authorized to sign-off at each level, and how the entity shall handle approving
travel on behalf of the entity.
(A) An entity shall follow the Nation’s policies and procedures regarding
purchasing and sign-off authority.
(B) An entity shall approve a member’s request to travel on behalf of the
entity by majority vote at a regular or emergency meeting of the entity.
(7) Personnel. This section shall state the entity’s authority for hiring personnel,
if any, and the duties of such personnel.

(c) "Article 111. Meetings" shall consist of the following:

(1) Regular meetings. This section shall identify when and where regular
meetings shall be held, and how the entity shall provide notice of the meeting
agenda, documents, and minutes.
(2) Emergency meetings. This section shall identify what constitutes an
emergency meeting, how emergency meetings shall be called, and how the entity
shall provide notice of the emergency meeting.
(A) All bylaws shall include a provision requiring that within seventy-two
(72) hours after an emergency meeting, the entity shall provide the
Nation’s Secretary with notice of the meeting, the reason for the
emergency meeting, and an explanation of why the matter could not wait
for a regular meeting.
(3) Joint Meetings. This section shall identify if joint meetings shall be held, the
frequency and location of joint meetings, and how the entity shall provide notice
of the meeting agenda, documents, and minutes.
(4) Quorum. This section shall identify how many members of an entity create a
quorum.
(5) Order of Business. This section sets out how the agenda will be set up.
(6) Voting. This section shall identify voting requirements, such as, but not
limited to:
(A) the percentages that shall be needed to pass different items;
(B) if, and when, the chairperson is allowed to vote;
(C) if the use of an e-poll is permissible; and
(D) if the use of and e-poll is permissible, who will serve as the
Chairperson’s designee for the responsibility of conducting an e-poll, if a

10.C. 105 -Page 9



384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428

79 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
designee is utilized.

(d) “Article IV. Expectations” shall consist of the following information:

(1) Behavior of Members. This section shall identify the behavioral expectations
and requirements of a member of the entity, and identify how the entity shall
enforce these behavioral expectations.

(2) Prohibition of Violence. This section shall prohibit any violent intentional act
committed by a member of the entity that inflicts, attempts to inflict, or threatens
to inflict emotional or bodily harm on another person, or damage to property, and
set forth any further expectations regarding the prohibition of violence.

(3) Drug and Alcohol Use. This section shall prohibit the use of alcohol and
prohibited drugs for a member of an entity when acting in their official capacity,
and set forth any further expectations regarding the use of prohibited drugs and
alcohol.

(4) Social Media. This section shall identify expectations for the use of social
media in regards to official business of the entity.

(5) Conflict of Interest. This section shall state any standards and expectations
additional to those required by law of the Nation in regards to conflicts of interest
and how they are handled, as well as requirements related to prohibited activities
resulting from disclosed conflicts of interest, and means by which a party can
alleviate or mitigate the conflict of interest.

(e) “Article V. Stipends and Compensation” shall consist of the following information:

(1) Stipends. This section shall include a comprehensive list of all stipends
members are eligible to receive and the requirements for collecting each stipend,
if any in addition to those contained in this law.

(2) Compensation. This section shall include details regarding all other forms of
compensation members are eligible to receive and the requirements for collecting
such compensation, if any in addition to those contained in this law.

(f) "Article VI. Records and Reporting" shall consist of the following information:

(1) Agenda Items. Agenda items shall be maintained in a consistent format as
identified by this section.

(2) Minutes. Minutes shall be typed and in a consistent format designed to
generate the most informative record of the meetings of the entity. This may
include a summary of action taken by the entity. This section shall identify the
format for minutes, and a reasonable timeframe by which minutes shall be
submitted to the Business Committee Support Office.

(3) Attachments. Handouts, reports, memoranda, and the like may be attached to
the minutes and agenda, or may be kept separately, provided that all materials can
be identified to the meeting in which they were presented. This section shall
identify how records of attachments shall be kept.

(4) Oneida Business Committee Liaison. Entities shall regularly communicate
with the Oneida Business Committee member who is their designated liaison.
This section shall identify a format and frequency for communication which may
be as the liaison and entity agree to, but not less than that required in any law or
policy on reporting developed by the Oneida Business Committee or Oneida
General Tribal Council. The purpose of the liaison relationship is to uphold the

1 O.C. 105 - Page 10



429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473

80 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
ability of the liaison to act as a support to that entity.
(5) Audio Recordings. An entity shall audio record all meetings. This section
shall state how the entity shall audio record meetings, and how the entity shall
maintain the audio records.
(A) Exception. Audio recordings of executive session portions of a
meeting shall not be required.
(g) "Article VII. Amendments"” consists of:
(1) Amendments to Bylaws. This section shall describe how amendments to the
bylaws are made. Any amendments to bylaws shall conform to the requirements
of this and any other policy of the Nation. Amendments to bylaws shall be
approved by the Oneida Business Committee, in addition to the General Tribal
Council when applicable, prior to implementation.

105.11. Electronic Polling
105.11-1. An entity may utilize an e-poll when approval of an action may be required before the
next available meeting agenda of the entity.
105.11-2. Conducting an E-Poll. The Chairperson of the entity, or designee, shall e-mail the e-
poll to all members of the entity. Requests for an e-poll shall be sent only from an official e-mail
address of the entity. The e-poll’s message shall include the following information:
(@) The e-mail subject line shall begin with “E-poll Request:” and include a short title
describing the purpose of the request.
(b) The body of the e-poll shall contain the following elements:
(1) An executive summary of the reason for the request and why the request
cannot be presented at the next available meeting of the entity;
(2) A proposed motion which shall be in bold and identified in a separate
paragraph by the words “Requested Action;”
(3) All attachments in *.pdf format, which are necessary to understand the
request being made; and
(4) A deadline date for a response to be returned regarding the results of the
electronic poll which shall be in bold and identified in a separate paragraph by the
words “Deadline for Response.”
(A) E-poll requests shall be open for response not less than one (1) hour
and no more than twenty-four (24) hours.
(B) The time frame for responses shall be determined by the Secretary of
the entity, or designee, based on urgency, scheduling, and any other
pertinent factors.
105.11-3. Response to an E-Poll. A response from a member of an entity shall be valid if
received from an official e-mail address of the entity. No responses from unknown e-mails or
personal e-mails shall be accepted. An e-poll request shall receive responses from a majority of
members of the entity in order to be an official vote.
(a) E-polils that receive at least a majority of supporting votes by the deadline are
considered to be approved.
(b) E-polls for which insufficient responses were received by the deadline are considered
to have failed to receive support, and result in a denied request.
(c) E-polls that result in a denied request may be reconsidered by the entity at the next

1 0.C. 105 - Page 11



474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518

81 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
available meeting.
(d) The Chairperson, or designee, shall monitor all responses and deadline dates for
responses.
105.11-4. Entering an E-Poll in the Record. Both approved and denied e-poll requests shall be
placed on the next meeting agenda of the entity to be entered into the record. The agenda item
shall contain the following information:
(a) Original e-poll request and all supporting documentation;
(b) A summary of the e-poll results identifying each member of the entity and his or her
response; and
(c) A copy of any comment by a member of the entity if comments are made beyond a
vote.

105.12. Reporting Requirements
105.12-1. Minutes. All minutes shall be submitted to the Business Committee Support Office
within a reasonable time after approval by the entity, as identified in the entity’s bylaws.
(a) Actions taken by an entity are valid upon approval of the action by vote, unless the
bylaws of the entity otherwise require minutes to be approved by the entity before the
actions are valid.
(b) Minutes shall be filed according to this section, and any specific directions within
approved bylaws.
(c) No action or approval of minutes is required by the Oneida Business Committee on
minutes submitted by an entity unless specifically required by the bylaws of that entity.
105.12-2. Standard Operating Procedures. All standard operating procedures established by an
entity shall be submitted to the Business Committee Support Office, where they shall be kept on
file.
105.12-3. Quarterly Reports to the Oneida Business Committee. Entities shall provide quarterly
reports to the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the quarterly reporting schedule
approved by the Oneida Business Committee. All quarterly reports shall be approved by official
entity action before they are submitted. The quarterly reports shall not contain any information
that conflicts with any law, resolution, or policy of the Nation. At least one (1) member of the
entity shall attend the Oneida Business Committee meeting where the quarterly report is an
agenda item. Quarterly reports shall follow a format prescribed by the Oneida Business
Committee and contain the following information:
(a) Contact Information. The name of the entity, the member submitting the report, the
Oneida Business Committee liaison; and a list of the members and their titles, term
expiration dates and contact information.
(b) Meetings. When and how often the entity is holding meetings and whether any
emergency meetings have been held.
(1) 1If emergency meetings were held, the report shall indicate the basis of the
emergency for each meeting.
(c) Accomplishments. Details of what the entity has accomplished that quarter, including
any special events held during the reporting period and any travel by the members and/or
staff.
(d) Goals. Details of both the entity’s long term goals, the entity’s goals for the next
quarter, and projected quarterly activities.

1 0.C. 105 - Page 12



519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563

82 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
(e) Budget. The amount of the entity’s budget, the status of the budget at that quarter,
the amount of each stipend a member may be eligible to receive, how the budget is being
utilized by the entity, and projected budgetary uses for the next quarter.
() Requests. Details of any requests to the Oneida Business Committee.
(g) Other. And any other information deemed appropriate by the entity, as well as any
other information required by a law or policy of the Nation.
105.12-4. Annual and Semi-Annual Reports to the General Tribal Council. Entities shall
provide annual reports to the Oneida General Tribal Council based on their activities during the
previous fiscal year, and semi-annual reports based on their activities during the current fiscal
year. All annual and semi-annual reports shall follow a format prescribed by the Oneida Business
Committee.
(@ Annual and semi-annual reports shall contain information on the number of
substantiated complaints against all members of the entity.
(b) Each entity with oversight of a department shall also submit annual and semi-annual
reports for each department the entity oversees.
105.12-5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements may result in the Oneida
Business Committee placing a hold on the release of a stipend payment.

105.13. Stipends, Reimbursement and Compensation
105.13-1. Stipends and reimbursement for expenses shall follow the procedures as set out in this
section and according to procedures for payment as set out by the Nation, unless otherwise
declined by the entity through its bylaws, or declined by a member.
105.13-2. The Oneida Business Committee shall set stipend amounts by resolution. The Oneida
Business Committee shall periodically review the amounts provided for stipends and, based on
the availability of funds, shall adjust those amounts accordingly by amending the resolution.
Stipends are paid in the form of cash or cash equivalent, which may include, but is not limited to,
gift cards.
105.13-3. Meeting Stipends. A member of an entity shall only receive a meeting stipend for a
regular or emergency meeting where a quorum has been established in accordance with the duly
adopted bylaws of that entity, that lasts for at least one (1) hour, and the member collecting the
stipend is physically present for the entire meeting.

(a) Meeting Stipends for an Appointed Entity. An individual serving on an appointed

entity shall be paid no more than one (1) meeting stipend per month.

(b) Meeting Stipends for an Elected Entity. An individual serving on an elected entity

shall be paid no more than two (2) meeting stipends per month.
105.13-4. Joint Meeting Stipends. A member of an entity shall only receive a stipend for a joint
meeting where a quorum has been established in accordance with the duly adopted bylaws of
that entity, that lasts for at least one (1) hour, and the member collecting the stipend is physically
present for the entire meeting.

(a) An individual shall receive a stipend for his or her attendance at a duly called joint

meeting.

(1) A joint meeting stipend does not count towards the limitation on meeting
stipends as provided for in section 105.13-3(a)-(b).

105.13-5. Oneida Judiciary Hearings. A member of an entity shall receive a Judiciary hearing
stipend if the member’s attendance at the Judiciary hearing is required by official subpoena.

1 0O.C. 105 - Page 13



564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608

83 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
105.13-6. Hearings of an Entity. A member of an entity that maintains hearing authority may
obtain a hearing stipend for conducting hearings administered by the entity. A hearing consists of
all functions related to the resolution of the matter notwithstanding the amount of time it takes to
resolve the matter, including, but not limited to, any continuations of the hearing and decision
drafting.
105.13-7. Other Stipends. The Oneida Business Committee shall determine if, and when, any
other stipends are appropriate to compensate members of entities for their official actions. All
possible stipends shall be included in the Oneida Business Committee resolution which sets
stipend amounts.
105.13-8. Conferences and Training. A member of any entity, elected or appointed, shall be
reimbursed in accordance with the Nation’s policy for travel and per diem, for attending a
conference or training. Provided that:
(a) A member shall be eligible for a stipend for each full day the member is present at the
conference or training, when attendance at the conference or training is required by law,
bylaw or resolution.
(b) A member shall not be eligible for a conference and training stipend if that training is
not required by law, bylaw or resolution.
(c) No stipend payments shall be made for those days spent traveling to and from the
conference or training.
105.13-9. Business Expenses. All members of entities shall be eligible for reimbursement for
normal business expenses naturally related to membership in the entity.
105.13-10. Task Force and Ad Hoc Subcommittees. Members of task force, ad hoc committees
and subcommittees shall not be eligible for stipends unless specific exception is made by the
Oneida Business Committee or the Oneida General Tribal Council.

105.14. Confidential Information
105.14-1. All members of an entity shall maintain in a confidential manner all information
obtained through their position on the entity. The Nation requires that all members of an entity
who have access to the Nation’s confidential information be subject to specific limitations in
order to protect the interest of the Nation and ensure that no persons engaged in by the Nation,
nor their relatives or associates, benefit from the use of confidential information.
(a) Confidential information shall be considered and kept as the private and privileged
records of the Nation and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other
entity except by direct written authorization of the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) A member of an entity will continue to treat as private and privileged any
confidential information, and will not release any such information to any person, firm,
corporation, or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon
direct written authority of Oneida Business Committee, and the Nation shall be entitled to
an injunction by any competent court to enjoin and restrain the unauthorized disclosure of
such information. Such restriction continues after termination of the relationship with the
Nation and the entity.
(c) Upon completion or termination of his or her elected or appointed term of
membership in an entity, for any cause whatsoever, the member of the entity will
surrender to the Nation, in good condition, all records kept by the member of the entity.
(d) No member of an entity shall disclose confidential information acquired by reason of

10.C. 105 - Page 14



609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653

84 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration
2018 0912
his other relationship or status with the Nation for his or her personal advantage, gain, or
profit, or for the advantage, gain, or profit of a relative or associate.
105.14-2. Any records created or obtained while as an official of an entity are the property of the
Nation and can only be removed or destroyed by approval from a majority vote of the entity at a
duly called meeting. All removal or destruction of documents must be made in accordance with
the Nation’s laws and policies regarding open records and open meetings.
105.14-3. Official Oneida Nation E-mail Address. Each member of an entity shall be provided
an official Oneida e-mail address upon election or appointment for the purpose of conducting
business of the entity electronically.
(a) If a member is also an employee of the Nation, he or she shall receive a separate e-
mail address from his or her regular work e-mail address.
(b) A member of an entity shall sign an acknowledgment form provided by the Nation’s
Secretary indicating notice of the Nation’s applicable computer and media related laws,
policies and rules. The Nation’s Secretary shall maintain a record of all such
acknowledgment forms.
(c) A member of an entity shall not use any personal or work e-mail address to
electronically conduct any business of the entity.
(d) Immediately upon receipt of notice of an entity vacancy, the Nation’s Secretary shall
instruct the Management Information Systems department to disable the e-mail address
for the member having vacated the position.

105.15. Conflicts of Interest
105.15-1. All members of an entity are required to adhere to the Nation’s laws and policies
governing conflicts of interest.
105.15-2. A member of an entity shall disclose a conflict of interest to the Nation’s Secretary as
soon as the conflict arises, and update a conflict of interest disclosure form with the Nation’s
Secretary on an annual basis.
(a) Upon receiving information of a potential conflict of interest, the Nation’s Secretary
shall request a determination from the Oneida Law Office whether further action must be
taken by the Nation regarding the status of the official.
105.15-3. Due to the potential for a real or perceived conflict of interest to exist, political
appointees shall not serve on an appointed or elected entity.

105.16. Use of the Nation’s Assets
105.16-1. Entities shall maintain all bank accounts for the Nation’s funds in the name of the
Oneida Nation. Bank accounts will be reflected on the Oneida Nation's books in accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
105.16-2. Each member of an entity shall comply with the system of internal accounting
controls sufficient to provide assurances that:
(a) all transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization; and
(b) access to assets is permitted only in accordance with management's authorization;
and
(c) all transactions are recorded to permit preparation of financial statements in
conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles or other applicable criteria.
105.16-3. Any evidence of noncompliance with any policy regarding the use of tribal assets shall

1 O.C. 105 - Page 15



654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685

686
687
688
690
691
692
693
694
695
696

697
698

85 of 147

Draft 3 for OBC Consideration

2018 0912

be immediately reported to the Internal Audit department. If the Internal Audit department finds

evidence of noncompliance they shall notify the Oneida Law Office, who will then make a
determination of further action to be taken, if any.

105.17. Dissolution of an Entity
105.17-1. Dissolution of a Task Force or Ad Hoc Committee. A task force or ad hoc committee
dissolves upon a set date or acceptance of a final report. Unless otherwise indicated, the
materials generated by a task force or ad hoc committee shall be forwarded to the Business
Committee Support Office for proper disposal within two (2) weeks of the dissolution.
105.17-2. Dissolution of an Entity. All other entities of the Nation shall be dissolved only by
motion of the Oneida General Tribal Council or the Oneida Business Committee.
105.17-3. Notice of Dissolution. Within five (5) business days of the Oneida General Tribal
Council or the Oneida Business Committee taking official action to dissolve an entity, the
Oneida Business Committee shall provide the entity written notice of the dissolution.
105.17-4. Management of Records and Materials. All chairpersons and secretaries of dissolved
entities shall be responsible for closing out open business of the entity and forwarding all
materials and records to the Business Committee Support Office for proper storage and disposal
within two (2) weeks of dissolution. The entity shall not alter or destroy any records. The
Business Committee Support Office may utilize the assistance of the Records Management
Department and/or any other appropriate department for the storage and disposal of the records
and materials.
(@) The entity may request the Oneida Business Committee to grant a one (1) week
extension of the time allowed to close out open business of the entity and forward all
materials and records to the Business Committee Support Office.

105.18. Enforcement

105.18-1. Any member of an entity found to be in violation of this law may be subject to:
(a) sanctions and penalties in accordance with any laws or policies of the Nation
governing sanctions and/or penalties;
(b) removal pursuant to any laws or policies of the Nation’s governing removal, if the
individual is a member of an elected entity; or
(c) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee, if the individual is a

member of an appointed entity.
End.

Adopted - BC-08-02-95-A

Amended - BC-05-14-97-F

Emergency Amendments - BC-04-12-06-JJ

Amended - BC-09-27-06-E (permanent adoption of emergency amendments)
Amended — BC-09-22-10-C

Amended - BC-__-

1 O.C. 105 - Page 16



e
RPOOWONOUTRWNE

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

Phone: (920)869-2214

86 of 147

Oneida Nation

Post Office Box 365

i

Oneida, W1 54155

BC Resolution #
Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law Stipends

the Oneida Nation is a federally recognized Indian government and a treaty tribe
recognized by the laws of the United States of America; and

the Oneida General Tribal Council is the governing body of the Oneida Nation; and

the Oneida Business Committee has been delegated the authority of Article IV, Section 1,
of the Oneida Tribal Constitution by the Oneida General Tribal Council; and

the Boards, Committees, and Commissions law (“the Law”) was adopted by the Oneida
Business Committee through resolution BC-5-14-97-F and amended by resolutions BC-
09-27-06-E, BC-09-22-10-C, and most recently BC-__ - - - .;and

the Law provides stipends paid by the Oneida Nation to a person serving on a board,
committee, and commission of the Nation in order to compensate the individual for his or
her contribution of time, effort, and work for the boards, committee, or commission for the
betterment of the Nation; and

the Law requires the Oneida Business Committee to set stipend amounts by resolution;
and

the Oneida Business Committee shall periodically review the amounts provided for
stipends and, based on the availability of funds, shall adjust those amounts accordingly
by amending this resolution; and

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Oneida Business Committee sets forth the following
stipend amounts allowed to be paid to a member of a board, committee, or commission of the Nation:

1. Meetings of a Board, Committee, or Commission of the Nation. A member of a board, committee,
or commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend for attending a duly called meeting of the
board, committee, or commission in accordance with the Law.

a. Appointed Boards, Committees, and Commissions. A member of an appointed board,

committee, or commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend of seventy-five dollars
($75) for a duly called meeting of the board, committee, or commission for up to one (1)
meeting per month.
i. Appointed boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation include the
following:
Anna John Resident Centered Care Community Board;
Oneida Community Library Board,;
Environmental Resource Board;
Oneida Nation Arts Board,;
Oneida Nation Veterans Affairs Committee;

arwONE



87 of 147

BC Resolution #
Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law Stipends
Page 2 of 3

Personnel Selection Committee;

Oneida Police Commission;

Oneida Pow-wow Committee;

. Pardon and Forgiveness Screening Committee; and

10. Southeastern Oneida Tribal Services Advisory Board.

b. Elected Boards, Committees, and Commissions. A member of an elected board,
committee, or commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend of one hundred dollars
($100) for a duly called meeting of the boards, committee, or commission for up to two (2)
meetings per month.

i. Elected boards, committees, and commissions of the Nation include the
following:

Oneida Nation Commission on Aging;

Oneida Election Board,;

Oneida Land Claims Commission;

Oneida Land Commission;

Oneida Nation School Board,;

Oneida Trust Enrollment Committee; and

Oneida Gaming Commission;

a. Although the Oneida Gaming Commission is an elected
commission of the Nation, the Oneida Nation Gaming Ordinance
provides that the compensation of Oneida Nation Gaming
Commissioners is not subject to the Nation’'s Boards,
Committees, and Commissions law.

Joint Meetings with the Oneida Business Committee. A member of a board, committee, or

commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend for attending a duly called joint meeting between

the board, committee, or commission and the Oneida Business Committee in accordance with the

Law.

a. Appointed Boards, Committees, and Commissions. A member of an appointed board,
committee, or commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend of seventy-five dollars
($75) for a duly called joint meeting.

b. Elected Boards, Committees, and Commissions. A member of an elected board,
committee, or commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend of one hundred dollars
($100) for a duly called joint meeting.

Oneida Judiciary Hearings. A member of a board, committee, or commission of the Nation shall

receive a stipend of fifty dollars ($50) for attending a hearing of the Oneida Judiciary if the

member’s attendance at the hearing is required by official subpoena.

Hearings of a Board, Committee, or Commission of the Nation. A member of a board, committee,

or commission of the Nation shall receive a stipend of fifty dollars ($50) for conducting an official

hearing of the board, committee, or commission.

Miscellaneous Stipends. The Oneida Business Committee shall have the discretion to determine

any other stipends deemed appropriate.

a. Pow-wow Activities. A member of the Oneida Pow-wow Committee shall receive a
stipend of twenty-five dollars ($25) per hour for services he or she provides during each
Pow-wow, not to exceed two hundred dollars ($200) per day, contingent upon available
budgeted funds.

b. Election Activities. A member of the Oneida Election Board shall receive a stipend of ten
dollars ($10) per hour for services he or she provides during an election including, but not
limited to, managing the polling site, recounts, and lot drawings..

c. General Tribal Council Meetings. A member of the Oneida Election Board shall receive a
stipend of one hundred dollars ($100) for attendance and service provided at a General
Tribal Council meeting of the Nation.

© N

Nogakwbdr



95

97

98

99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106

88 of 147

BC Resolution #
Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law Stipends
Page 3 of 3

d. Interviews and Job Selection Pre-Screening. A member of the Personnel Selection
Committee shall receive a stipend of twenty-five dollars ($25) for up to four (4) hours of
participating in interviews and/or job description pre-screens conducted by the Human
Resource Department, and a stipend of fifty dollars ($50) for more than four (4) hours of
participating in interviews and/or job description pre-screens conducted by the Human
Resource Department.

6. Conferences and Training. A member of a board, committee, or commission of the Nation shall
receive a stipend of one hundred dollars ($100) per day for attendance at a conference or training
that is required by law, bylaw, or resolution.

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, that this resolution hereby adopted and shall be effective September 26,
2018.



89 of 147

Oneida Nation
Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, WI 54155-0365 ‘ ON E I DA

Oneida-nsn.gov

Statement of Effect
Boards, Committees, and Commissions Law Stipends

Summary
This resolution sets forth specific stipend amounts allowed to be paid to a member of a board,
committee, or commission of the Nation.

Submitted by: Clorissa N. Santiago, Staff Attorney, Legislative Reference Office
Date: September 5, 2018

Analysis by the Legislative Reference Office
The Boards, Committees, and Commissions law (“the Law”) was adopted by the Oneida
Business Committee for the purpose of governing boards, committees, and commissions of the
Nation, including the procedures regarding the appointment and election of persons to boards,
committees and commissions, creation of bylaws, maintenance of official records, compensation,
and other items related to boards, committees and commissions. [1 O.C. 105.1-1].

Stipends are paid by the Oneida Nation to a person serving on a board, committee, or
commission of the Nation in order to compensate the individual for his or her contribution of
time, effort, and work for his or her board, committee, or commission for the betterment of the
Nation. [1 O.C. 105.3-1(n)].

The Law requires that the Oneida Business Committee set stipend amounts by resolution. [1
0O.C. 105.13-2]. Through this resolution the Oneida Business Committee sets forth the specific
amounts for the various stipends a member of a board, committee, or commission may be
eligible to receive.

Conclusion
Adoption of this resolution would not conflict with any of the Nation’s laws.

Page1of1
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



90 of 147

Oneida Nation
Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 ‘ ON E I DA

Legislative Operating Committee
September 5, 2018

Election Law Amendments

Submission Date: 12/6/17 Public Meetings: n/a
Emergency Enacted: n/a
Expires: n/a

LOC Sponsor: Jennifer Webster

Summary: On November 12, 2017, the General Tribal Council adopted a motion to identify amendments
to the Election Law and bring back to the GTC in calendar year 2018.

11/12/17 GTC: Motion by Dylan Benton to accept the information presented and for the Oneida Business
Committee to take this information and the discussion to identify amendments to the Election
Law for presentation to and action by the General Tribal Council during calendar year 2018.
Seconded by Loretta Metoxen. Motion carried by a show of hands.

12/6/17 LOC: Motion by Kirby Metoxen to add Election Law Amendments to the active files list as a
high priority and assign Jennifer Webster as sponsor; seconded by Daniel Guzman King.
Motion carried unanimously.

Motion by Jennifer Webster to direct the LRO Director to send a memo to the Secretary’s
Office updating her on this action; seconded Kirby Metoxen. Motion carried
unanimously.

1/25/18: Work Meeting. Present: Tani Thurner, Jennifer Falck, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer
Webster, Racquel Hill (Election Board Chairperson), Sunshine Wheelock (Election
Board Secretary), Vicki Cornelius, Patricia Lassila, Tonya Webster, Christina
Liggins, and Tina Skenandore. This work meeting was held to gather input from the
Election Board regarding what changes should be made to the law.

3/16/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Ernest Stevens Ill, Jennifer Webster, Cathy
Bachhuber, Daniel Guzman King, Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski.

3/19/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Rosa Laster, Laura
Laitinen-Warren, Ernest Stevens 111, Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski.

3/23/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens 11, Cathy
Bachhuber, Rosa Laster, Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work
meeting was to discuss GTC comments.

3/29/18: Work Meeting. Present: Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens Ill, Jennifer Webster, Cathy
Bachhuber, Daniel Guzman King, Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of
this work meeting was to discuss GTC comments.

Page1of2 A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



91 of 147

4/2/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Daniel Guzman King,
Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski, Jennifer Falck. The purpose of this work meeting
was to discuss Election Board comments.

4/19/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Daniel Guzman King, Kirby Metoxen,
Leyne Orosco, Jennifer Falck, Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this
work meeting was to discuss Election Board comments.

5/2/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens 11, Kirby
Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Tani Thurner, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this work
meeting was to discuss Election Board comments and additional recommendations.

6/20/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Ernest Stevens 11, Kirby
Metoxen, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski. The purpose of this
work meeting was to review potential amendments to include in the memorandum to
GTC.

7/12/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon
Wisneski. The purpose of this work meeting was to discuss a new strategy to prepare
the Election law to be brought back to GTC.

8/6/18: Work Meeting. Present: David P. Jordan, Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Daniel
Guzman, Ernest Stevens Ill, Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Kristen Hooker. The
purpose of this work meeting was to review the drafted amendments to the Election
law and discuss additional amendments that should be made.

8/28/18: Work Meeting. Present: Jennifer Webster, Kirby Metoxen, Ernest Stevens IlI,
Jennifer Falck, Clorissa Santiago, Brandon Wisneski, Fawn Billie, Laura Laitinen-
Warren. The LOC reviewed the legislative analysis and made policy considerations.
The drafting attorney will update the draft, the analyst will update the legislative
analysis, and the public meeting materials will be prepared.

Next Steps:
= Approve the public meeting packet and forward the Election law amendments to a public
meeting to be held on November 8, 2018.
= Forward the memorandum and public meeting packet to the Oneida Business Committee for
inclusion in the October 28, 2018, General Tribal Council meeting materials.
= Forward the Election law amendments to the Finance Office and direct that a fiscal analysis
be completed.

7\
DRI

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.
Page 2 of 2 ONEIDA



92 of 147

Oneida Nation
Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 ¢ Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 ’ ONEIDA

Oneida-nsn.gov

TO: General Tribal Council

FROM: David P. Jordan, Legislative Operating Committee Chairman o7
DATE: October 28, 2018

RE: Election Law Amendments

Background

At the November 12, 2017, Special General Tribal Council (GTC) Meeting, GTC passed a
motion “to accept the information presented and for the Oneida Business Committee to take this
information and the discussion to identify amendments to the Election Law for presentation to
and action by the General Tribal Council during calendar year 2018.”

After the November 12, 2017, Special GTC meeting, the Legislative Operating Committee
(LOC) added this item to its Active Files List on December 6, 2017. Since then, the LOC has
drafted proposed amendments and has conducted a legislative analysis of the proposed
amendments.

The Legislative Operating Committee will be holding a public meeting on the proposed Election
law amendments on November 8, 2018, in an effort to obtain input from the community. Anyone
can attend the public meeting to provide oral comments. Additionally, anyone can submit written
comments during the public comment period, which ends at the close of business on November
15,2018. '

Public meeting and public comment periods are noticed in the Kalihwisaks and at the Oneida
Register at www.oneida-nsn.gov/government/register. The public meeting materials are included
with this memorandum and include:

* Public Meeting Notice. This notice contains details on when and where the public
meeting will be held, a summary of the proposed amendments, when the public comment
period will close, and how to submit written comments.

s Legislative Analysis. This document provides a plain language analysis of the proposed
legislation including a statement of the legislation’s terms and substance, intent of the
legislation, a description of the subject(s) involved, including any conflicts with Oneida
or other law, key issues, potential impacts of the legislation and policy considerations.

» Redline Draft. This draft illustrates the proposed changes from the current law.

® (Clean Draft. This draft provides the proposed amendments to the law as it would appear
if the law is adopted by the General Tribal Council.

After the public meeting and the public comment period closes, the LOC will review and
consider all comments that are received, and determine if any revisions to the proposed draft are
necessary.

Page 1 of 2
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



93 of 147

The proposed amendments to the Election law will ﬁltimately come back to GTC for a vote on
the adoption after all the legislative requirements are met. Below is a depiction of the legislative

process:
s Public LOC Reviews LOC Approves
Legislative i OBC Approves
LOC Drafts Meeting & and Considers and Forwards
Amendments Analy|siselz Comment Allpublic | ) to OBC & m'c:;?c'd‘ to > GICAdopts
Somplet Period is Held Comments
Participation in the legislative process is highly encouraged.
Requested Action
Motion to accept the update on the Election law amendments as information.
LHHHHHE

Page 2 of 2

A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.

ONEIDA



94 of 147

ONEIDA NATION PUBLIC MEETING NOTICE

LEGISLATIVE OPERATING COMMITTEE
WWW.ONEIDA-NSN.GOV/GOVERNMENT

Thursday, November 8, 2018, 12:15pm

Norbert Hill Center-Business Committee Conference Room
N7210 Seminary Rd., Oneida, Wisconsin

.Q?C“?O l f @QQQ

Clarify the process for voters who require assistance /I O.C. 102.16-3];

Require ballots from each polling location be kept separate /1 O.C. 102.16-8];

Shorten the voter registration form /7 O.C. 102.15-1];

Provide a more detailed procedure for handling spoiled ballots /1 O.C. 102.16-9];

Require an individual to present a photo ID to be allowed to vote during the election /1 O.C. 102.15-

2];

Provide that tentative election results be posted within 24 hours of a recount /1 O.C. 102.18-9];

7. Update the timeframe for conducting recounts, and clarify how recounts are conducted /7 O.C.
102.18];

8. Clarify that only the first application submitted for multiple Oneida Business Committee or Judiciary
positions will be accepted /1 O.C. 102.9-5];

9. Transfer hearing authority from the Election Board to the Judiciary /7 O.C. 102.9-§];

10. Reduce the number of Election Board members required to be at each polling site /1 O.C. 102.16-11
(@)]:

11. Remove term limits from the Election Board /1 O.C. 102.4];

12. Clarify the process for submitting referendum questions /7 O.C. 102.7];

13. Update the caucus process /1 O.C. 102.13-1, 102.13-2];

14. Clarify and update language throughout the Law.

AMENDMENTS TO ELECTION LAW

The purpose of this law is govern the procedures for the conduct of
orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such
as caucuses and nominations.

Some of the proposed amendments will:

A e

@

PUBLIC COMMENTS PERIOD CLOSES THURSDAY, NOVEMBER 15, 2018

During the Public Comment Period, all interested persons may submit written comments. Comments may
be submitted to the Oneida Nation Secretary’s Office or the Legislative Reference Office in person, by U.S.
mail, interoffice mail, or e-mail.

-PUBLIC MEETING PACKETS ARE AVAILABLE AT-
www.oneida-nsn.gov/Register/Public Meetings or contact Oneida Nation Legislative Reference Office located

in the Norbert Hill Center, PO Box 365, Oneida, Wisconsin 54155
Email: LOC@oneidanation.org Phone: 920-869-4376




B

woo~NOOTULPdWN B

95 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

AMENDMENTS TO ELECTION LAW
LEGISLATIVE ANALYSIS

SECTION 1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

REQUESTER: SPONSOR: DRAFTER: ANALYST:
GTC Jennifer Webster Clorissa N. Santiago Brandon Wisneski

To update the Nation’s election process to require separation of ballots between
each polling place, to require the Election Board to ensure voting equipment and
ballots are secured and locked, to revise the recount process, to require election
results and notices to be posted on the Nation’s website, to shorten the voter
registration process on election day, to add more safeguards to spoiled ballot
process, to require a public test of voting machines, to eliminate provisional
voting for voters deemed ineligible, to clarify the process for candidate eligibility,
to transfer the Election Board’s hearing authority to the Judiciary, to remove term
limits for Election Board members, and to reduce the number of Election Board
members required at each polling site, among other changes.

The purpose of the Election Law is to govern the procedures for the conduct of
orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such as caucuses
and nominations [see Election Law, 1 O.C. 102.1-1].

All qualified voters of the Oneida Nation, all elected officials of the Nation, all
candidates for elected office, Election Board, Trust Enrollment Department,
Oneida Police Department, Oneida Records Management Department, Zoning
Department, the Nation’s Secretary, and the Business Committee Support Office
Election Law, Zoning and Shoreland Protection Law, Open Records and Open
Meetings Law, Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and
Commissions, Garnishment Law, Per Capita Law.

Any qualified voter may challenge the results of an election by filing a complaint
with the Judiciary within ten (10) calendar days after the election [see 102.19-1].
Candidates deemed ineligible for the ballot by Election Board may appeal to the
Judiciary [see 102.9-8]. Election Board members who violate the Election Law
may be subject to removal in accordance with the Removal Law, termination of
appointment if appointed to fill a vacancy, or sanctions and penalties in
accordance with laws of the Nation [see 102.4-12]. A member who is removed
from the Election Board shall be ineligible to serve on the Election Board for
three (3) years from the time he or she is removed from the Election Board [see
102.4-12(a)(1)].

A public meeting has not yet been held.

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE DEVELOPMENT

A. The Election Law was adopted by General Tribal Council (GTC) in 1993 in accordance with Article
111, Section 5 of the Constitution. The Election law governs the procedures for the conduct of orderly
elections of the Nation. The Election Law was most recently amended by GTC on April 23, 2017 to
incorporate Constitutional Amendments into the law, including lowering the age of qualified voters
from twenty-one (21) to eighteen (18).

B. On November 12, 2017, GTC passed a motion to “accept the information presented and for the
Oneida Business Committee to take this information and the discussion to identify amendments to the
Election Law for presentation to and action by the General Tribal Council during calendar year

Page 1 of 11



11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

38

39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59

C.

96 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

2018.” The meeting materials and discussion from this meeting included concerns regarding Election
Board, recount process, recusal process and security of ballots and voting machines. In addition to the
discussion from this meeting, other potential revisions to the law have been identified by the Election
Board, Trust Enrollment Department, and a review of relevant Judiciary decisions.

As a result of this review, the following revisions to this law have been proposed by the Legislative
Operating Committee (LOC): update the Nation’s election process to require separation of ballots
between each polling place, require the Election Board to ensure voting equipment and ballots are
secured and locked, revise the recount process, require election results and notices to be posted on the
Nation’s website, shorten the voter registration process on election day, add more safeguards to
spoiled ballot process, require a public test of voting machines, eliminate provisional voting for voters
deemed ineligible, clarify the process for candidate eligibility, transfer the Election Board’s hearing
authority to the Judiciary, remove term limits for Election Board members, and reduce the number of
Election Board members required at each polling site, among other changes.

SECTION 3. CONSULTATION AND OUTREACH

A

The Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) held a work meeting with the Election Board on
January 25, 2018 to discuss the board’s ideas for potential amendments. In addition, the LOC
reviewed suggested amendments submitted by the Trust Enroliment Department.

The following documents were reviewed in the drafting of this analysis: The Nation’s Constitution,
the Election Board’s bylaws and standard operating procedures, Election Board Final Election
Reports, relevant Oneida Judiciary decisions, and the November 12, 2017 GTC Meeting minutes and
materials.

The following laws were reviewed in the drafting of this analysis: Zoning and Shoreland Protection
Law, Open Records and Open Meetings Law, and Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees and Commissions. In addition, the following Election Laws from other tribes were
reviewed: Ho Chunk Election Code, Menominee Nation Election Code, Forest County Potawatomi
Election Code, and Stockbridge Munsee Election Ordinance.

SECTION 4. PROCESS

A. Thus far, this law has followed the process set forth in the Legislative Procedures Act (LPA).
B. The law was added to the Active Files List on December 6, 2017.
C. At the time this legislative analysis was developed, the following work meetings were held/scheduled

regarding the development of this law and legislative analysis:
January 25, 2018: Work Meeting with Election Board
March 16, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

March 19, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

March 23, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

March 29, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

April 2, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

April 19, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

May 2, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

June 20, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

July 12, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

August 6, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

August 28, 2018: LOC Work Meeting

SECTION 5. CONTENTS OF THE LEGISLATION

A

Election Board. This section describes the composition and duties of the Election Board. The
Election Board consists of nine (9) members elected by General Tribal Council (GTC). The Election

Page 2 of 11



60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109

97 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

Board is responsible for conducting the elections of the Oneida Nation. The following revisions have
been made to the Election Board:
=  Term Limits. This law eliminates term limits for members of the Election Board. Election
Board members are elected by GTC. Currently, Election Board members are limited to two
consecutive three-year terms. After serving two terms, Board members must sit out a term
before they can run again [see Election Law, 1 O.C. 102.4-2]. Now, Election Board
members may run for as many terms as they wish.

(0}

Comparison to other Oneida Boards, Committees and Commissions. Most other entities
of the Nation do not have term limits. For example, other elected entities such as Land
Commission, Land Claims Commission, Gaming Commission and Trust Enroliment
Committee do not have term limits. Currently, the only other elected board of the Nation
with term limits is Oneida Nation Commission on Aging (ONCOA).

Comparison to Election Boards of other tribal nations: Menominee Nation, Potawatomi
Nation, Ho Chunk Nation and Stockbridge Munsee have appointed Election Boards
which do not have term limits. However, the appointing body has control over who is
appointed and for how long.

Advantages and Disadvantages of Term Limits: Potential advantages of term limits are
that they may bring new ideas and fresh perspectives to an elected body and give more
individuals an opportunity to participate in public service. Potential disadvantages of term
limits are that they deprive voters of the ability to elect the candidate of their choice and
that the elected body loses experienced members and institutional knowledge.

= Recusal. Election Board members must recuse themselves from any pre-election, election
day and post-election activities if he or she is a petitioner, applicant or candidate in any
election, or if there is otherwise a conflict of interest [see 102.4-3].

(0}

Immediate Family: A new provision has been added clarifying that Election Board
members must recuse themselves if an immediate family member is a petitioner,
applicant or candidate. This requirement was previously located in the Election Board’s
bylaws, but has been added directly into the law to strengthen and clarify this
requirement [see 102.4-3(b)].

Definition of Immediate Family Members. An immediate family member is defined as:
an individual’s father, mother, grandparent, sister, brother, wife, husband, daughter, son,
father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law,
step-father, step-mother, step-sister, step-brother, step-daughter, step-son and any other
these relations obtained through legal adoption [see 102.3(n)].

Recusal for Judiciary. Recusal provisions for members of the Nation’s Judiciary are
located in the Oneida Tribal Judiciary Canons of Judicial Conduct. The canons state that
a judge shall withdraw from any matter where the judge has or could be perceived to
have a conflict of interest. The canons go on to state that this includes personal,
professional, or fiduciary relationships between the Judge or an immediate family
member of the Judge [see Oneida Tribal Judiciary Canons of Judicial Conduct 8 O.C.
802, Section 2.2].

= Securing Ballots and Voting Equipment. A new provision has been added that requires the
Election Board to ensure that election polling equipment and ballots are maintained in a
locked and secured area when they are not being used for an Election. This is added to
clarify that it is Election Board’s responsibility to secure the equipment, and that failure to
do so is a violation of this law [see 102.4-8(a)].

= Standard Operating Procedures. The Election Board will be required to develop and follow
standard operating procedures (SOPs) regarding election activities and responsibilities. Any
actions of the Election Board regarding their standard operating procedures must be
presented to the Business Committee who shall then adopt or forward to the GTC for

Page 3 0f 11



110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159

98 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

adoption. For more information regarding the Election Board’s current SOPs, see Section 9
“Other Considerations” in this analysis. [see 102.4-8(b)].

= Enforcement and Removal. A new provision has been added regarding Enforcement, which
replaces the previous “Removal” section. Election Board members who violate the Election
Law may be subject to:

0 Removal: Election Board members who violate the Election Law may be removed in
accordance with the Removal Law. A member who is removed from the Election Board
will be prohibited from serving on the Election Board for three (3) years.

o0 Termination of Appointed Members. Election Board members who were appointed to
fill vacancies on the board may have their appointments terminated by the Oneida
Business Committee in accordance with the Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards,
Committees and Commissions.

0 Sanctions and Penalties. Election Board members may be subject to sanctions and
penalties in accordance with laws of the Nation regarding sanctions and penalties. The
Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) is currently drafting a Sanctions and Penalties
Law to increase accountability among elected and appointed officials of the Nation,
which will include members of the Election Board. At the time this analysis was drafted,
the LOC intends to present a Sanctions and Penalties Law to GTC for consideration once
the draft is complete and all legislative requirements are met.

General Elections. This section explains that general elections will be held in accordance with the
Constitution [see 102.5].

. Special Elections. This section describes the process for special elections. No changes have been

made to the special election process.

. Referendums. This section describes the process for referendums. Referendum questions may be

submitted by qualified voters at a caucus prior to an election. The following revisions have been
made to the referendum process to ensure a streamlined process: [see 102.7]
= Standard Form. A provision has been added requiring the Secretary to provide a standard
form to submit referendum questions.
= Yes or No Questions. In addition, referendum questions must be written in the form of a
“yes or no” question. The intent is to ensure that the questions are written clearly for the
voter to answer.
Primary Elections for Oneida Business Committee Positions. This section describes the process
for primary elections. No changes have been made to the primary election process [see 102.8].
Candidate Eligibility. This section describes the requirements to be a candidate. The following
revisions have been made to this section [see 102.9]:
= Applications. This provision clarifies that all candidates, including those nominated at
caucus, must fill out and turn in a completed application packet. Packets will be available in
the BC Support Office. In addition, the Election Board’s current practice is to provide
application packets at the caucus for those that have been nominated. The purpose of
requiring the application form is to ensure that candidates meet the eligibility requirements
for the office they are seeking [see 102.9-4].
= Proof of Minimum Eligibility Requirements. Applicants will now be required to attach
proof that they meet the minimum requirements for the position they are running for. The
Election Board must include a list of the required documents on the application so that
applicants are aware of what they need to submit. If an applicant does not submit the
required documentation, they will be disqualified by the Election Board [see 102.9-4(d)]. If
an applicant feels they were unfairly disqualified, they may appeal to the Judiciary.
0 Example: An example of required documentation is proof of residency for positions that
require members to reside in Brown or Outagamie County or copies of degrees and
transcripts for positions that require a degree.

Page 4 of 11



160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193

194
195

196

197
198

199
200
201
202

99 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

Applying for More than One BC or Judiciary Position. Under the current law, applicants
cannot run for more than one Business Committee or Judicial position. For example, an
applicant cannot file to run for both BC Chairperson and Councilperson in the same election.
However, the current law doesn’t state how the Election Board should handle this situation
when it occurs. This has led to cases in the Oneida Judiciary, where the Judiciary noted: “the
statute is silent as to whether a person has the opportunity to cure any defects and, if so, how
much time is afforded to cure such defects. Furthermore, the statute says nothing about
disqualifying a candidate from the election entirely who runs for more than one elective
office” [see Metoxen v. Election Board 17-AV-007]. Therefore, the following new
provisions have been added [see 102.9-5]:

0 Include Restriction in Application Packet & Announce at Caucus. The restriction on
running for multiple BC or Judicial offices will be included in the application packet and
read aloud at the caucus, to ensure that all potential candidates are aware before applying
[see 102.9-5(a)].

0 Process If an Applicant Applies For More Than One BC or Judiciary Position: If an
individual applies to run for more than one BC or Judiciary office, the Election Board
will only accept the first application that the individual submitted. Any additional
applications from that individual for other BC or Judicial offices will be rejected. The BC
Support Office will be required to timestamp all applications in the order they are
received, and the time stamp will be used to determine which application the individual
filed first.

0 Currently, the Election Board reports that they attempt to contact the applicant to
determine which office they want to run for. However, the Election Board has not always
been able to reach applicants in time for the deadline. The purpose of this new process is
to provide clear guidelines to applicants, the Election Board, and the Judiciary. It places
responsibility on applicants to follow the law while ensuring that applicants are not
disqualified from the ballot entirely.

Transfer of Hearing Authority to Judiciary. This law removes the Election Board’s hearing
body authority and transfers it to the Judiciary. In the current law, when an applicant is
found ineligible to be on the ballot by the Election Board, they can appeal that decision to a
hearing body made up of four (4) members of the Election Board. Instead, applicants will
now appeal directly to the Judiciary on an accelerated schedule [see 102.9-8].

Chart 1. Current Appeals Process for Candidates Found Ineligible for Ballot:

Candidate appeals Applicant may

Election Board

Applicant declared
ineligible for ballot
by Election Board

to Election Board
Hearing Body
(4 members)

Hearing Body
issues decision

Applicant declared
ineligible for ballot
by Election Board

appeal to Judiciary
on accelerated
schedule

Candidate appeals
to Judiciary on
accelerated
schedule

Judiciary
issues decision

Chart 2. Proposed Appeals Process for Candidates Found Ineligible for Ballot:

0 Transfer of Hearing Body Authority. GTC established a Judiciary through the adoption of
the Judiciary Law by GTC on January 7, 2013 and the approval of Article V to the
Nation’s Constitution in 2015. Since that time, several boards, committees and
commissions have transferred their hearing authority to the Judiciary, including

Page 5 of 11



203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252

100 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

Environmental Resource Board (ERB) and Land Commission. The intent of transferring
the Election Board’s hearing authority is to continue consolidating administrative and
judicial hearing responsibilities in the Judiciary to increase consistency in the hearing
process.

G. Campaign Fines. This section describes the restrictions on campaigning, campaign signs and

campaign finance. The following revisions have been made to this section [see 102.11-1].

= Process for Fines. Under the current law, the Election Board may issue fines for violating
campaign finance or campaign sign restrictions. This law clarifies that any campaign fines
must be paid to the Election Board within (90) ninety days after the fine is issued. The
Election Board may seek to collect fines through garnishment and per capita process if not
paid in 90 days. Fines will be placed into the Nation’s general fund [see 102.10-4 and
102.11-4]

= Types of Campaign Fines: In addition to fines for campaign finance violations and campaign
sign violations, the Election Board may now impose fines for campaigning within two
hundred eighty (280) feet of the voting area during an election.

H. Campaign Signs and Campaigning. This section describes restrictions on campaigning and

placement of campaign signs. This includes restrictions on employees campaigning on work time
and campaigning within 280 feet of a polling site.
=  Removal of Campaign Signs. A provision has been revised clarifying that the Zoning
Administrator is responsible for removing any campaign signs that are not in compliance
with the Election Law or Zoning and Shoreland Protection Law.
Candidate Withdrawal from the Election. This section describes the process for a candidate to
withdraw from an election prior to the submission of the ballot, prior to the opening of the polls,
after the opening of the polls, or after winning an election [see 102.12].
= Declining Office After Winning Election. A provision has been added clarifying that if a
candidate declines an office after winning an election and after taking the oath of office, it
will be treated as a resignation. If a candidate declines an office after winning but before
taking the oath of office, then the next highest vote-getter will be declared the winner [see
102.12-6].
Shortening Caucus and Primary Election Timeline. Changes have been made to the election
timelines to potentially shorten the length of the election season:
= Caucus Timeline. In the current law, the caucus must be held at least ninety (90) days prior
to the general election. Instead, the caucus will now be held at least seventy-five (75) days
prior to the general election [see 102.13-1(a)].
=  Primary Election Timeline. In the current law, the primary election must be held on a
Saturday at least sixty (60) days prior to the general election. Instead, the primary election
will now be held on a Saturday at least thirty (30) days prior to the general election [see
102.8-1].

0 Note that these deadlines refer to “at least,” or the minimum number of days prior to an
election. This means that Election Board may hold the caucus or primary election more
than seventy-five (75) or thirty (30) days before the election if more time is needed.

= Effect. The effect of these changes will be to potentially shorten the length of the entire
election season from a minimum of 90 days to 75 days, the length of time from the caucus to
primary election from 30 days to 25 days, and the length of time from the primary election to
the general election from 60 to 30 days.

Page 6 of 11



101 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1

2018 11 08
253 Chart 3. Current Election Timeline:
Caucus
(at least 90 days before
General Election) General Election
o o ®
Primary Election
(at least 60 days before

General Election)
254
255
256 Chart 4. Proposed Election Timeline:

Caucus
(at least 75 days before
General Election) General Election
o o o
Primary Election
(at least 30 days before

General Election)
257
258 K. Caucus Procedure. The section describes the caucus process for selection of candidates.
259 =  Nominating Candidates by Motion. More detail has been added to the law to reflect the
260 current caucus process. The law clarifies that each position will be opened and closed for
261 nomination by motion during the caucus: [see 102.13-2]
262 o0 Example: A motion will be made to open nominations for the BC Chairperson position.
263 Once all nominations have been made for BC Chairperson, nominations will be closed
264 for that position. Then, a motion will be made to open nominations for BC Vice Chair
265 position, and so on. The intent of this provision is to ensure an orderly caucus.
266 o If a candidate is not present at the caucus, or arrives late and misses the position they
267 wanted to be nominated for, they can still petition to be on the ballot instead. A petition
268 to be on the ballot requires only 10 signatures.
269 = Nominating Yourself. A new provision has been added clarifying that an individual cannot
270 nominate themselves at the caucus. They must be nominated by someone else. [see 102.13-
271 2(b)(1)].
272 L. Posting Election Notices & Tentative Results on the Nation’s Website. A provision has been
273 added requiring election notices and tentative election results to be posted on the Nation’s website,
274 in addition to being posted to the prominent locations.
275 =  The prominent locations include: the polling places, the Norbert Hill Center, the Oneida
276 Community Library, the Oneida Community Health Center, the Southeastern Oneida Tribal
277 Services (SEOTS) building, and all fuel stations operated by the Nation. The prominent
278 locations have been revised to remove Tsyunhehkwa Retail store, which is now called
279 Oneida Market and is located within an Oneida One Stop [see 102.3-2(u)].
280 = Require Notices to be posted to Website. Election notices must be posted in the prominent
281 locations and the Nation’s “official media outlets,” which includes both the Nation’s website
282 and the Nation’s newspaper [see 102.14]. Tentative Election results must be posted to the
283 prominent locations and the Nation’s website [see 102.17-2]. The purpose of requiring

Page 7 of 11



284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332

102 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

results to be posted on the website is to ensure that tribal members and candidates receive
election results quickly and conveniently.

M. Shortened Voter Registration Form at Polling Site. When voters sign-in at the polls on election

day, they must fill out a voter registration form. This form has been shortened to only require
name, date of birth and enrollment number. The requirement that voters write down their maiden
name and current address has been removed. The intent of shortening this form is to speed up the
line for voters on Election Day. The Election Board reports that name, date of birth and enrollment
number are enough information to identify voters [see 102.15-1].

. Elimination of Provisional Ballots for Voters Ruled Ineligible. VVoters who are ruled ineligible to

vote at the polls by election officials will no longer have the right to cast a ballot or challenge the
decision of the election officials. An example of why a voter would be deemed ineligible to vote is
failure to show a photo ID [see 102.15-5].
= Current Process. Currently, if a voter is deemed ineligible, they are still allowed to cast a
ballot. However, the ballot is placed in a sealed envelope and signed by two Election Board
members. The voter is then required to submit an appeal to the Election Board within two (2)
business days in order to challenge the Election Board’s decision. The Election Board then
has five (5) business days to issue a final decision on the voter’s eligibility. The Election
Board will only count the ballot if the board determines the individual was, in fact, eligible
to vote.

. Public Test of Voting Machines. A new provision has been adding requiring a public test of the

voting machines prior to each election. The Election Board will conduct this test no more than ten
(10) days prior to election day, and the public test will be noticed in the Nation’s newspaper and
website. The test will be performed by running a group of pre-audited marked ballots through the
machine to ensure that the machine records the correct, predetermined number. The intent of the
public test is to increase voter confidence in the voting equipment [see 102.16-1].
= Public Tests of Voting Machines in Wisconsin. The public test is modeled after public tests
held by Wisconsin municipalities to test their own voting machines under section 5.84(1) of
Wisconsin Statutes. Examples of area municipalities that hold public tests of voting
machines include the City of De Pere, City of Green Bay, and Village of Ashwaubenon.
Voter Assistance. The Election Law has been clarified to state that a voter with a disability or
other impairment can request assistance from a member of the Election Board or any other
qualified voter of their choosing. A qualified voter is an enrolled member of the Oneida Nation
aged 18 or older. For example, a voter can request assistance from a family member or friend, as
long as that person is a qualified voter. The purpose of this revision is to clarify that voters may be
assisted by any qualified voter of their choosing, whether they are a member of the Election Board
or not [see 102.16-4].
= Qualified Voters Only. The intent of limiting assistance to qualified voters is to restrict the
voting area to qualified voters only, consistent with 102.16-8 of this law, which states that
this restriction is in the interest of maintaining security of the ballots and the voting process

. Separation of Milwaukee and Oneida Ballots. A provision has been added to the law requiring

ballots from each polling site to be kept separate. There are currently two polling sites, one in
Oneida and one in Milwaukee. During the 2017 general election, the ballots from the manual
count in Milwaukee were combined with the machine count in Oneida. During recounts, it was no
longer possible to determine if a ballot came from the Milwaukee or Oneida count. By keeping the
ballots separate throughout the election process, it will be easier to determine if there were
irregularities at one of the polling sites [see 102.16-9(a)].

. Spoiled Ballots Procedure. The process for spoiled ballots has been revised. Spoiled ballots will

now be placed in a locked, sealed container marked “spoiled ballots.” Previously, spoiled ballots
were placed in a marked envelope. In addition, the voter will now be required to witness their

Page 8 of 11



333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367

368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382

T.

u.

103 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

spoiled ballot being placed into the container. The purpose of these provisions is to increase voter
confidence and to ensure that spoiled ballots are handled properly [see 102.16-10].
Reducing Number of Election Board Members Required at the Polls. The minimum number of
Election Board members required to be present at each polling site on Election day to sign the
election totals has been reduced from six (6) members to four (4) members. With the new voting
machines, the Election Board reports that they are able to open and close the polls more
efficiently, requiring less members to be present. The Election Board also reports that lowering the
number of Board members required at each polling place may reduce the need for alternates. The
Election Board suggests this may produce a cost savings [see 102.16-12].
Recount Process. Several revisions have been made to the recount process:
=  Extension of Deadline for Recount Requests. A provision has been added regarding
deadlines for a candidate to request a recount. Currently, candidates have five (5) business
days after an election to request a recount. If a recount reverses the result of an election, the
candidate who lost as a result of the recount will now have one (1) additional business day to
request their own recount. This ensures that a candidate impacted by a recount will still have
the opportunity to request their own recount [see 102.18-2(a)].
=  Require Election Board to Complete Recounts within Two (2) Business Days. Upon
receiving a recount request from the Nation’s Secretary, the Election Board will now have
two (2) business days to complete a recount instead of five (5) days. The purpose of
shortening the deadline is to get recount results out sooner, especially if the recount changes
the result of the election and the losing candidate wishes to request their own recount [see
102.18-4].
= Recounts Conducted By Hand and by Machine. Currently, there is a discrepancy in the
Election Law regarding whether the Election Board must conduct recounts by hand or by
machine. A change has been made that will now require the Election Board to both hand
count and machine count the ballots during a recount. The intent of this change is to increase
voter confidence in the process and ensure an accurate count [see 102.18-7].
=  Posting Recount Results. The Election Board will now be required to post the tentative
recount results just like any other election results. The results will be posted in the prominent
locations and the Nation’s official media outlets within 24 hours of the recount [see 102.18-
9]. The intent of this change is to increase transparency of the recount process.
Minor Drafting Changes. Minor drafting changes have been made, such as changing “judge” to
“Election judge” for clarity.

SECTION 6. EFFECT ON EXISTING LEGISLATION

A. References to Other Laws. The following laws of the Nation are referenced in this law. This law does
not conflict with any of the referenced laws.

Open Records and Open Meetings Law. Among the duties of the Election Board Secretary is to
keep a record of Election Board meetings and make them available to the Nation’s Secretary,
other Election Board members, and the public as required by the Open Records and Open
Meetings Law [see 102.4-9(c)].

Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees and Commissions. Stipend rates for
Election Board members will be set in accordance with the Comprehensive Policy Governing
Boards, Committees and Commissions. At the time this analysis was drafted, Election Board
members receive $100 per meeting and $10 per hour to conduct elections [see 102.4-10].
Personnel Policies and Procedures. Employees of the Nation are not allowed to campaign during
work hours. Employees that violate this provision will be subject to disciplinary action in
accordance with the Nation’s Personnel Policies and Procedures [see 102.11-1(b)].

Zoning and Shoreline Law. The Zoning Administrator shall remove any campaign signs that are
not in compliance with this law, in accordance with the Zoning and Shoreline law [see 102.11-3].

Page 9 of 11



383
384
385
386
387

388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432

104 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

Garnishment Law and Per Capita Law. If a fine issued by the Election Board is not paid by the
deadline, the Election Board may seek to collect the money owed through the Nation’s
garnishment and/or per capita attachment process [see 102.10-4(b)].

SECTION 7. EFFECTS ON EXISTING RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES, OR OBLIGATIONS

A. Elimination of Provisional Voting. This law eliminates an existing right to challenge the decision of
election officials if a voter is deemed ineligible to vote on election day. An example of why a person
would be deemed ineligible to vote is failure to show a Photo ID.

Current Process: Under current law, if a voter is deemed ineligible to vote on election day, he or
she may still fill out a ballot. This ballot is sealed in a numbered envelope and initialed by two
Election Board members. The voter then has two (2) business days to mail a written appeal to
Election Board. The Election Board will issue a final decision, and will only count the ballot if it
is determined that the voter was, in fact, an eligible voter.

Proposed Process: Under this proposed law, if a voter is deemed ineligible to vote on election
day, they cannot fill out a ballot and cannot challenge the decision of the Election officials.
Provisional Voting in State of Wisconsin. The Wisconsin Election Commission reports that for
state elections, voters can receive a provisional ballot if they are unable or unwilling to provide
proof of identification. Provisional ballots are not counted unless the voter provides the required
information to the municipal clerk by 4:00 pm of the Friday following the election.

Provisional Voting in Other Tribes. There are examples of other tribes that allow versions of
provisional ballots:

0 Ho Chunk Nation: If the eligibility of a voter is questioned, the ballot of that voter will be
enclosed in an envelope which will be endorsed with the voter’s name, the reason for the
challenge, and any refutation of the challenge. The Election Board will make the final
determination of the eligibility of the voter and will count the votes of those determined
eligible to vote [see Ho Chunk Election Code 13(j)].

0 Forest County Potawatomi: If the eligibility of a voter is questioned by the Election
Board, the ballot of that voter shall be enclosed in an envelope which shall be endorsed
with his or her name and the reason for the challenge. Challenges shall be made only on
the basis of eligibility for voting membership in the Tribe as specified in Article VI,
Section 5 of the Constitution of the Forest County Potawatomi Community. The
eligibility of all challenged ballots must be determined by a majority of the Election
Board before tallying any votes. If the voter is determined to be eligible that envelope
will be opened and the ballot placed in the ballot box [see Forest County Potawatomi
Election Code 2.8].

Conclusion: The LOC should be aware that removing provisional voting eliminates an existing
right of voters of the Nation. Whether to allow provisional voting is a policy decision.

SECTION 8. ENFORCEMENT AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Challenging an Election. Any qualified voter may challenge the results of an election by filing a

B.

complaint with the Judiciary within ten (10) calendar days after the election [see 102.19-1].
Challenging Election Board Decision Regarding Candidate Eligibility. An applicant found to be
ineligible for a nominated or petitioned for position shall have two (2) business days to request a
hearing with the Judiciary to review the eligibility status of the applicant [see 102.9-8].
Enforcement and Removal. Election Board members who violate the Election Law may be
subject to removal in accordance with the Removal Law, termination of appointment if appointed
to fill a vacancy, or sanctions and penalties in accordance with laws of the Nation [see 102.4-12].
Final Report. The Election Board is required to forward a Final Report to the Nation’s Secretary
after time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all recounts or challenges have
been completed. The Final Report must include the following information: Total number of

Page 10 of 11



433
434
435
436
437

438

439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481

105 of 147
Analysis to Draft 1
2018 11 08

persons voting; total votes cast for each candidate by subsection of the ballot; list of any ties and
final results of those ties, including the method of resolution; list of candidates elected and
position elected to; number of spoiled ballots; and cost of the election, including compensation
paid to each Election Board member [see 102.19-2].

SECTION 9. OTHER CONSIDERATIONS
A. New Voting Machines. The Election Board reports that they have purchased two (2) new DS200

ballot machines. The Election Board reports that these machines include a regular maintenance
schedule. For more information regarding these machines, contact the Election Board.
Election Board Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs). The Business Committee Support Office
has worked with the Election Board to place their Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) on the
Nation’s website, so that all members have access to the processes by which an election is conducted.
The Election Board’s SOPs include detailed instructions regarding ballots, the ballot box, testing
voting machines, conducting elections, breaking a tie, conducting recounts and other-election related
topics. The SOPs may be viewed by selecting “Oneida Election Board” at www.oneida-
nsn.gov/government/boards-committees-and-commissions/elected/
= What is an SOP? SOPs are the detailed, step-by-step instructions for how an entity implements a
law or policy. The intent of an SOP is to ensure consistency in the process. Unlike laws, Election
Board SOPs are developed by the Election Board.

. Sanctions and Penalties Law. The Legislative Operating Committee (LOC) is currently drafting a

Sanctions and Penalties Law to increase accountability among elected and appointed officials of the
Nation, which will include members of the Election Board. Currently, the only remedy for elected
officials is the Removal Law. However, there may be instances of misconduct that do not rise to the
level of removal. In these cases, other sanctions such as verbal warnings, written warnings,
suspension or fines may be more appropriate. This new law will create a formal complaint process
and allow for corrective actions against officials who violate laws, bylaws and SOPs of the Nation. At
the time this analysis was drafted, the LOC intends to present a Sanctions and Penalties Law to GTC
for consideration once the draft is complete and all legislative requirements are met.

. Update Resolution Setting Fines for Election Violation. This law states that the Business Committee

will pass a resolution specifying fines for violations of campaign finance restrictions [102.10-2(a)].

The Business Committee passed a resolution setting fines for campaign sign violations [see BC-01-

22-14-A]. However, this resolution did not specifically identify fines for campaign finance violations.

= Recommendation: The Business Committee should consider amending resolution BC-01-22-14-A
to specify fines for campaign finance violations in accordance with this law.

E. New Forms or Procedures:

= Updated Application: The Election Board will be required to update the application form to
include:
0 A list of required documents that applicants must submit to meet minimum eligibility
requirements.
0 A statement that applicants cannot apply to run for more than one Business Committee or
Judiciary position.
= Updated Election Board SOPs: The Election Board will need to update their SOPs to comply
with all amendments to this law.
= New Referendum Form: The Nation’s Secretary will be required to provide a standard
referendum form at the caucus. The Nation’s Secretary and BC Support Office should develop
this form.

F. Please refer to the fiscal impact statement for any fiscal impacts.

Page 11 of 11



0o JO0O Ul WNR

WwwwwhdhNhdDDNDMDNMDNMDNDMDNMDMNMMNMNRERRPRPRPRPRRRR
B W NEFPE OWOOWUJIOUTdEd WNDERE OWOWJOoO ULk WDNDE OV

106 of 147
Draft 1- PM Draft

201811 08

Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 102
ELECTION
Onayote?a’ka: Tho Ni- Yot Tsi? ayethiyataldko Tsi? KayanlAhsla
People of the Standing Stone how it is we will appoint them the kind of laws we have

102.1. Purpose and Policy 102.12. Candidate Withdrawal from the Election
102.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 102.13. _Selection of Candidates
102.3. Definitions 102.714. Notice of Polling Places
102.4. Election Board 102.815. Registration of Voters
102.5. General ElectionCandidate-EligHoity 102.916. Election Process
102.6. Special Election 102.10-Tabulating-and-Securing-Ballets
102.7. Referendums 17. 2022% Election OuteemeOutcomes and Ties
102.8. Primary Elections for Oneida Business Committee 102.12Electionsl8. Recount Procedures
Positions 102.19. Challengest82413—-Oneida-Nation-Censtitution and By-
102.9. Candidate Eligibility tawDeclaration of Results

102.10. Campaign Financing 102.20. Constitutional Amendments
102.11.  Campaign Signs and Campaigning

102.1. Purpose and Policy

102.1-1. It is the petieypurpose of the-Natien-that-this law shalito govern the procedures for the
conduct of orderly elections of the Nation, including pre-election activities such as caucuses and
nominations. Because of the desire for orderly and easily understood elections, there has not
been an allowance made for write-in candidates on ballots.

102.1-2. Fhis-taw-defines-thelt is the policy of the Nation to have clearly defined duties and
responsibilities of the Election Board members and other persons employed by the Oneida
Nation in the conduct of elections. HThis law is intended to govern al procedures used in the
election process.

102.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal

102.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida General Tribal Council by resolution GTC 07-06-
98-A and amended by resolutions GTC-01-04-10-A, BC-02-25-15-C-and, GTC-04-23-17-A-,
andGTC-__ - - -

102.2-2. Thislaw may be amended or repeaed by the Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to
the procedures set out in the Leglslatlve Procedur% Act AeHen&ef—EheELeeHen—BeaFd—Fegadeg

102.2-3. Should a provision of thislaw or the application thereof to any person or circumstances
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are
considered to have legal force without the invalid portions.

102.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of thislaw and a provision of another law,
the provisions of thislaw shall control.

102.2-5. Thislaw is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.

102.3. Definitions
102.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law. All
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense.
102:3-2.(a) “Administrative offices’” means the locations where the Oneida Business
Committee conducts business.
(b) “Alternate” shall mean an individual appointed by the Business Committee to serve
on the Election Board during an election and until election results have been certified.
102.3-3:(c) “Applicant” shall mean a potential candidate who has not yet been officially

10.C. 102 —page 1



35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79

107 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

approved for acceptance on a ballot.

102.3-4.(d) “Business day” shall mean Monday through Friday, 8:00 am. — 4:30 p.m.,
excluding holidays of the Nation.

102.3-5.(e) “Campaigning” shall mean all efforts designed to influence members of the
Nation to support or reject a particular candidate of the Nation including, without
limitation, advertising, rallying, public speaking, or other communications with members
of the Nation.

102.3-6.(f) “Candidate” shall mean a petitioner or nominee for an elected position whose
name is placed on the ballot by the Election Board after successful application.
102.3-7(q) “Clerk” shall mean the-election—efficialan Election Board member who
identifies proper registration for the purpose of determining voter eligibility.

102.3-8:(h) “Close of business’ shall mean 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.
102.3-9.(1) “Conflict of Interest” shall mean any interest, whether it be persona,
financial, political or otherwise, in which a Nation elected official, employee, consultant,
appointed or elected, member of any board, committee or commission, or their immediate
relatives, friends or associates, or any other person with whom they have contact, that
conflicts with any right of the Nation to property, information, or any other right to own
and operate its enterprises, free from undisclosed competition or other violation of such
rights of the Oneida Nation, or as defined in any law or policy of the Nation.

102.3-10.(j) “Constitution” means the Constitution and By-laws of the Oneida Nation.
(k) “Election” shall mean every primary and election.

102.3-11.(I) “Election Judge” shall mean an Election Board member who informs and
advises the Election Board Chairperson of discrepancies, complaints and controversy
regarding voter eligibility.

(m) “General election” shall mean the election held every three (3) yearsin July to elect
the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, and the five Council Members
of the Onelda Business Commlttee and may include eentestselections for other elected

4:92%—1%(n) “Immedlate famHy member” means an individua’'s father, mother,

grandparent, sister, brother, wife, husband, daughter, son, father-in-law, mother-in-law,
sister-in-law, brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, step-father, step-mother, step-
sister, step-brother, step-daughter, step-son, and any of the these relations attained
through legal adoption.

(0) “Judiciary” means the judicia system that was established by Oneida General Tribal
Council resolution GTC-01-07-13-B to administer the judicial authorities and
responsibilities of the Nation.

102.3-14.(p) “Lot drawing” shall mean the equal chance method used to select a
candidate as the winner of an elected position, in the case of a tie between two (2) or
more candidates.

4:92%—45(9& “Nation” means the Oneida Natl on.

10.C. 102 — page 2



108 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

102.3-17(r) *“Official media outlets” means the Oneida Nation's website and the
Kalihwisaks newspaper as identified by the Oneida Business Committee through
resolution BC-03-22-17-B.
(s) “Oneida Police Officer” shall mean an enreHed-member-of-the- Oneida-Nation-wheo-is
a-employed as a police officer enr-any-petieeforeewith the Onelda Police Department.
102.3-18.(t) “Private property” shal mean any lot of land not owned by the Nation, a
residential dwelling or a privately owned business within the boundaries of the
Reservation.
102:3-19.(u) “Prominent locations’ shall mean the polling places, main doors of the
Norbert Hill Center, main doors of the Oneida Community Library, FsyurhehkwaRetai
Stere-the Oneilda Community Health Center, the South Eastern Oneida Tribal Services
(SEOTYS) building, and all One-Steplecationsfuel stations operated by the Nation.
102.3-20.(v) “Qualified voter” shall mean an enrolled member of the Nation who is
eighteen (18) years of age or older as defined in Article Ill, Section 2 of the
Constitution.
102.3-21.(w) “Rejected Ballots’ shall mean those ballots which are rejected by the vote
tabulating machine.
102.3-22.(x) “Spoiled Ballot” shal mean a balot which contains a voter error or is
otherwise marred and is not tabulated.
102.3-23.(y) “Teler” shall mean the-election—efficialan Election Board member in
charge of collecting and storing of all ballots.

102.4. Election Board

Seetion-A--102.4-1. Establishment-Cempesition-and-Election

. 4024-1 An Election Board is hereby created for the purpose of carrying out the provisions of
thislaw and Article 111, Sections 2 and 3 of the Onerda-Natien-Constitution.
102.4-2._Composition. The Election Board shall consist of nine (9) elected members. All

members shall be elected to terms of three (3) years-het-to-exceed-two{2)-consecutive-terms.
102.4-3. Recusal. An Election Board member shall recuse himself or herself from participating

asan Electlon Board member in any preel ectlon electlon day or post- electlon achwtmwh#e

mtemﬁ—when
(a) heor sheisapetitioner, applicant or candidate in any election;
(b) a petltloner appllcant or candldate in any electlon IS an |mmed|ate famnyélse%4=4=Reme¥a4—

102.4-5- member of the Election Board member; or

(c) thereisotherwise a conflict of interest.
102.4-4. Vacancies. Any vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled by appointment by the
Oneida Business Committee for the balance of the unexpired term. The filling of a vacancy may
be timed to correspond with the pre-election activities and the needs of the Election Board.
102.4-65. The Election Board shall identify members who shall serve as tellers, judgesElection
Judges and clerks in advance of an election.

10.C. 102 — page 3




125
126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
lel
162
163
le4
165
166
167
168
169

109 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
102.4-76 Election Board Alternates. The Oneida Business Committee may appoint or reappoint
a sufficient number of alternates to the Election Board, as recommended by the Election Board,
to assist with election day and pre-election activities.
102.4-87. The Election Board shall choose a Chairperson from amongst themselves as set out in
the By-tawsbylaws of the Election Board, to preside over the meetings. This selection shall be
carried out at the first meeting of the Election Board following an election. The Chairperson
shall then ask the Election Board to select a Vice-Chairperson and a Secretary.

Seetion-B-102.4-8. Duties of the Election Board
102:4-9.. The Election Board shall have the following duties, along with other responsibilities
listed throughout this law-:
(& The Election Board shall ensure that the election polling equipment and ballots are
maintained in alocked and secured area when not in use for an election;
(b) The Election Board shall develop and adhere to standard operating procedures
regarding election activities and responsihilities;
(1) Actions of the Election Board regarding standard operating procedures shall
be presented to the Business Committee who shall then adopt or forward action(s)
to the General Tribal Council for adoption.
(c) The Election Board shall assist individuals with disabilities through the voting
process;
(d) The Election Board shall bein charge of all registration and election procedures; and
(be) Upon completion of an election, the Election Board shall make a final report on the
election results-as-set-out-Ha-thistaw.

Seetion-C-102.4-9. Specific Duties of Officers and Election Board Members
All Election Board members shall be required to attend all Election Board meetings.
Addltlonal specﬁm%@%4=£@=§pee+ﬁe dutles of the Chalrperson and other Election Board
d 3 nd-assisting include the

' +Afollowing:
(a) Chalrpersonéhau The Chaererson of the Election Board shall conduct the

following duties:

(_L preﬂ de over meetl ngs of the EI ection Board shal-l—seleet—thehean—ng—bedy—ier

(2) oversee the conduct of the election; shalt
(3) dismiss the aternates and Trust Enrollment Department personnel when their

election day duties are complete; and shal-pest-and-report-electionresults:
(4) post and report election results.

(b) Vice-Chairperson—Shalt. The Vice-Chairperson shall preside over all meetingsin the
absence of the Chairperson.

(c) Secretary—Shal. The Secretary shall keep a record of the meetings and make them
available to the Nation's Secretary, other Election Board members, and the public as
required in the Open-RecordsNation’s laws and Openr-Meetings-Lawpolicies governing
open records and open meetings.

(d) Clerks—Shalt. The clerks shall implement the requirements of identifying and

10.C. 102 — page 4




170
171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214

110 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft

2018 11 08

registering all voters and determining voter eligibility. Clerks shall work in conjunction
with the Trust Enrollment Department personnel in the registration process, and assist the

Chairperson as directed in conducting the election. Clerks-cannet-be-eurrenthy-employed
by the Trust Enrollment Department.

(1) Clerksshall not be currently employed by the Trust Enrollment Department.
(e) Tellerss—Shalt. Tellers shall collect and keep safe al ballots; until the election is
complete, as determined by this law—Shall, and shall assist the Chairperson in
conducting the election.
(f) Election Judges:—ShaH. Election Judges shall inform and advise the Chairperson of

all aspects of the election conducted under this law. In case of disputes among Election
Board members, or between members of the Nation and Election Board members, or any
controversy regardi ng voter eligi biIity, the Judgeelection judge(s) shall assist the

102. 4-10
Section D. Compensation Rates
102:4-11—FElection-Board Stipend Rates. Election Board members shall receive a stipend in
accordance with the Nation’s laws, policies, and resolutions governing boards, committees, and
commissions. Election members are to be compensated at an hourly rate when conducting
elections as prowded for in the Electlon Board S bylaws as approved by the Onelda Busu ness
Committee. : , u .
process.
102.4-1211. Compensation of other Election Personnel. The Trust Enroliment Department
personnel and Oneida Police Officer(s) shall be compensated at their regular rate of pay out of
their respective budgets when performing official duties during an election in accordance with
this law.
102.4-12. Enforcement. A member of the Election Board found to be in violation of this law
may be subject to:
(&) _removal pursuant to any laws and/or policies of the Nation’s governing removal, if
the Election Board member was elected to his or her position;
(1) A member who is removed from the Election Board shall be in€ligible to
serve on the Election Board for three (3) years from the time he or she is removed
from the Election Board.
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee pursuant to any laws
and/or _policies of the Nation governing boards, committees, and commissions, if the
Election Board member was appointed to his or her position by the Oneida Business
Committee; and/or
(c) sanctions and penalties pursuant to any laws and/or policies of the Nation governing
sanctions and/or penalties.

102.5. General Elections
102.5-1. In accordance with Article I11, Section 5 of the Constitution, general elections shall be
held in the month of July on a date set by the General Tribal Council.
(@) The Genera Tribal Council shall set the election date at the January annual meeting,
or at thefirst General Tribal Council meeting held during a given year.

10.C. 102 — page 5




215
216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259

111 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

102.6. Special Elections
102.6-1. Initiation of Special Elections. A special election may be initiated by a request or
directive of the General Tribal Council or the Oneida Business Committee.

(@) A member of the Nation may make a request for a special election to the Oneida

Business Committee or the General Tribal Council.
102.6-2. Matters subject to a specia €election include, but are not limited to, referendum
guestions, vacancies, and/or petitions. Matters subject to a special el ection may be placed on the
ballot of a general election.
102.6-3. A specia €election shall follow the processes and procedures established for all other
elections.
102.6-4. The date of a special elections shall be set by the Oneida Business Committee as
recommended by the Election Board, or as ordered by the Judiciary in connection with an
election challenge.
102.6-5. Notice of Special Elections. Notice of a specia election shall be posted by the Election
Board in the prominent locations, and placed in the Nation’s official media outlets not less than
ten (10) calendar days prior to the special election.
102.6-6. Emergency Cancelation of Special Elections. In the event of an emergency, the
Election Board may reschedule the special election, provided that no less than twenty-four (24)
hour notice of the rescheduled special election date is given to the voters, by posting notices in
the prominent locations.

102.7. Referendums

102.7-1. A gqualified voter may submit a referendum question to be included on the ballot for a
general or special election for the purpose of soliciting an opinion from the voters of that election
on any issue directly affecting the Nation or its general membership.

102.7-2. The Nation’s Secretary shall develop and make available in the Business Committee
Support Office a standard referendum form.

102.7-3. A referendum question shall be written in a manner that solicits a “yes’ or “no”
response.

102.7-4. The referendum form shall be presented to the Nation’s Secretary at the caucus prior to
an election. Once received at a caucus, the referendum question shall be placed on the ballot of
the next election.

102.7-5. The results of a referendum guestion in which a majority of the qualified voters who
cast votes shall be binding on the Oneida Business Committee to present the issue for action
and/or decision at General Tribal Council.

102.8. Primary Elections for Oneida Business Committee Positions
102.8-1. There shall be a primary € ection for an Oneida Business Committee position whenever
there are three (3) or more candidates for any officer position or sixteen (16) or more candidates
for the at-large council member positions.
(a8 The two (2) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for each officer
position shall be placed on the ballot.
(b) Thefifteen (15) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for the at-large
council member positions shall be placed on the ballot.
10.C. 102 —-page 6




260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304

112 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
(c) _Any position where a tie exists to determine the candidates to be placed on the ballot
shall include all candidates where the tie exists.
102.8-2. The primary €election shall be held on a Saturday at |east thirty (30) calendar days prior
to the election.
102.8-3. The Election Board shall cancel the primary election if the Oneida Business Committee
positions did not draw the requisite number of candidates for a primary by the petitioning
deadline set for the primary €election.
102.8-4. In the event a candidate withdraws or is unable to run for office after being declared a
winner in the primary, the Election Board shall declare the next highest primary vote recipient
the primary winner. This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until the ballot is full or until
there are no available candidates. |If the ballot has already been printed, the procedures for
notifying the Oneida public in section 102.12-3 and 102.12-4 shall be followed, including the
requirement to print anotice in the Nation’'s official media outlets if time lines allow.

102.9. Candidate Eligibility
102.5-1—1r102.9-1. All applicants shall meet the minimum eligibility requirements in order to
become a candidate, in addition to any specific requirements and/or exceptions set out in duly
adopted by-tawsbylaws or other documents-aH-apphcants-shal-meet-the-mirHmum-regquirerments
Sobouinniecocion morden fo poco e non s cnle
102.59-2. Minimum Eligibility Requirements. In order to be eligible to be a candidate,
applicants shall:
(a) be an enrolled member of the Nation, as verified by membership rolls of the Nation:;
(b) beaqualified voter on the day of the election.; and
(c) provide proof of physical residency as required for the position for which they have
been nominated or for which they have petitioned. Proof of residency may be through
one (1) or more of the following:
(1) avalid Wisconsin driver’slicense;
(2) ahill or pay check stub showing name and physical address of the candidate
from the prior or current month;
(3) another form of proof that identifies the candidate and that the candidate has
physically resided at the address and identifies that address as the primary
residence.
102.59-3. Conflict of Interest. No applicant mayshall have a conflict of interest with the
position for which they are being considered, provided that any conflict of interest which may be
eliminated within thirty (30) calendar days of being elected shall not be considered as a bar to
nomination or election.
102.59-4. Applications and-petitions-where-thefor Candidacy. An applicant interested in being
considered as a candidate for a position that was ret-nominated duringat a caucus or will be
petitioning for candidacy shall be-fHed-bypresenting-the-tfermationsubmit an application for
candidacy to the Nation's Secretary;—er—designated—agent; or the Business Committee Support
Office.
(a) The application for candidacy shall be submitted in person during normal business
hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, within five (5) business days after
the caucus.

10.C. 102 —page 7



305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349

113 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
(b) No mailed, internal Nation mail delivery, faxed or other delivery method shall be
accepted.
102.5-5:(c) The Nation's Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office shall
timestamp when an application for candidacy is received.
(d) Proof of Minimum Eligibility Requirements. At the time of submission, the
application for candidacy shall include attached documentation verifying that the
applicant meets the minimum eligibility requirements.
(1) The application for candidacy shal include a list of the required
documentation for each office.
(2) An application that does not include attached documentation verifying the
applicant_ meets the minimum €ligibility requirements at the time of submission
shall be disqualified.
102.9-5. An applicant for a position on the Oneida Business Committee or a position within the
Judiciary shall only be €eligible to apply for one (1) elective office or position per election.
(a) A statement of the ineligibility of an applicant to apply for more than one (1) elective
office or position if applying for a position with the Oneida Business Committee or the
Judiciary shall be included in the application materials as well as the notice for the
caucus, and read verbally at the start of the caucus.
(b) If an applicant provides an application for candidacy or petition for candidacy for
more than one position or office if applying for a position on the Oneida Business
Committee or the Judiciary, then the application which was filed first shall be accepted
while any other applications shall be disqualified.
(1) The Election Board should review the timestamps on the applications to
determine which application shall be accepted.
102.9-6. The names of the candidates and the positions sought shall be a public record and
made available to the public upon the determination of eligibility by the Election Board or the

Election Board' s desighated-agentdesignee.

SeetionB102.9-7. Eligibility Review

102.5-7. The Election Board shall be responsible for reviewing the qualifications of applicants
to verify dligibility. Any applicant found to be ineligible for a nominated or petitioned for
position shall be notified by certified mail return receipt requested. The notice shall provide the
following information:

(@) Position for which they were considered;

(b) QualtieationQualifications of the position and citation of the source. {Copies of

source may be attached,);

(c) A brief summary explaining why the applicant was found to be ineligible:; and

(d) That the applicant has two (2) business days from notification to make-an-appeal-

10.C. 102 — page 8



350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394

114 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

request a hearing on the netice-by-hand

delwepy—'liheﬂteeatleaeleﬂgnateQ neI|Q| bility determination with the Judiciary.
102.9-8. Request for a Hearing on Ineligibility. An applicant found to be ineligible for a

nominated or petitioned for position shall have two (2) business days to request a hearing with
the Judiciary to review the eligibility status of the applicant. The Judiciary shall hear and decide
arequest for a hearing on in€eligibility within two (2) business days after the request isfiled. Any
appeal to the appellate body of the Jud|C| ary shall be on-the Reservation.—No-matted,-internal
al v filed within one (1) business day
after thei |ssuance of the lower body sdecision and deC| ded W|th| n two (2) business days after the

appeal isfiled.

OCdAl

Seetion-C-102.10. Campaign Financing
102. 5—8—Gentnbut|ens
2 Soli , butions| il
£10-1)—Candidates. A candidate shall only accept contributions from individuals who are
members of the Nation or individuals related by blood or marriage to the candidate. Candidates
gy
102.10-2. A candidate shall not accept contributions from any business, whether sole
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other business entity.
2 —Candidates102.10-3. A candidate shall not solicit or accept contributions in any office-er,
business/ and/or facility of the Nation.
b)y—Fines—\ielation102.10-4. Violations of Campaign Financing Restrictions. A violation of
the eentributiencampai gn financing restrictions shall result in a finetmpesed-by-the-.
(a) The Election Board shall impose the fine in an amount specified in a resolution
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) Fines shall be paid to the Election Board within ninety (90) days after the fine is
issued. If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Election Board may seek to collect the
money owed through the Nation’ s garnishment and/or per capita attachment process.
(c) Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund.

102.5-911. Campaign Signs and Campaigning:
£2)102.11-1. Restrictions on Campaigning. The following restrictions on campaigning apply to
al candidates.
(&) No campaigning of any type shall be conducted within two hundred eighty (280) feet
of the voting area during an election, excluding private property.
(b) Employees of the Nation shall not engage in campaigning for offices of the Nation
during work hours.
(1) Enforcement. The Nation’s employees shall be subject to disciplinary action
under the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment for political
campaigning during work hours.
102.11-2. Placement of Campaign Signs. Placement of campaign signs shall be pursuant to the
following restrictions:
(28) Campaign signs shall not be posted or erected on any property of the Nation except
for private property with the ownerf or tenant’s permission.
(2b) No campaign sign shall exceed sixteen (16) square feet in area. A maximum of

10.C. 102 — page 9




395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439

115 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

seven (7) such signs may be placed on abuilding or on alot.
| (30) No campaign sign shall project beyond the property line into the public right of

¢y  Enforcement-_ of Slqn Placement The Zonlng Admlnlstrator shall eause—te—be
remevedremove any campaign signs that are not in compliance with this law, in accordance with
the Zening—and-SherelandProtection—tawNation's laws and policies governing zoning. The
Zoning Administrator shall notify the Election Board of campaign sign violations.
(ey—Fires—\ielation-of-the-102.11-4. Violations of Campaign Restrictions. A violation of the
restriction on campaigning within two hundred eighty (280) feet of the voting area during an
election, or campaign sign restrictions shall result in afinempesed-by-the-.

(a) The Election Board shall impose the fine in an amount specified in a resolution

adopted by the Oneida Business Committee.

(b) Fines shaII be pald to the Electlon Board W|th|n ni nety (90) days after the fine is

issued. If the fineis not paid by this deadline, the Election Board may seek to collect the
money owed through the Nation’s garnishment and/or per capita attachment process.
(c) Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund.
102.11-5. Removal of Campaign Signs. All campaign signs shall be removed within five (5)
business days after an election.

102.5-13—Candidates-12. Candidate Withdrawal from the Election

102.12-1. A candidate may withdraw from the election at any time. A candidate withdrawing
by any method listed heretnwithin this section shall be denied any position from which they have
withdrawn regardless of the number of votes cast for that candidate. A written statement shall be
considered the only necessary evidence of withdrawal and acceptance of denial of any position
withdrawn from.

102.12-2. Withdrawal Prior to Submission of the Ballot. A candidate may withdraw his or her
name from a ballot prior to submission of the ballot for printing if the withdrawal is submitted

10.C. 102 — page 10




440
441
442
443
444
445
446
4477
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484

116 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

in writing by the candidate to any Election Board member, excluding alternates.
102.12-3. Withdrawal Prior to the Opening of the Polls. After the ballot is printed, a candidate
may withdraw his or her name from the election prior to the opening of the polls by submitting in
writing a statement indicating they are withdrawing from the election to any Election Board
member, excluding alternates.
(a) Thiswritten withdrawal statement shall be posted alongside any sample ballot printed
prior to the election in the official media outlets of the Nation or any posting at the
polling places.
102.12-4. Withdrawal After Opening of the Polls. A candidate may withdraw after the opening
of the polls by submitting a request to be removed from the ballot, in writing, to the Election
Board members in charge of the polling place.
(a) The written withdrawal statement shall be posted next to any posted sample ballot.
102.12-5-14. Candidate Withdrawal After Winning an Election_but Before the Oath is Taken.
(@ In the event a candidate declines an office after winning an election, the Election
Board shall declare the next highest vote recipient the winner. This procedure shall be
repeated as necessary until awinner is declared.
(b) If al vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a
Spectal-Electionspecial e ection shall be held.
102.12-6.
Seetion-A__Candidate Withdrawal After Taking an Oath of Office. In the event a candidate
declines an office after winning an election and taking an oath of office, the withdrawal shall be
treated as aresignation of an official.

102.13. Selection of Candidates
102.13-1. Setting of a Caucus
102.6-1. The Election Board shall be responsible for calling a caucus before any election is held.
(a) The caucus for the general election shall be held at least nirety{(90seventy-five (75)
calendar days prior to the election date. Caueuses
(b) A caucus for ether—elections-a special election shall be held at least forty-five (45)
calendar days prior to the election date.
(c) In a general election year, caucuses shall be combined so that candidates for the
Oneida Business Committee and other elected boards—committees—and
commissionspositions are nominated at the same caucus.
102.613-2._ Caucus Procedures. The procedures for thea caucus shall be asfollows:
@ —Candidates(a) Each position shall be opened and closed for nominations by motion
during the caucus. A nomination for a position shall only be accepted when a position is
open for nominations.
(1) Once nominations are closed for a particular position, an applicant may
petition to be on the ballot for that position.
(b) Once a position is opened for nominations a candidate shall be nominated for a
position from the floor.
{b)—Candidates(1) An individual shall not nominate himself or herself for a
position during the caucus.
(c) A candidate present at the caucus witshall accept! or decline their nomination at the

10.C. 102 — page 11




485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529

117 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
caucus. GandidatesA candidate nominated at the caucus, but not present at the caucus to
accept the nomination, shall be required to follow the petition process.
(ed) Nominations shall consist of the following positions:
(1) OneidaBusiness Committee Chairperson;;
(2) OneidaBusiness Committee Vice-Chairperson;;
(3) Oneida Business Committee Treasurer;;
(4) OneidaBusiness Committee Secretarys;
(5) Oneida Business Committee Council Member; and

(6) Any other elected positions as required by by-laws-or-creating-documents-of-a
board—-committee-or-commission-bylaws, resolution, or law of the Nation.

Section-B102.13-3. Petition
102.6-3: for Candidacy. Any eligible member of the Nation may petition to be placed on a ballot

aceording-to-the followingproceduresfor an election. The procedure for a petition for candidacy

shall be asfollows:
@ Each petltloner not nomlnated at caucus, shall file a petition centaiing

Qb)—Petmeﬂerfor Candldacv A petltloner shall use an off|C|al petition form as
designated-by-thistaw-and application for candidacy which may be obtained in the

Business Committee Support Office-ef-the-Natior-s-Seeretary or from the mailing for
that caucus.

(b) A petitioners shall obtain at least ten (10) signatures of qualified voters on the
petition form. The petition form shall contain the origina signatures of the qualified
voters. Photocopies of signatures shall not be accepted.
(c) The petition form shall consist of each endersee’squalified voter’s:

(1) printed name and address;

(2) date of birth;

(3) OneidaNation-Enrelment-Numberenrollment number; and
(4) sgnature

{e(d) Petitions shall be presented to the Nation’s Secretary; or desighated-agent;the
Business Committee Support Office during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30
p.m. Monday through Friday, but no later than prior to close of business five (5)
business days after the caucus. The location to drop-off petitions shall be identified
in the mailing identifying the caucus date.

(fe) The Nation's Secretary shall forward all petitions to the Election Board
Chairperson the next business day following the close of petition submissions.

(gf) The Election Board shall haveforward the petitions to the Trust Enrollment

Department verifyfor verification of all signatures contained on the petition.

10.C. 102 — page 12



530
531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574

118 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

102-714. Notice of Polling Places

102.714-1. The Election Board shall post a notice of the election in the prominent locations and
on the official media outlets, stating the location of the polling places and the time the polls will
be open. This notice shall also be posted in an easily visible position, close to the entrance of the
Nation’ s businessest and/or facilities.

102.714-2. PelingNotice of the election and polling information shall be posted no less than ten
(10) calendar days prior to the election, and shall remain posted until the poll closes on the day
of the election.

102.714-3. Except for a Special-Electionspecia election, notice for the election shall be mailed
to all Natier-members of the Nation, stating the time and place of the election and a sample of
the ballot, no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the election, through a mass mailing. The
Trust Enroliment Department shall be notified, by the Election Board Chairperson, no less than
twenty (20) calendar days prior to the requested mailing.

102.

102.815. Registration of Voters
102.815-1. Voter Registration-ef . o :

(18) years of age or over, are qualified Quallfled voters ef—suenshall |ohv5| callv reqrster on the
day of the election(s)-as-definednr-Article H-Seetion- at the polls by signing his or her name on

an official Voter Registration Form containing the following information:
a) name;
(b) date of birth; and
(c)_enrollment number.

102.15-2-of the OneidaNation-Constitution:

Seetion-B. Identification of Voters
102.8-2. All gualified voters mustshall present one of the following picture identifications in
order to be able to vote:

() Oneida Nation +-B-identification card;

(b) BriversticenseDriver'slicense; or

(c) Other L-B-—withidentification card that contains a name and phetephotograph.

4:92—8-4—102 15-3. Trust Enrollment Department personnel shall be respons ble for verifying
enrollment with the Nation. CenduetThe conduct of Trust Enrollment Department personnel is
governed by the Election QmeralsBoard members durlng the vot| ng perlod

10.C. 102 — page 13



575
576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619

119 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

Section-BD-—Qualification/15-4. Verification of Voter Eligibility
102.8-6. Should a question or dispute arise as to the eligibility of a-veteran individual being

gualified to vote, theJudges—of-theElectionOfficials—appointed—by—thean Election Board
Chairpersonmember serving as an election judge shall meet with the Trust Enrollment
Department personnel who are registering voters, to decide the voting member’s eigibility
currently being questioned, and shall make such decisions from the facts available, whether the
applicant is, in fact; qualified/ and verifiable under the-Oneida-Nation-Coenstitution-Article 111
Section 2; of the Constitution to vote in the Nation’s elections.

102.8-715-5. Any voter denied eligibility shall not be allowed to vote in the election.

102.16. Election Process

—provided102.16-1. Public Test of Ballot Machines. No more than ten (10) days prior to an
election, the Election Board shall publicaly test the ballot machines to ensure that the ballot
machine correctly counts the votes cast for all offices and on all measures.

(a) Notlce of the publlc test of the ballot machines shall be pLaeed—t—n—an—enveLepe

test.

(b) All ballot machines shall be written-next-to-a-numbered-Hst-which-corresponds-to-the
nAurmbered-and-sealed-envelope—TFhe-voter-shalttested during the public test, no matter

what |ooII|nq Iocatlon the baIIot machlnes WI|| ulti mately be Feqweel—te—mat-l—a—wmten

used for

Busu—n%@emm%teeconduct the test bv processing a preaudlted group of marked ballots

to ensure the machine properly records the predetermined number of votes on the test
ballots.

102.916-2—Election-Process
Seetten—A Polllng Plaees-and—nmes

meetmg—helel—elenhg—a—gwen—yea%peetawocatlon Electlons shaII be eet—m—aeeentelanee—wrth

4:92—9—2—E|eenens—shau—beheld In an-Onetdafacilities of the Nation facHity{s)-as determined by
the Election Board.
102.916-3._Polling Time. Voting for elections shall begin at 7:00 am. and shall end at 7:00 p.m.
All_qualified votersin line to vote at 7:00 p.m. shall be allowed to vote.
(& If abalot counting machine is used, the ballot counting machine shall be prepared
prior to 7:00 am. on the day of the election. The Election Judges shall open the polls
only after four (4) members of the Nation verify, through signature on the tape, the ballot

10.C. 102 — page 14




620
621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664

120 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
box is empty and the ballot counting machine printer tape has a zero (0) total count.
102.9-4.102.16-4. Voter Assistance. A voter who requires assistance to complete the voting
process, due to adisability or impairment, may request assistance from a member of the Election
Board or from another qualified voter.

102.16-5. At least one (1) Oneida Police Officer shall be present during the time the polls are
open, and until the counting of ballotsis completed, and tentative results are posted.

102.9-516-6. The Election Board shall provide a voting area sufficiently isolated for each
guallfled voter such that there isan areawith at |least two (_)_SI des and a back encI osure.

102.916-7.. No one causing a disturbance shall be alowed in the voting area.
102.916-8. Election Board members may restrict the voting area to qualified voters only. This
restriction isin the interest of maintaining security of the ballots and voting process.

SeetionB102.16-9. Ballot Box

102.9-9. All ballots being votes, shall be placed in a receptacle clearly marked "Ballot Box" and
shall be locked until counting at the close of polls. Provided that, with electronic ballot counting,
the ballots may be placed within the ballot counting machine as they are received.

Section-C(a) Ballots from each polling location shall remain separate.

102.16-10. Spoiled Ballots

102.9-10. If avoter spoils hist or her ballot, hel or she shall be given anew ballot.
102.9-11.(a) The spoiled ballot shall be marked "VOBvoid" and initialed by two (2)
Election OffietalsBoard members and placed in an—envelopea locked sealed container
marked as "Spoiled Ballots."_The voter who spoiled his or her ballot shall witness the
spoiled ballot be marked as “void” and placed into the locked sealed container.
102.9-12.(b) The Spoiled Ballot envelopesi ocked seaed containers shall be retained and
secured for no less than fifteen (15) calendar days following finalization of any challenge
of the election, at the Records Management Department.

Seetion-B102.16-11. Rejected Ballots

102.9-13. Rejected Ballots are to be placed in a specially marked container and seal ed.
(@) Computer rejected ballots shall be reviewed by the Election OtficialsBoard members
to verify the authenticity of the balot. Ballots rejected because of mutilation shall be
added to the final computer total, provided that, a new ballot was not received as set out
in seetionssection 102.916- 10 threugh-102.9-12governing spoiled ballots.
(b) Ballots rgected, either during the computer process or during a manual counting,
shall be reviewed by the Election OfficialsBoard members to verify that they are
authentic. If the Election OffietalsBoard members determine that the ballot is not an
official ballot, or that it is an illegal ballot, the ballot shall be designated -“void;~” and
placed in a sealed container marked “Void Ballots.”

102.10. Tabulating and Securing Ballots
Section-A16-12. Machine Counted Ballots

102.10-1. When ballots are counted by machine, at-the elese-ef-poHs-theElection Judges shall
10.C. 102 — page 15




665
666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708

121 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
generate from the ballot counting machine copies of the election totals from the votes cast at the
close of the polls.
102.10-2.(a) At least shx{6four (4) Election Board members shall sign the election totals,
which shall include the tape signed by the members of the Nation before the polls were
opened per section 102.916-3(a).

SeetionB102.16-13. Manually Counted Ballots

102.10-3. When ballots are manualy counted, at-the elese-efpeHs-theElection Judges shall

unlock the ballot box and remove the ballots at the close of the polls.
102.10-4.(a) If the ballots need to be counted at alocation other than the polling site, the
ballots shall be secured in a sealed container for transportation to the ballot counting
location. The sealed ballots shall be transported by an Oneida Police Officer with at least
three (3) of the Election OtfieralsBoard members for counting/ and tallying of ballots.
102.10-5.(b) The sealed ballots shall be opened at the time of counting by the Election
OffietalsBoard members and witnessed/ and monitored by an Oneida Police Officer.
102.10-6.(c) Ballots must be counted by two (2) different Election OfficialsBoard
members until two _(2) final tallies are equal in back to back counting. Final tallies shall
be verified by the Election Judges.

Section-C©102.16-14. Securing Ballots

102.10-7. The Election Judges shall place together all ballots counted and secure them together
so that they cannot be untied or tampered with without breaking the seal. The secured ballots,
and the election totals with the signed tape, if applicable, shall then be secured by the Election
Judges in a sealed container in such a manner that the container cannot be opened without
breaking the seals or locks, or destroying the container. The Oneida Police Officer shall then
deliver, on the day of the election, the sealed container to the Records Management Department

for retainkAgretention.

102.2217. Election Outcome and Ties

Seection-A102.17-1. Election Results Announcement

102.11-1. The tentative results of an election shall be announced and posted by the Election
Board within twenty-four (24) hours after the closing of the polls. Notices of election results
shall contain the following statement:

"The election results posted here are tentative results. Final election results are forwarded by the
Oneida Election Board to the Oneida Business Committee via a Final Report after time has
lapsed for recount requests, or chalenges or after all —recounts or challenges have been
completed, whichever islonger”

102.4217-2. The Election Board shall post; the tentative results of the election in the prominent

locations, and publish #athe tentative results on the Nation's rewspaper—the-tentative results-of
an-electionwebsite.

102.4217-3._Tie . Intheevent of atiefor any office, and where the breaking of atieis necessary
to determine the outcome of an election, the Election Board shall conduct an automatic recount

10.C. 102 — page 16



709
710
711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737
738
739
740
741
742
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751
752
753

122 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
of the votes for each candidate receiving the same number of votes. Any recount conducted shall
be the only recount allowed for the tied candidates.
102.33-4—Ferl7-4. Ties of an Oneida Business Committee Position. For Oneida Business
Committee positions, a run-off election between the candidates with the same number of votes
shall be held if there remains a tie after the recount. Said run-off election shall be held within
twenty one (21) calendar days after the recount.
102.17-5. Ties of Other Elected Positions. For all etherelected positions other than the Oneida
Business Committee, if there remains a tie after the recount, the Election Board shall decide the
winner of the tied positions at least two (2) business days after, but no more than five (5)
business days after the recount through alot drawing, which shall be open to the public.
(@) The Election Board shall notify each of the tied candidates and the public of the date,
time, and place of the drawing at least one (1) business day before the drawing. Notice to
the tied candidates shall be in writing. Notice to the public shall be posted by the
Election Board in the prominent locations.
(b) On the date and at the time and place the drawing was noticed, the Election Board
Chairperson shall clearly write the name of each tied candidate on separate pieces of
paper in front of any witnesses present. The pieces of paper shall be the same, or
approximately the same, color, size, and type. The papers shall be folded in half and
placed in a container selected by the Election Board Chairperson.
(c) The Election Board Chairperson shall designate an uninterested party to draw a name
from the container. The candidate whose name is drawn from the container first shall be
declared the winner. An Election Board member other than the Chairperson shall remove
the remaining pieces of paper from the container and show them to the witnesses present.

Seetion-€102.18. Recount Procedures
102.43-5:18-1. Eligibility for a Recount. A candidate may request the Election Board to
complete a recount, provided the margin between the requesting candidate' s vote total and vote
total for the unofficial winner was within two percent (2%) of the total votes for the office being
sought or twenty (20) votes, whichever is greater.
102.18-2. Requesting a Recount. A candidate requestsmay request a recount by hand delivering
awritten request to the office of the Nation’s Secretary; or reticed-desighated-agentthe Business
Committee Support Office, within five (5) business days after the election.
(a) Requests shall be limited to one (1) request per candidate.
(b) The five (5) business day deadline for submitting a request for a recount may be
extended for one (1) business day after the tentative results of a recount are announced,
for a candidate who has not yet utilized his or her one (1) recount request, and who is
directly impacted by arecount of the results which lead to a reversal in the results of the
election.
102.18-3. The Nation’s Secretary shall contact the Election Board Chairperson by the next
business day after the request for recounts.
102.11-618-4. The Election Board shall respend-byconduct the elese-efrequested recount within
two (2) business en-the-fifth-(5")-daydays after receiving the request regarding-the-resuts-of the
recount—Provided-that,-nefrom the Nation’s Secretary.
(a) No recount request need be honored where there have been two (2) recounts completed as a
result of arequest either as arecount of the whole election results, or of that sub-section.

10.C. 102 — page 17




754
755
756
757
758
759
760
761
762
763
764
765
766
767
768
769
770
771
772
773
774
775
776
777
778
779
780
781
782
783
784
785
786
787
788
789
790
791
792
793
794
795
796
797
798

123 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

102.11-8—TFhel02.18-5. An Oneida Police Officer shall be responsible for picking up the
locked, sealed container with the ballots from the Records Management Department and
transporting it to the ballot recounting location.

102.41-918-6. A recount shall be conducted by a quorum of the Election Board, including at
least three (3) of the original Election Offierals:Board members. The locked, sealed ballots shall

be opened by the Election Board Chairperson and an Oneida Police Officer shall witness the
recount.
102. : y
recounts shall be conducted both manually and by mach| ne count with, |f poss bIe the original
Election Board members and Oneida Police Officer present. Recounts may, at the discretion of
the Election Board members, be of the total election results, or of the challenged sub-section of
the election results.
102.18-8. All ballots shall be counted until two (2) final tallies are equa in back to back
counting and the total count of ballots reconciles with the total count from the ballot counting
machine. Sub-sections of candidates may be recounted in lieu of afull recount.
(@ Manually counted ballots shall be recounted by the Election Board. Ballots shall be
counted twice by different persons and certified by the Election Judges.
(b) Computer counted ballots shall be recounted twice and certified by the Election
Judges. Prior to using an electronic ballot counting device, it shall be certified as correct
either by the maker, lessor of the machine, or the Election Board.

Section-D102.18-9. The Election Board shall post tentative results of the recount within twenty-
four (24) hours of the recount being completed. The Election Board shall post the tentative
results in the prominent locations, and publish on the Nation’ s website.

102.19. Challenges and Declaration of Results
102.43-3119-1. Challenges. Any qualified voter may challenge the results of an election by
filing a complaint with the Judiciary within ten (10) calendar days after the election. The
Judiciary shall hear and decide a challenge to any election within two (2) business days after the
challengeisfiled. Any appeal to the appellate body of the Judiciary shall be filed within one (1)
business day after the issuance of the lower body’s decision and decided within two (2) business
days after the appeal isfiled.
(@) The person challenging the election results shall prove by clear and convincing
evidence that the Election Law was violated or an unfair election was conducted, and that
the outcome of the election would have been different but for the violation.
(b) If the Judiciary invalidates the election results, a Special-Electionspecial election
shall be ordered by the Judiciary for the office(s) affected to be held on a date set by the
Judiciary for as soon as the-Electiontawthis law allows for a SpeetalElectionspecial
election.
102.43-3219-2. The Final Report. The Election Board shall forward a Fina Report to the
Nation's Secretary after time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all recounts

10.C. 102 — page 18




799
800
801
802
803
804
805
806
807 |
808
809
810
811
812
813
814
815
816
817
818
819
820
821
822
823
824
825
826
827
828
829
830
831
832
833
834
835
836
837
838
839
840
841
842
843

124 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
or challenges have been completed, whichever is longer. The Final Report shall consist of the
following information:
(a) Total number of persons voting:;
(b) Tota votes cast for each candidate by subsection of the ballot:;
(c) List of any tiesand final results of those ties, including the method of resolution:;
(d) List of candidates elected and position elected to-;
(e) Number of spoiled ballots:; and
(f) Cost of the election, including the compensation paid to each Election Board member.
102.23-1319-3. Declaration of Results. The Business Committee shall declare the official
results of the election and send notices regarding when the swearing in of newly elected officials
shall take place within ten (10) business days after receipt of the Final Report.
102.11-14—Candidates19-4. A candidate elected to the Oneida Business Committee shall resign
from any salaried position effective prior to taking aan Oneida Business Committee oath of
office
102.13-1519-5. Except in the event of an emergency, as determined by the Onelda Business
Committee, a newly elected efficialsofficial shall be sworn into office no later than thirty (30)
calendar days after the official results of an election are declared by the Oneida Business
Committee.
(@ If anewly elected official is not sworn in within thirty (30) caendar days, the seat
shall be considered vacant and the Election Board shall declare the next highest vote
recipient the winner. This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until a winner is
declared.
(b) If al vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a
Spectal-Electionspecial e ection shall be held.
102.11-1619-6. The Election Board shall send notice to the Records Management Department to
destroy the ballots thirty (30) calendar days after the election or after the final declaration of
officia election results occurs, whichever islonger.

102.12—Eleetions20. Constitutional Amendments

;  ori lections: - -
102.4220-1. W Hnary- j .
) 50) calendar d . he clection.




844
845
846
847
848
849
850
851
852
853
854
855
856
857
858
859
860
861
862
863
864
865
866
867
868
869
870
871
872
873
874
875
876
877
878
879
880
881
882
883
884
885
886
887
888

125 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft

102:13-1—Pursuant to Article VI of the Oneida-Nationr-Constitution, amendments to the Onetda
Nation—Constitution—and-By-taws may be initiated by the Oneida Business Committee or a
petition of qualified voters.

102.20-2. Constitutional Amendments by the Oneida Business Committee. The requirements for
the Oneida Business Committee’ sinitiation of Censtitutienal-amendments to the Constitution are

1 0.C. 102 — page 20




889
890
891
892
893
894
895
896
897
898
899
900
901
902
903
904
905
906
907
908
909
910
911
912
913
914
915
916
917
918
919
920
921
922
923
924
925
926
927
928
929
930
931
932
933

126 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08
as provided in the Constitution-and-as. Additiona reguirements for constitutional amendments
by the Oneida Business Committee shall be further detailed in the supporting standard operating
procedures which the Oneida Business Committee shall adopt.
102.20-3. Constitutional Amendments by a Petition of Qualified Voters. Qualified voters may
petition to amend the Onerda-Nation-Constitution and-By-taws-by submitting a petition to-the
Office-of the Nation's Secretary which includes the full text of the proposed amendments and
signatures that are equal in number to at least ten percent (10%) of all members qualified to vote.
(a) Qualified voters may request a petition form from the Office—ef—the-Nation's
Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office.
(b) When a petition form is requested, the Nation’s Secretary, or his or her designee,
shall direct the Trust Enroliment Department to calculate the number of signatures
currently required for a petition submittal, which shall be ten percent (10%) of all
members qualified to vote on the date the petition form is requested from the Office-of
the-Nation’s Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office. When the Nation's
Secretary receives the calculation from the Trust Enrollment Department, the Nation’s
Secretary shall provide the requester with the petition form and the number of signatures
that are currently required.
(c) Such petitions shal be circulated with all supporting materials and submitted a
minimum of ninety (90) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendment is to
be voted upon. If a petition includes supporting materials in addition to the petition form,
each qualified voter signing the petition shall also acknowledge that the supporting
materials were available for review at the time he or she signed the petition by initialing
where required on the petition form.
(d) The Nation's Secretary shall forward submitted petitions to the Trust Enrollment
Department for verification of signatures and to notify the Election Board to provide
notice that the petition may need to be placed on an upcoming ballot.
(e) If the petition is verified by the Trust Enrollment Department to contain signatures
from at least ten percent (10%) of all qualified voters, the Election Board shall make an
official announcement of the proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution at
least sixty (60) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendments are to be
voted on.
102.13-220-4. The Election Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation
Constitution that meet the requirements eentained-n-102.13-10f this law on the ballot at the next
genera election. Provided that, the Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council may
order a specia election be held to consider the proposed amendments. In such circumstances,
the Election Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution on
the ballot at the next special election.
102.13-320-5. The Election Board shall publish any proposed amendments to the Constitution by

publishing a sample ballot no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the election, through a
mass mailing. The Trust Enrollment Department shall be notified, by the Election Board
Chairperson, no less than twenty (20) calendar days prior to the requested mailing. Copies of
such publications shall be prominently posted in each polling place-and, at administrative offices
of the Nation, and shall also be publlshed in the officia Qneml&medlaoutlets—whlreh%hegnada

10.C. 102 — page 21



127 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

934 | busiaess..

935 | 102.13-420-6. The Election Board shall ensure that the ballot contains a statement of the purpose
936  of the proposed amendments prepared by the Oneida Law Office. The Oneida Law Office shall
937  ensure that the statement of purpose is one hundred (100) words or less exclusive of caption, isa
938 true and impartia statement and is written in such a manner that does not create prejudice for or
939  against the proposed amendment.

940 | 102.13-520-7. Pursuant to Article VI, Section 3 of the-OneidaNation Constitution, proposed
941 amendments that are approved by sixty-five percent (65%) of the qualified voters that vote on
942 | that amendment shall become part of the Constitution-and-By-taws, and shall abrogate or amend
943 | existing provisions of the Constitution and-By-laws—at the end of thirty (30) days after
944  submission of the final election report.

945 | 102.43-620-8. If two (2) or more amendments approved by the voters at the same election

946  conflict, the amendment receiving the highest affirmation vote prevails.
947
948

949 End.
CER
952 Adopted - June 19, 1993

953 Amended - June 28, 1995 (Adopted by BC on Behalf of GTC, Completion of Agenda)
954 | Presented for Adoption of 1997 Revisions - GTC-707-6-98-A

955 Amended- October 11, 2008 (General Tribal Council Meeting)

956  Amended-GTC-01-04-10-A

957  Amended — BC-02-25-15-C

958 | Amended — GTC-04-23-17-A

959 Amended — GTC-

1 0.C. 102 — page 22



0 J O Ul i WN K

WWwwwwwdhdhdhdhDdDMDMDNMDMDNMDMDNMNMMNMNRFRPRPRPRPRPEREPRRPRRR
O WNDREFEF OWVWWLWJIOUPd WNE OWOOWMJIO U WNDERE o v

128 of 147
Draft 1- PM Draft

20181108

Title 1. Government and Finances - Chapter 102
ELECTION
Onayote?a’ka: Tho Ni- Yot Tsi? ayethiyataldko Tsi? KayanlAhsla
People of the Standing Stone how it is we will appoint them the kind of laws we have

102.1. Purpose and Policy 102.11. Campaign Signs and Campaigning
102.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal 102.12. Candidate Withdrawal from the Election
102.3. Definitions 102.13. Selection of Candidates
102.4. Election Board 102.14. Notice of Polling Places
102.5. General Election 102.15. Registration of Voters
102.6. Specia Election 102.16. Election Process
102.7. Referendums 102.17. Election Outcomes and Ties
102.8. Primary Elections for Oneida Business Committee 102.18. Recount Procedures

Positions 102.19. Challenges and Declaration of Results
102.9. Candidate Eligibility 102.20. Constitutional Amendments

102.10. Campaign Financing

102.1. Purpose and Policy

102.1-1. It isthe purpose of this law to govern the procedures for the conduct of orderly elections
of the Nation, including pre-election activities such as caucuses and nominations. Because of the
desire for orderly and easily understood elections, there has not been an allowance made for
write-in candidates on ballots.

102.1-2. It is the policy of the Nation to have clearly defined duties and responsibilities of the
Election Board members and other persons employed by the Oneida Nation in the conduct of
elections. Thislaw isintended to govern all procedures used in the election process.

102.2. Adoption, Amendment, Repeal

102.2-1. This law was adopted by the Oneida General Tribal Council by resolution GTC 07-06-
98-A and amended by resolutions GTC-01-04-10-A, BC-02-25-15-C, GTC-04-23-17-A, and
GTC-_ - - -

102.2-2. Thislaw may be amended or repeaed by the Oneida General Tribal Council pursuant to
the procedures set out in the Legisative Procedures Act.

102.2-3. Should a provision of this law or the application thereof to any person or circumstances
be held as invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other provisions of this law which are
considered to have legal force without the invalid portions.

102.2-4. In the event of a conflict between a provision of thislaw and a provision of another law,
the provisions of thislaw shall control.

102.2-5. This law is adopted under authority of the Constitution of the Oneida Nation.

102.3. Definitions
102.3-1. This section shall govern the definitions of words and phrases used within this law. All
words not defined herein shall be used in their ordinary and everyday sense.
(@ “Administrative offices’ means the locations where the Oneida Business Committee
conducts business.
(b) “Alternate” shall mean an individual appointed by the Business Committee to serve
on the Election Board during an election and until election results have been certified.
(c) “Applicant” shall mean a potential candidate who has not yet been officialy
approved for acceptance on a ballot.
(d) “Businessday” shall mean Monday through Friday, 8:00 am. — 4:30 p.m., excluding
holidays of the Nation.
(e) “Campaigning” shall mean al efforts designed to influence members of the Nation to
support or reject a particular candidate of the Nation including, without limitation,

10.C. 102 —page 1



36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80

129 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08

advertising, rallying, public speaking, or other communications with members of the
Nation.
(f) “Candidate” shall mean a petitioner or nominee for an elected position whose nameis
placed on the ballot by the Election Board after successful application.
(g) “Clerk” shall mean an Election Board member who identifies proper registration for
the purpose of determining voter eligibility.
(h) “Close of business’ shall mean 4:30 p.m. Monday through Friday.
(i) “Conflict of Interest” shall mean any interest, whether it be personal, financial,
political or otherwise, in which a Nation elected official, employee, consultant, appointed
or elected, member of any board, committee or commission, or their immediate relatives,
friends or associates, or any other person with whom they have contact, that conflicts
with any right of the Nation to property, information, or any other right to own and
operate its enterprises, free from undisclosed competition or other violation of such rights
of the Oneida Nation, or as defined in any law or policy of the Nation.
() “Constitution” means the Constitution and By-laws of the Oneida Nation.
(K) “Election” shall mean every primary and election.
() “Election Judge” shall mean an Election Board member who informs and advises the
Election Board Chairperson of discrepancies, complaints and controversy regarding voter
eligibility.
(m) “General election” shall mean the election held every three (3) yearsin July to elect
the Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson, Secretary, Treasurer, and the five Council Members
of the Oneida Business Committee, and may include elections for other elected positions.
(n) “Immediate family member” means an individual’s father, mother, grandparent,
sister, brother, wife, husband, daughter, son, father-in-law, mother-in-law, sister-in-law,
brother-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, step-father, step-mother, step-sister, step-
brother, step-daughter, step-son, and any of the these relations attained through legal
adoption.
(o) “Judiciary” means the judicial system that was established by Oneida General Tribal
Council resolution GTC-01-07-13-B to administer the judicia authorities and
responsibilities of the Nation.
(p) “Lot drawing” shall mean the equal chance method used to select a candidate as the
winner of an elected position, in the case of atie between two (2) or more candidates.
(@) “Nation” means the Oneida Nation.
() “Official media outlets” means the Oneida Nation’s website and the Kalihwisaks
newspaper as identified by the Oneida Business Committee through resolution BC-03-22-
17-B.
(s) “Oneida Police Officer” shall mean an employed as a police officer with the Oneida
Police Department.
(t) “Private property” shall mean any lot of land not owned by the Nation, a residential
dwelling or a privately owned business within the boundaries of the Reservation.
(u) “Prominent locations’ shall mean the polling places, main doors of the Norbert Hill
Center, main doors of the Oneida Community Library, the Oneida Community Health
Center, the South Eastern Oneida Tribal Services (SEOTS) building, and all fuel stations
operated by the Nation.
(v) “Qualified voter” shall mean an enrolled member of the Nation who is eighteen (18)

10.C. 102 — page 2



81
82
83
84
85
86
87
88
89
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125

130 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08

years of age or older asdefined in Articlelll, Section 2 of the Constitution.
(w) “Rejected Ballots’ shall mean those ballots which are rejected by the vote tabulating
machine.
(x) “Spoiled Ballot” shal mean a ballot which contains a voter error or is otherwise
marred and is not tabulated.
(y) “Teller” shall mean an Election Board member in charge of collecting and storing of
all ballots.

102.4. Election Board
102.4-1. Establishment. An Election Board is hereby created for the purpose of carrying out the
provisions of thislaw and Article 11, Sections 2 and 3 of the Constitution.
102.4-2. Composition. The Election Board shall consist of nine (9) elected members. All
members shall be elected to terms of three (3) years.
102.4-3. Recusal. An Election Board member shall recuse himself or herself from participating
as an Election Board member in any pre-election, election day, or post-election activities when:
(&) heor sheisapetitioner, applicant or candidate in any election;
(b) apetitioner, applicant, or candidate in any election is an immediate family member of
the Election Board member; or
(c) thereisotherwise aconflict of interest.
102.4-4. Vacancies. Any vacancy in an unexpired term shall be filled by appointment by the
Oneida Business Committee for the balance of the unexpired term. The filling of a vacancy may
be timed to correspond with the pre-election activities and the needs of the Election Board.
102.4-5. The Election Board shall identify members who shall serve as tellers, Election Judges
and clerksin advance of an election.
102.4-6 Election Board Alternates. The Oneida Business Committee may appoint or reappoint a
sufficient number of alternates to the Election Board, as recommended by the Election Board, to
assist with election day and pre-election activities.
102.4-7. The Election Board shall choose a Chairperson from amongst themselves as set out in
the bylaws of the Election Board, to preside over the meetings. This selection shall be carried
out at the first meeting of the Election Board following an election. The Chairperson shall then
ask the Election Board to select a Vice-Chairperson and a Secretary.
102.4-8. Duties of the Election Board. The Election Board shall have the following duties, along
with other responsibilities listed throughout this law:
(@ The Election Board shall ensure that the election polling equipment and ballots are
maintained in alocked and secured area when not in use for an election,
(b) The Election Board shall develop and adhere to standard operating procedures
regarding election activities and responsibilities,;
(1) Actions of the Election Board regarding standard operating procedures shall
be presented to the Business Committee who shall then adopt or forward action(s)
to the General Tribal Council for adoption.
(c) The Election Board shal assist individuals with disabilities through the voting
process;
(d) The Election Board shall bein charge of all registration and election procedures; and
(e) Upon completion of an election, the Election Board shall make a final report on the
election results.

10.C. 102 — page 3



126
127
128
129
130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
le2
163
le4
165
166
167
168
169
170

131 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
102.4-9. Specific Duties of Officers and Election Board Members. All Election Board members
shall be required to attend all Election Board meetings. Additional specific duties of the
Chairperson and other Election Board members include the following:
(&) Chairperson. The Chairperson of the Election Board shall conduct the following
duties:
(1) preside over meetings of the Election Board,;
(2) oversee the conduct of the election;
(3) dismissthe alternates and Trust Enrollment Department personnel when their
election day duties are complete; and
(4) post and report election results.
(b) Vice-Chairperson. The Vice-Chairperson shall preside over al meetings in the
absence of the Chairperson.
(c) Secretary. The Secretary shall keep arecord of the meetings and make them available
to the Nation’s Secretary, other Election Board members, and the public as required in
the Nation’s laws and policies governing open records and open meetings.
(d) Clerks. The clerks shall implement the requirements of identifying and registering all
voters and determining voter eigibility. Clerks shall work in conjunction with the Trust
Enrollment Department personnel in the registration process, and assist the Chairperson
as directed in conducting the election.
(1) Clerksshall not be currently employed by the Trust Enrollment Department.
(e) Tellers. Tellersshall collect and keep safe all ballots until the election is complete, as
determined by thislaw, and shall assist the Chairperson in conducting the election.
(f) Election Judges. Election Judges shall inform and advise the Chairperson of all
aspects of the election conducted under this law. In case of disputes among Election
Board members, or between members of the Nation and Election Board members, or any
controversy regarding voter eligibility, the election judge(s) shall assist the Chairperson
in making a determination.
102.4-10. Stipend Rates. Election Board members shall receive a stipend in accordance with the
Nation's laws, policies, and resolutions governing boards, committees, and commissions.
Election members are to be compensated at an hourly rate when conducting elections as provided
for in the Election Board' s bylaws as approved by the Oneida Business Committee.
102.4-11. Compensation of other Election Personnel. The Trust Enrollment Department
personnel and Oneida Police Officer(s) shall be compensated at their regular rate of pay out of
their respective budgets when performing official duties during an election in accordance with
this law.
102.4-12. Enforcement. A member of the Election Board found to be in violation of this law
may be subject to:
(& removal pursuant to any laws and/or policies of the Nation’s governing removal, if
the Election Board member was elected to his or her position;
(1) A member who is removed from the Election Board shall be ineligible to
serve on the Election Board for three (3) years from the time he or she is removed
from the Election Board.
(b) termination of appointment by the Oneida Business Committee pursuant to any laws
and/or policies of the Nation governing boards, committees, and commissions, if the
Election Board member was appointed to his or her position by the Oneida Business

10.C. 102 — page 4



171
172
173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215

132 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
Committee; and/or
(c) sanctions and penalties pursuant to any laws and/or policies of the Nation governing
sanctions and/or penalties.

102.5. General Elections
102.5-1. In accordance with Article I11, Section 5 of the Constitution, general elections shall be
held in the month of July on a date set by the General Tribal Council.
(& The General Tribal Council shall set the election date at the January annual meeting,
or at thefirst General Tribal Council meeting held during a given year.

102.6. Special Elections
102.6-1. Initiation of Special Elections. A specia election may be initiated by a request or
directive of the General Tribal Council or the Oneida Business Committee.

(& A member of the Nation may make a request for a special election to the Oneida

Business Committee or the General Tribal Council.
102.6-2. Matters subject to a special election include, but are not limited to, referendum
guestions, vacancies, and/or petitions. Matters subject to a special election may be placed on the
ballot of ageneral election.
102.6-3. A specia election shall follow the processes and procedures established for all other
elections.
102.6-4. The date of a specia elections shall be set by the Oneida Business Committee as
recommended by the Election Board, or as ordered by the Judiciary in connection with an
election challenge.
102.6-5. Notice of Special Elections. Notice of a special election shall be posted by the Election
Board in the prominent locations, and placed in the Nation’s official media outlets not less than
ten (10) calendar days prior to the special election.
102.6-6. Emergency Cancelation of Special Elections. In the event of an emergency, the
Election Board may reschedule the specia election, provided that no less than twenty-four (24)
hour notice of the rescheduled special election date is given to the voters, by posting notices in
the prominent locations.

102.7. Referendums

102.7-1. A qualified voter may submit a referendum question to be included on the ballot for a
general or specia election for the purpose of soliciting an opinion from the voters of that election
onany issue directly affecting the Nation or its general membership.

102.7-2. The Nation's Secretary shall develop and make available in the Business Committee
Support Office a standard referendum form.

102.7-3. A referendum question shall be written in a manner that solicits a “yes’ or “no”
response.

102.7-4. The referendum form shall be presented to the Nation’s Secretary at the caucus prior to
an election. Once received at a caucus, the referendum question shall be placed on the ballot of
the next election.

102.7-5. The results of a referendum question in which a mgjority of the qualified voters who
cast votes shall be binding on the Oneida Business Committee to present the issue for action
and/or decision at General Tribal Council.

10.C. 102 — page 5



216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258
259
260

133 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
2018 11 08

102.8. Primary Elections for Oneida Business Committee Positions
102.8-1. There shal be aprimary election for an Oneida Business Committee position whenever
there are three (3) or more candidates for any officer position or sixteen (16) or more candidates
for the at-large council member positions.
(& The two (2) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for each officer
position shall be placed on the ballot.
(b) Thefifteen (15) candidates receiving the highest number of votes cast for the at-large
council member positions shall be placed on the ballot.
(c) Any position where atie exists to determine the candidates to be placed on the ballot
shall include all candidates where the tie exists.
102.8-2. The primary election shall be held on a Saturday at |least thirty (30) calendar days prior
to the election.
102.8-3. The Election Board shall cancel the primary election if the Oneida Business Committee
positions did not draw the requisite number of candidates for a primary by the petitioning
deadline set for the primary election.
102.8-4. In the event a candidate withdraws or is unable to run for office after being declared a
winner in the primary, the Election Board shall declare the next highest primary vote recipient
the primary winner. This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until the ballot is full or until
there are no available candidates. If the ballot has already been printed, the procedures for
notifying the Oneida public in section 102.12-3 and 102.12-4 shall be followed, including the
requirement to print anotice in the Nation’s official media outletsif time lines alow.

102.9. Candidate Eligibility
102.9-1. All applicants shall meet the minimum eligibility requirements in order to become a
candidate, in addition to any specific requirements and/or exceptions set out in duly adopted
bylaws or other documents.
102.9-2. Minimum Eligibility Requirements. In order to be éigible to be a candidate, applicants
shall:
(a) be an enrolled member of the Nation, as verified by membership rolls of the Nation;
(b) beaqualified voter on the day of the election; and
(c) provide proof of physical residency as required for the position for which they have
been nominated or for which they have petitioned. Proof of residency may be through
one (1) or more of the following:
(1) avalid Wisconsin driver’slicense;
(2) ahill or pay check stub showing name and physical address of the candidate
from the prior or current month;
(3) another form of proof that identifies the candidate and that the candidate has
physically resided at the address and identifies that address as the primary
residence.
102.9-3. Conflict of Interest. No applicant shall have a conflict of interest with the position for
which they are being considered, provided that any conflict of interest which may be eliminated
within thirty (30) calendar days of being elected shall not be considered as a bar to nomination or
election.
102.9-4. Applications for Candidacy. An applicant interested in being considered as a candidate

10.C. 102 — page 6



261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
298
299
300
301
302
303
304
305

134 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
for a position that was nominated at a caucus or will be petitioning for candidacy shall submit an
application for candidacy to the Nation’s Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office.
(@) The application for candidacy shall be submitted in person during normal business
hours, 8:00 am. to 4:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, within five (5) business days after
the caucus.
(b) No mailed, internal Nation mail delivery, faxed or other delivery method shall be
accepted.
(c) The Nation's Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office shall timestamp
when an application for candidacy is received.
(d) Proof of Minimum Eligibility Requirements. At the time of submission, the
application for candidacy shall include attached documentation verifying that the
applicant meets the minimum eligibility requirements.
(1) The application for candidacy shall include a list of the required
documentation for each office.
(2) An application that does not include attached documentation verifying the
applicant meets the minimum eligibility requirements at the time of submission
shall be disqualified.
102.9-5. An applicant for a position on the Oneida Business Committee or a position within the
Judiciary shall only be eligible to apply for one (1) elective office or position per election.
() A statement of the ineligibility of an applicant to apply for more than one (1) elective
office or position if applying for a position with the Oneida Business Committee or the
Judiciary shall be included in the application materials as well as the notice for the
caucus, and read verbally at the start of the caucus.
(b) If an applicant provides an application for candidacy or petition for candidacy for
more than one position or office if applying for a position on the Oneida Business
Committee or the Judiciary, then the application which was filed first shall be accepted
while any other applications shall be disqualified.
(1) The Election Board should review the timestamps on the applications to
determine which application shall be accepted.
102.9-6. The names of the candidates and the positions sought shall be a public record and
made available to the public upon the determination of eligibility by the Election Board or the
Election Board' s designee.
102.9-7. Eligibility Review. The Election Board shall be responsible for reviewing the
gualifications of applicants to verify eligibility. Any applicant found to be ineligible for a
nominated or petitioned for position shall be notified by certified mail return receipt requested.
The notice shall provide the following information:
(@) Position for which they were considered,
(b) Qualifications of the position and citation of the source. Copies of source may be
attached;
(c) A brief summary explaining why the applicant was found to be ineligible; and
(d) That the applicant has two (2) business days from notification to request a hearing on
the ineligibility determination with the Judiciary.
102.9-8. Request for a Hearing on Ineligibility. An applicant found to be ineligible for a
nominated or petitioned for position shall have two (2) business days to request a hearing with
the Judiciary to review the dligibility status of the applicant. The Judiciary shall hear and decide

10.C. 102 —page 7



306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344
345
346
347
348
349
350

135 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft

201811 08

areguest for a hearing on ineligibility within two (2) business days after the request isfiled. Any

appeal to the appellate body of the Judiciary shall be filed within one (1) business day after the

issuance of the lower body’s decision and decided within two (2) business days after the appeal
isfiled.

102.10. Campaign Financing
102.10-1. A candidate shall only accept contributions from individuals who are members of the
Nation or individuals related by blood or marriage to the candidate.
102.10-2. A candidate shall not accept contributions from any business, whether sole
proprietorship, partnership, corporation, or other business entity.
102.10-3. A candidate shall not solicit or accept contributions in any office, business and/or
facility of the Nation.
102.10-4. Violations of Campaign Financing Restrictions. A violation of the campaign
financing restrictions shall result in afine.
(@) The Election Board shall impose the fine in an amount specified in a resolution
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) Fines shall be paid to the Election Board within ninety (90) days after the fine is
issued. If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Election Board may seek to collect the
money owed through the Nation’ s garnishment and/or per capita attachment process.
(c) Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund.

102.11. Campaign Signs and Campaigning
102.11-1. Restrictions on Campaigning. The following restrictions on campaigning apply to all
candidates:

(@) No campaigning of any type shall be conducted within two hundred eighty (280) feet

of the voting area during an election, excluding private property.

(b) Employees of the Nation shall not engage in campaigning for offices of the Nation

during work hours.

(1) Enforcement. The Nation’s employees shall be subject to disciplinary action
under the Nation’s laws and policies governing employment for political
campaigning during work hours.
102.11-2. Placement of Campaign Signs. Placement of campaign signs shall be pursuant to the
following restrictions:

(&) Campaign signs shall not be posted or erected on any property of the Nation except

for private property with the owner or tenant’s permission.

(b) No campaign sign shall exceed sixteen (16) sguare feet in area. A maximum of

seven (7) such signs may be placed on abuilding or on alot.

(c) No campaign sign shall project beyond the property line into the public right of way.
102.11-3. Enforcement of Sign Placement. The Zoning Administrator shall remove any
campaign signs that are not in compliance with this law, in accordance with the Nation’s laws
and policies governing zoning. The Zoning Administrator shall notify the Election Board of
campaign sign violations.

102.11-4. Violations of Campaign Restrictions. A violation of the restriction on campaigning
within two hundred eighty (280) feet of the voting area during an election, or campaign sign
restrictions shall result in afine.

10.C. 102 — page 8



351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387
388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395

136 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
(@) The Election Board shall impose the fine in an amount specified in a resolution
adopted by the Oneida Business Committee.
(b) Fines shall be paid to the Election Board within ninety (90) days after the fine is
issued. If the fine is not paid by this deadline, the Election Board may seek to collect the
money owed through the Nation’ s garnishment and/or per capita attachment process.
(c) Money received from fines shall be deposited into the General Fund.
102.11-5. Removal of Campaign Signs. All campaign signs shall be removed within five (5)
business days after an election.

102.12. Candidate Withdrawal from the Election
102.12-1. A candidate may withdraw from the election at any time. A candidate withdrawing
by any method listed within this section shall be denied any position from which they have
withdrawn regardless of the number of votes cast for that candidate. A written statement shall be
considered the only necessary evidence of withdrawal and acceptance of denial of any position
withdrawn from.
102.12-2. Withdrawal Prior to Submission of the Ballot. A candidate may withdraw his or her
name from a ballot prior to submission of the ballot for printing if the withdrawal is submitted
in writing by the candidate to any Election Board member, excluding alternates.
102.12-3. Withdrawal Prior to the Opening of the Polls. After the balot is printed, a candidate
may withdraw his or her name from the election prior to the opening of the polls by submitting in
writing a statement indicating they are withdrawing from the election to any Election Board
member, excluding aternates.
(@) Thiswritten withdrawal statement shall be posted alongside any sample ballot printed
prior to the election in the official media outlets of the Nation or any posting at the
polling places.
102.12-4. Withdrawal After Opening of the Polls. A candidate may withdraw after the opening
of the polls by submitting a request to be removed from the ballot, in writing, to the Election
Board membersin charge of the polling place.
(@) Thewritten withdrawal statement shall be posted next to any posted sample ballot.
102.12-5. Candidate Withdrawal After Winning an Election but Before the Oath is Taken.
(@ In the event a candidate declines an office after winning an election, the Election
Board shall declare the next highest vote recipient the winner. This procedure shall be
repeated as necessary until awinner is declared.
(b) If al vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a
special election shall be held.
102.12-6. Candidate Withdrawal After Taking an Oath of Office. In the event a candidate
declines an office after winning an election and taking an oath of office, the withdrawal shall be
treated as aresignation of an official.

102.13. Selection of Candidates
102.13-1. Setting of a Caucus. The Election Board shall be responsible for calling a caucus
before any election is held.
(& The caucus for the general election shall be held at least seventy-five (75) calendar
days prior to the election date.
(b) A caucus for a specia €election shall be held at least forty-five (45) calendar days

10.C. 102 — page 9



396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430
431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440

137 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
prior to the election date.
(c) In a genera election year, caucuses shal be combined so that candidates for the
Oneida Business Committee and other elected positions are nominated at the same
caucus.

102.13-2. Caucus Procedures. The procedures for a caucus shall be as follows:

(@ Each position shall be opened and closed for nominations by motion during the
caucus. A nomination for a position shall only be accepted when a position is open for
nominations.
(1) Once nominations are closed for a particular position, an applicant may
petition to be on the ballot for that position.
(b) Once a position is opened for nominations a candidate shall be nominated for a
position from the floor.
(1) Anindividua shall not nominate himself or herself for a position during the
caucus.
(c) A candidate present at the caucus shall accept or decline their nomination at the
caucus. A candidate nominated at the caucus, but not present at the caucus to accept the
nomination, shall be required to follow the petition process.
(d) Nominations shall consist of the following positions:
(1) Oneida Business Committee Chairperson;
(2) OneidaBusiness Committee Vice-Chairperson;
(3) Oneida Business Committee Treasurer;
(4) OneidaBusiness Committee Secretary;
(5 Oneida Business Committee Council Member; and
(6) Any other elected positions as required by bylaws, resolution, or law of the
Nation.

102.13-3. Petition for Candidacy. Any eligible member of the Nation may petition to be placed
on aballot for an election. The procedure for a petition for candidacy shall be asfollows:

() Each petitioner, not nominated at caucus, shall file a petition for candidacy. A
petitioner shall use an official petition form and application for candidacy which may
be obtained in the Business Committee Support Office or from the mailing for that
caucus.
(b) A petitioners shall obtain at least ten (10) signatures of qualified voters on the
petition form. The petition form shall contain the origina signatures of the qualified
voters. Photocopies of signatures shall not be accepted.
(c) The petition form shall consist of each qualified voter’s:

(1) printed name and address;

(2) date of birth;

(3) enrollment number; and

(4) signature.
(d) Petitions shall be presented to the Nation’s Secretary or the Business Committee
Support Office during normal business hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. Monday through
Friday, but no later than prior to close of business five (5) business days after the
caucus. The location to drop-off petitions shall be identified in the mailing
identifying the caucus date.
(e) The Nation’s Secretary shall forward all petitions to the Election Board

1 0.C. 102 — page 10



441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473
474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485

138 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
Chairperson the next business day following the close of petition submissions.
(f) The Election Board shall forward the petitions to the Trust Enrollment
Department for verification of all signatures contained on the petition.

102.14. Notice of Polling Places

102.14-1. The Election Board shall post a notice of the election in the prominent locations and
on the official media outlets, stating the location of the polling places and the time the polls will
be open. This notice shall also be posted in an easily visible position, close to the entrance of the
Nation's businesses and/or facilities.

102.14-2. Notice of the election and polling information shall be posted no less than ten (10)
calendar days prior to the election, and shall remain posted until the poll closes on the day of the
election.

102.14-3. Except for a special election, notice for the election shall be mailed to all members of
the Nation, stating the time and place of the election and a sample of the ballot, no less than ten
(10) calendar days prior to the election, through a mass mailing. The Trust Enrollment
Department shall be notified, by the Election Board Chairperson, no less than twenty (20)
calendar days prior to the requested mailing.

102.15. Registration of Voters
102.15-1. Voter Registration. Qualified voters shall physically register on the day of the
election at the polls by signing his or her name on an official Voter Registration Form containing
the following information:

(@) name;

(b) date of birth; and

(c) enrollment number.
102.15-2. ldentification of Voters. All qualified voters shall present one of the following picture
identifications in order to be able to vote:

(&) Oneida Nation identification card;

(b) Driver'slicense; or

(c) Other identification card that contains a name and photograph.
102.15-3. Trust Enroliment Department personnel shall be responsible for verifying enrollment
with the Nation. The conduct of Trust Enrollment Department personnel is governed by the
Election Board members during the voting period.
102.15-4. Verification of Voter Eligibility. Should a question or dispute arise as to the eligibility
of an individua being qualified to vote, an Election Board member serving as an election judge
shall meet with the Trust Enrollment Department personnel who are registering voters, to decide
the voting member’s eligibility currently being questioned, and shall make such decisions from
the facts available, whether the applicant is, in fact qualified and verifiable under Article Il
Section 2 of the Constitution to vote in the Nation’s el ections.
102.15-5. Any voter denied eligibility shall not be allowed to vote in the election.

102.16. Election Process

102.16-1. Public Test of Ballot Machines. No more than ten (10) days prior to an election, the
Election Board shall publicaly test the ballot machines to ensure that the ballot machine
correctly counts the votes cast for al offices and on all measures.

10.C. 102 — page 11



486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503
504
505
506
507
508
509
510
511
512
513
514
515
516
517
518
519
520
521
522
523
524
525
526
527
528
529
530

139 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
(@) Notice of the public test of the ballot machines shall be posted in the Nation’s official
media outlets at |east ten (10) days prior to the public test.
(b) All ballot machines shall be tested during the public test, no matter what polling
location the ballot machines will ultimately be used for.
(b) The Election Board shall conduct the test by processing a pre-audited group of
marked ballots to ensure the machine properly records the predetermined number of votes
on the test ballots.
102.16-2. Polling Location. Elections shall be held in facilities of the Nation as determined by
the Election Board.
102.16-3. Polling Time. Voting for elections shall begin at 7:00 am. and shall end at 7:00 p.m.
All qualified votersin line to vote at 7:00 p.m. shall be allowed to vote.
(&) If aballot counting machine is used, the ballot counting machine shall be prepared
prior to 7:00 am. on the day of the election. The Election Judges shall open the polls
only after four (4) members of the Nation verify, through signature on the tape, the ballot
box is empty and the ballot counting machine printer tape has a zero (0) total count.
102.16-4. Voter Assistance. A voter who requires assistance to complete the voting process, due
to a disability or impairment, may request assistance from a member of the Election Board or
from another qualified voter.
102.16-5. At least one (1) Oneida Police Officer shall be present during the time the polls are
open, and until the counting of ballotsis completed, and tentative results are posted.
102.16-6. The Election Board shall provide a voting area sufficiently isolated for each qualified
voter, such that thereis an areawith at least two (2) sides and a back enclosure.
102.16-7. No one causing a disturbance shall be allowed in the voting area.
102.16-8. Election Board members may restrict the voting area to qualified voters only. This
restriction isin the interest of maintaining security of the ballots and voting process.
102.16-9. Ballot Box. All ballots being votes, shall be placed in a receptacle clearly marked
"Ballot Box" and shall be locked until counting at the close of polls. Provided that, with
electronic ballot counting, the ballots may be placed within the ballot counting machine as they
arereceived.
() Ballotsfrom each polling location shall remain separate.
102.16-10. Spoiled Ballots. If a voter spoils his or her ballot, he or she shall be given a new
ballot.
(@) The spoiled ballot shall be marked "void" and initialed by two (2) Election Board
members and placed in alocked sealed container marked as " Spoiled Ballots." The voter
who spoiled his or her ballot shall witness the spoiled ballot be marked as “void” and
placed into the locked sealed container.
(b) The Spoiled Ballot locked sealed containers shall be retained and secured for no less
than fifteen (15) calendar days following finalization of any challenge of the election, at
the Records Management Department.
102.16-11. Rejected Ballots. Rejected Ballots are to be placed in a specially marked container
and sealed.
(&) Computer rejected ballots shall be reviewed by the Election Board members to verify
the authenticity of the ballot. Ballots rejected because of mutilation shall be added to the
final computer total, provided that, a new ballot was not received as set out in section
102.16-10 governing spoiled ballots.

10.C. 102 — page 12



531
532
533
534
535
536
537
538
539
540
541
542
543
544
545
546
547
548
549
550
551
552
553
554
555
556
557
558
559
560
561
562
563
564
565
566
567
568
569
570
571
572
573
574
575

140 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
(b) Ballots rgected, either during the computer process or during a manual counting,
shall be reviewed by the Election Board members to verify that they are authentic. If the
Election Board members determine that the ballot is not an official ballot, or that it is an
illegal ballot, the ballot shall be designated “void” and placed in a sealed container
marked “Void Ballots.”
102.16-12. Machine Counted Ballots. When ballots are counted by machine, the Election
Judges shall generate from the ballot counting machine copies of the election totals from the
votes cast at the close of the polls.
(@) At least four (4) Election Board members shall sign the election totals, which shall
include the tape signed by the members of the Nation before the polls were opened per
section 102.16-3(a).
102.16-13. Manually Counted Ballots. When ballots are manually counted, the Election Judges
shall unlock the ballot box and remove the ballots at the close of the polls.
(a) If the ballots need to be counted at a location other than the polling site, the ballots
shall be secured in a sealed container for transportation to the ballot counting location.
The sealed ballots shall be transported by an Oneida Police Officer with at least three (3)
of the Election Board members for counting and tallying of ballots.
(b) The seded balots shall be opened at the time of counting by the Election Board
members and witnessed and monitored by an Oneida Police Officer.
(c) Ballots must be counted by two (2) different Election Board members until two (2)
final tallies are equal in back to back counting. Final tallies shall be verified by the
Election Judges.
102.16-14. Securing Ballots. The Election Judges shall place together al ballots counted and
secure them together so that they cannot be untied or tampered with without breaking the seal.
The secured ballots, and the election totals with the signed tape, if applicable, shall then be
secured by the Election Judges in a sealed container in such a manner that the container cannot
be opened without breaking the seals or locks, or destroying the container. The Oneida Police
Officer shall then deliver, on the day of the election, the sealed container to the Records
Management Department for retention.

102.17. Election Outcome and Ties

102.17-1. Election Results Announcement. The tentative results of an election shall be
announced and posted by the Election Board within twenty-four (24) hours after the closing of
the polls. Notices of election results shall contain the following statement: "The election results
posted here are tentative results. Fina election results are forwarded by the Oneida Election
Board to the Oneida Business Committee via a Final Report after time has lapsed for recount
requests, or challenges or after all recounts or challenges have been completed, whichever is
longer”

102.17-2. The Election Board shall post the tentative results of the election in the prominent
locations, and publish the tentative results on the Nation’s website.

102.17-3. Tie . Inthe event of atie for any office, and where the breaking of atie is necessary
to determine the outcome of an election, the Election Board shall conduct an automatic recount
of the votes for each candidate receiving the same number of votes. Any recount conducted shall
be the only recount allowed for the tied candidates.

102.17-4. Ties of an Oneida Business Committee Position. For Oneida Business Committee

10.C. 102 — page 13



576
577
578
579
580
581
582
583
584
585
586
587
588
589
590
591
592
593
594
595
596
597
598
599
600
601
602
603
604
605
606
607
608
609
610
611
612
613
614
615
616
617
618
619
620

141 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
positions, a run-off election between the candidates with the same number of votes shall be held
if there remains atie after the recount. Said run-off election shall be held within twenty one (21)
calendar days after the recount.
102.17-5. Ties of Other Elected Positions. For al elected positions other than the Oneida
Business Committee, if there remains a tie after the recount, the Election Board shall decide the
winner of the tied positions at least two (2) business days after, but no more than five (5)
business days after the recount through alot drawing, which shall be open to the public.
() The Election Board shall notify each of the tied candidates and the public of the date,
time, and place of the drawing at least one (1) business day before the drawing. Notice to
the tied candidates shall be in writing. Notice to the public shall be posted by the
Election Board in the prominent locations.
(b) On the date and at the time and place the drawing was noticed, the Election Board
Chairperson shall clearly write the name of each tied candidate on separate pieces of
paper in front of any witnesses present. The pieces of paper shall be the same, or
approximately the same, color, size, and type. The papers shall be folded in half and
placed in a container selected by the Election Board Chairperson.
(c) The Election Board Chairperson shall designate an uninterested party to draw a name
from the container. The candidate whose name is drawn from the container first shall be
declared the winner. An Election Board member other than the Chairperson shall remove
the remaining pieces of paper from the container and show them to the witnesses present.

102.18. Recount Procedures
102.18-1. Eligibility for a Recount. A candidate may request the Election Board to complete a
recount, provided the margin between the requesting candidate's vote total and vote total for the
unofficial winner was within two percent (2%) of the total votes for the office being sought or
twenty (20) votes, whichever is greater.
102.18-2. Requesting a Recount. A candidate may request a recount by hand delivering a
written request to the office of the Nation’s Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office,
within five (5) business days after the election.
(8 Requests shall be limited to one (1) request per candidate.
(b) The five (5) business day deadline for submitting a request for a recount may be
extended for one (1) business day after the tentative results of a recount are announced,
for a candidate who has not yet utilized his or her one (1) recount request, and who is
directly impacted by a recount of the results which lead to areversal in the results of the
election.
102.18-3. The Nation’s Secretary shall contact the Election Board Chairperson by the next
business day after the request for recounts.
102.18-4. The Election Board shall conduct the requested recount within two (2) business days
after receiving the request from the Nation’s Secretary.
(& No recount request need be honored where there have been two (2) recounts completed as a
result of arequest either as arecount of the whole election results, or of that sub-section.
102.18-5. An Oneida Police Officer shall be responsible for picking up the locked, sealed
container with the ballots from the Records Management Department and transporting it to the
ballot recounting location.
102.18-6. A recount shall be conducted by a quorum of the Election Board, including at |east

10.C. 102 — page 14



621
622
623
624
625
626
627
628
629
630
631
632
633
634
635
636
637
638
639
640
641
642
643
644
645
646
647
648
649
650
651
652
653
654
655
656
657
658
659
660
661
662
663
664
665

142 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
three (3) of the original Election Board members. The locked, sealed ballots shall be opened by
the Election Board Chairperson and an Oneida Police Officer shall witness the recount.
102.18-7. All recounts shall be conducted both manually and by machine count with, if possible,
the original Election Board members and Oneida Police Officer present. Recounts may, at the
discretion of the Election Board members, be of the total election results, or of the challenged
sub-section of the election results.
102.18-8. All ballots shall be counted until two (2) final tallies are equal in back to back
counting and the total count of ballots reconciles with the total count from the ballot counting
machine. Sub-sections of candidates may be recounted in lieu of afull recount.
(@ Manually counted ballots shall be recounted by the Election Board. Ballots shall be
counted twice by different persons and certified by the Election Judges.
(b) Computer counted ballots shall be recounted twice and certified by the Election
Judges. Prior to using an electronic ballot counting device, it shall be certified as correct
either by the maker, lessor of the machine, or the Election Board.
102.18-9. The Election Board shall post tentative results of the recount within twenty-four (24)
hours of the recount being completed. The Election Board shall post the tentative results in the
prominent locations, and publish on the Nation’s website.

102.19. Challenges and Declaration of Results
102.19-1. Challenges. Any qualified voter may challenge the results of an election by filing a
complaint with the Judiciary within ten (10) calendar days after the election. The Judiciary shall
hear and decide a challenge to any election within two (2) business days after the chalenge is
filed. Any appeal to the appellate body of the Judiciary shall be filed within one (1) business day
after the issuance of the lower body’ s decision and decided within two (2) business days after the
appeal isfiled.

(& The person challenging the election results shall prove by clear and convincing

evidence that the Election Law was violated or an unfair election was conducted, and that

the outcome of the election would have been different but for the violation.

(b) If the Judiciary invalidates the election results, a special election shall be ordered by

the Judiciary for the office(s) affected to be held on a date set by the Judiciary for as soon

asthislaw allows for a special election.
102.19-2. The Final Report. The Election Board shall forward a Final Report to the Nation's
Secretary after time has lapsed for recount requests, or challenges or after all recounts or
challenges have been completed, whichever is longer. The Fina Report shall consist of the
following information:

() Total number of persons voting;

(b) Total votes cast for each candidate by subsection of the ballot;

(c) Listof any tiesand final results of those ties, including the method of resolution;

(d) List of candidates elected and position elected to;

(e) Number of spoiled ballots; and

(f) Cost of the election, including the compensation paid to each Election Board member.
102.19-3. Declaration of Results. The Business Committee shall declare the official results of
the election and send notices regarding when the swearing in of newly elected officials shall take
place within ten (10) business days after receipt of the Final Report.
102.19-4. A candidate elected to the Oneida Business Committee shall resign from any salaried

10.C. 102 — page 15



666
667
668
669
670
671
672
673
674
675
676
677
678
679
680
681
682
683
684
685
686
687
688
689
690
691
692
693
694
695
696
697
698
699
700
701
702
703
704
705
706
707
708
709
710

143 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
position effective prior to taking an Oneida Business Committee oath of office
102.19-5. Except in the event of an emergency, as determined by the Oneida Business
Committee, a newly elected official shall be sworn into office no later than thirty (30) calendar
days after the official results of an election are declared by the Oneida Business Committee.
(&) If anewly elected officia is not sworn in within thirty (30) calendar days, the seat
shall be considered vacant and the Election Board shall declare the next highest vote
recipient the winner. This procedure shall be repeated as necessary until a winner is
declared.
(b) If al vote recipients decline or are otherwise unable to be declared the winner, then a
special election shall be held.
102.19-6. The Election Board shall send notice to the Records Management Department to
destroy the ballots thirty (30) calendar days after the election or after the final declaration of
officia election results occurs, whichever islonger.

102.20. Constitutional Amendments
102.20-1. Pursuant to Article VI of the Constitution, amendments to the Constitution may be
initiated by the Oneida Business Committee or a petition of qualified voters.
102.20-2. Constitutional Amendments by the Oneida Business Committee. The requirements for
the Oneida Business Committee’ sinitiation of amendments to the Constitution are as provided in
the Constitution. Additional requirements for constitutional amendments by the Oneida Business
Committee shall be further detailed in the supporting standard operating procedures which the
Oneida Business Committee shall adopt.
102.20-3. Constitutional Amendments by a Petition of Qualified Voters. Qualified voters may
petition to amend the Constitution by submitting a petition to the Nation’s Secretary which
includes the full text of the proposed amendments and signatures that are equal in number to at
least ten percent (10%) of all members qualified to vote.
(@) Qualified voters may request a petition form from the Nation's Secretary or the
Business Committee Support Office.
(b) When a petition form is requested, the Nation's Secretary, or his or her designee,
shall direct the Trust Enrollment Department to calculate the number of signatures
currently required for a petition submittal, which shall be ten percent (10%) of all
members qualified to vote on the date the petition form is requested from the Nation’s
Secretary or the Business Committee Support Office.  When the Nation's Secretary
receives the calculation from the Trust Enrollment Department, the Nation's Secretary
shall provide the requester with the petition form and the number of signatures that are
currently required.
(c) Such petitions shal be circulated with all supporting materials and submitted a
minimum of ninety (90) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendment is to
be voted upon. If a petition includes supporting materials in addition to the petition form,
each qualified voter signing the petition shall also acknowledge that the supporting
materials were available for review at the time he or she signed the petition by initialing
where required on the petition form.
(d) The Nation's Secretary shall forward submitted petitions to the Trust Enrollment
Department for verification of signatures and to notify the Election Board to provide
notice that the petition may need to be placed on an upcoming ballot.

10.C. 102 — page 16



711
712
713
714
715
716
717
718
719
720
721
722
723
724
725
726
727
728
729
730
731
732
733
734
735
736
737

738
739
740

741
743
744
745
746
747
748
749
750
751

144 of 147

Draft 1- PM Draft
201811 08
(e) If the petition is verified by the Trust Enrollment Department to contain signatures
from at least ten percent (10%) of all qualified voters, the Election Board shall make an
official announcement of the proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution at
least sixty (60) days prior to the election at which the proposed amendments are to be
voted on.
102.20-4. The Election Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation
Consgtitution that meet the requirements of this law on the ballot at the next general election.
Provided that, the Oneida Business Committee or General Tribal Council may order a special
election be held to consider the proposed amendments. In such circumstances, the Election
Board shall place any proposed amendments to the Oneida Nation Constitution on the ballot at
the next special election.
102.20-5. The Election Board shall publish any proposed amendments to the Constitution by
publishing a sample ballot no less than ten (10) calendar days prior to the election, through a
mass mailing. The Trust Enrollment Department shall be notified, by the Election Board
Chairperson, no less than twenty (20) calendar days prior to the requested mailing. Copies of
such publications shall be prominently posted in each polling place, at administrative offices of
the Nation, and shall also be published in the official media outlets.
102.20-6. The Election Board shall ensure that the ballot contains a statement of the purpose of
the proposed amendments prepared by the Oneida Law Office. The Oneida Law Office shall
ensure that the statement of purpose is one hundred (100) words or less exclusive of caption, isa
true and impartial statement and is written in such a manner that does not create prejudice for or
against the proposed amendment.
102.20-7. Pursuant to Article VI, Section 3 of the Constitution, proposed amendments that are
approved by sixty-five percent (65%) of the qualified voters that vote on that amendment shall
become part of the Constitution, and shall abrogate or amend existing provisions of the
Constitution at the end of thirty (30) days after submission of the final election report.
102.20-8. If two (2) or more amendments approved by the voters at the same election conflict,
the amendment receiving the highest affirmation vote prevails.

End.

Adopted - June 19, 1993
Amended - June 28, 1995 (Adopted by BC on Behalf of GTC, Completion of Agenda)
Presented for Adoption of 1997 Revisions- GTC-07-6-98-A

Amended- October 11, 2008 (General Triba Council Meeting)
Amended-GTC-01-04-10-A

Amended — BC-02-25-15-C

Amended — GTC-04-23-17-A

Amended - GTC-_ -

10.C. 102 — page 17



145 of 147

Oneida Nation

Oneida Business Committee
Legislative Operating Committee

PO Box 365 * Oneida, Wl 54155-0365 ‘ ON ElDA

Oneida-nsn.gov

TO: Oneida Business Committee

FROM: David P. Jordan, LOC Chairman

RE: August 27, 2018 GTC Action to Recreate the Personnel Commission
DATE: September 12, 2018

BACKGROUND

On August 27, 2018, the General Tribal Council adopted a motion to;

Rescind the actions of the Oneida Business Committee related to the dissolution of the Oneida
Personnel Commission, and to rescind the amendments related to Blue Book from April 11, 2018 to
today.

LEGISLATIVE UPDATE
In response, the Legislative Operating Committee will draft resolutions that will;

Record for historical purposes the action taken by the GTC.

Transition cases from the Judiciary to the Personnel Commission

Dissolve the Personnel Selection Committee and bylaws

Recreate the Personnel Commission

Repeal emergency amendments made in response to the dissolution of the Personnel
Commission.

foh W

Four laws were amended in response to the dissolution of the Personnel Commission; Employee
Protection, Military Service Employee Protection, Oneida Personnel Policies and Procedures, and the
Rules of Civil Procedure. Those amendments will need to be repealed by resolution. (Note: the Rules of
Civil Procedure and Employee Protection laws were on the LOC’s active files list prior to the Personnel
Commission dissolution, and the LOC will continue to work on amendments that are unrelated to the
Personnel Commission).

The LRO is currently working on these tasks. The LOC will review this work at the September 19, 2018
LOC meeting and forward to the Business Committee to consider at the September 26, 2018 regular
Business Committee meeting. After repealed, the correct versions of each law will be placed into the
Code of Laws and the Oneida Register.

Page1of1
A good mind. A good heart. A strong fire.



146 of 147

August 2018 September 2018
Au g ust 20 18 SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa
1 2 3 4 1
5 6 7 8 91011 2 3 456 7 8
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 9 10 11 12 13 14 15
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 16 17 18 19 20 21 22
26 27 28 29 30 31 23 24 25 26 27 28 29
30
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
Jul 29 30 31 Aug 1 3 4
9:00am 3:00pm
LoC
< (BC_Conf_Ro
<g(’ om) - LOC
2
3
5 6 7 8 10 11
1:30pm 4:00pm
LOC Work
Session
b (BC_Exec_Con
" f Room) -
= Clorissa N.
< Santiago
12 13 14 15 16 17 18
1:30pm 4:00pm 9:00am 3:00pm 12:15pm 2:15p
LOC Work LoC m PUBLIC
© Session (BC_Conf_Ro MEETING:
— (BC_Exec_Con om) - LOC Military
én' f_Room) - Service
= Clorissa N. Employee
< Santiago Protection
Act Amendm
19 20 21 22 23 24 25
1:30pm 4:00pm 3:00pm 4:30pm
Canceled: LOC Prep
o LOC Work (BC_Exec_Con
N Session f_Room) -
% (BC_Exec_Co Loc
= nf_Room) -
< Clorissa N.
Santiago
26 27 28 29 30 31 Sepl
6:00pm 10:00p 8:30am 11:00am
m GTC LOC Work
— (Radisson) Session
§‘ (BC_Exec_Con
' f_ Room) -
S Clorissa N.
g Santiago
<
Loc 1 8/21/2018 3:28 PM




147 of 147

September 2018

September 2018
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

October 2018
SuMo TuWe Th Fr Sa

1 1 2 3 45 6
2 3456 7 8 7 8 910 11 12 13
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 14 15 16 17 18 19 20
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 21 22 23 24 25 26 27
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 28 29 30 31
30
Sun Mon Tue Wed Thu Fri Sat
Aug 26 27 28 29 30 31 Sepl
-
(o}
[0}
[%2]
©
N
(]
=)
<
2 3 4 5 6 7 8
9:00am 3:00pm
LocC
o) (BC_Conf_Ro
N om) - LOC
(o}
[0}
[%2]
9 10 11 12 13 14 15
1:30pm 4:00pm
LOC Work
© Session
> (BC_Exec_Con
2 f_ Room) -
@ Clorissa N.
Santiago
16 17 18 19 20 21 22
3:00pm 4:30pm 9:00am 3:00pm 12:15pm 2:15p 8:30am 11:00am
LOC Prep LocC m PUBLIC LOC Work
& (BC_Exec_Con (BC_Conf_Ro MEETING: Session
é' f_ Room) - om) - LOC Amendments (BC_Exec_Con
a LOC to the Oneida f Room) -
n Personnel Pol Clorissa N. Sa
23 24 25 26 27 28 29
6:00pm 10:00p 1:30pm 4:00pm
m GTC LOC Work
& (Radisson) Session (BC_E
Q 5:00pm 7:30pm
& UPDATE-
@ LOC Commu
30 Oct 1 2 3 4 5 6
©
3]
(@)
o
™
(o}
[0}
[%2]
LoC 2 8/21/2018 3:28 PM



	I. Agenda
	II. Minutes
	III.1 Petition - G. Dallas - $5,000 Payment CS
	III.1.1 SOE

	III.2 Petition - L. Dallas - Medicare Part B Premium Payment CS
	III.2.1 Petition-L. Dallas - Medicare Part B Preimium Payment SOE

	III.3 GTC Meetings Law CS
	III.3.1 Removal From AFL Memo

	III.4 Comprehensive Policy Governing Boards, Committees, and Commissions CS
	III.4.1 Adoption Memo.docx
	III.4.2 Adoption Resolution
	III.4.3 Adoption SOE
	III.4.4 Analysis
	III.4.5 Draft (Redline to Current)
	III.4.6 Draft (Clean)
	III.4.7 Stipend Resolution
	III.4.8 Stipend SOE

	III.5 Election Law Amendments CS
	III.5.1Memo to GTC.docx
	III.5.2 PM Notice
	III.5.3 Analysis
	III.5.4 Draft (Redline to Current)
	III.5.5 Draft (Clean)

	VI.1 LOC Memo to OBC 08 27 GTC Action
	X. Calendar


<<

  /ASCII85EncodePages false

  /AllowTransparency false

  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true

  /AutoRotatePages /None

  /Binding /Left

  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)

  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)

  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)

  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error

  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4

  /CompressObjects /Tags

  /CompressPages true

  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true

  /PassThroughJPEGImages true

  /CreateJobTicket false

  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default

  /DetectBlends true

  /DetectCurves 0.0000

  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK

  /DoThumbnails false

  /EmbedAllFonts true

  /EmbedOpenType false

  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true

  /EmbedJobOptions true

  /DSCReportingLevel 0

  /EmitDSCWarnings false

  /EndPage -1

  /ImageMemory 1048576

  /LockDistillerParams false

  /MaxSubsetPct 100

  /Optimize true

  /OPM 1

  /ParseDSCComments true

  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true

  /PreserveCopyPage true

  /PreserveDICMYKValues true

  /PreserveEPSInfo true

  /PreserveFlatness true

  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false

  /PreserveOPIComments true

  /PreserveOverprintSettings true

  /StartPage 1

  /SubsetFonts true

  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply

  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve

  /UsePrologue false

  /ColorSettingsFile ()

  /AlwaysEmbed [ true

  ]

  /NeverEmbed [ true

  ]

  /AntiAliasColorImages false

  /CropColorImages true

  /ColorImageMinResolution 300

  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleColorImages true

  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /ColorImageResolution 300

  /ColorImageDepth -1

  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1

  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeColorImages true

  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterColorImages true

  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /ColorACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /ColorImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasGrayImages false

  /CropGrayImages true

  /GrayImageMinResolution 300

  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleGrayImages true

  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /GrayImageResolution 300

  /GrayImageDepth -1

  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2

  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeGrayImages true

  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode

  /AutoFilterGrayImages true

  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG

  /GrayACSImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /GrayImageDict <<

    /QFactor 0.15

    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<

    /TileWidth 256

    /TileHeight 256

    /Quality 30

  >>

  /AntiAliasMonoImages false

  /CropMonoImages true

  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200

  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK

  /DownsampleMonoImages true

  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic

  /MonoImageResolution 1200

  /MonoImageDepth -1

  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000

  /EncodeMonoImages true

  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode

  /MonoImageDict <<

    /K -1

  >>

  /AllowPSXObjects false

  /CheckCompliance [

    /None

  ]

  /PDFX1aCheck false

  /PDFX3Check false

  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false

  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true

  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true

  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

    0.00000

  ]

  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()

  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()

  /PDFXOutputCondition ()

  /PDFXRegistryName ()

  /PDFXTrapped /False



  /CreateJDFFile false

  /Description <<



    /BGR <>

    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>

    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>

    /CZE <>

    /DAN <>

    /DEU <>

    /ESP <>

    /ETI <>

    /FRA <>

    /GRE <>



    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)

    /HUN <>

    /ITA <>

    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>

    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>

    /LTH <>

    /LVI <>

    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)

    /NOR <>

    /POL <>

    /PTB <>

    /RUM <>

    /RUS <>

    /SKY <>

    /SLV <>

    /SUO <>

    /SVE <>

    /TUR <>

    /UKR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)

  >>

  /Namespace [

    (Adobe)

    (Common)

    (1.0)

  ]

  /OtherNamespaces [

    <<

      /AsReaderSpreads false

      /CropImagesToFrames true

      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue

      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false

      /IncludeGuidesGrids false

      /IncludeNonPrinting false

      /IncludeSlug false

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (InDesign)

        (4.0)

      ]

      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false

      /OmitPlacedEPS false

      /OmitPlacedPDF false

      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy

    >>

    <<

      /AddBleedMarks false

      /AddColorBars false

      /AddCropMarks false

      /AddPageInfo false

      /AddRegMarks false

      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK

      /DestinationProfileName ()

      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /Downsample16BitImages true

      /FlattenerPreset <<

        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution

      >>

      /FormElements false

      /GenerateStructure false

      /IncludeBookmarks false

      /IncludeHyperlinks false

      /IncludeInteractive false

      /IncludeLayers false

      /IncludeProfiles false

      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings

      /Namespace [

        (Adobe)

        (CreativeSuite)

        (2.0)

      ]

      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK

      /PreserveEditing true

      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged

      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile

      /UseDocumentBleed false

    >>

  ]

>> setdistillerparams

<<

  /HWResolution [2400 2400]

  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]

>> setpagedevice





